NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING

February 13, 2018
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL
STATE OF TEXAS AGENDA
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY
CITY OF MONTGOMERY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Regular Meeting of the Montgomery City Council will be held
on Tuesday, February 13, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. at the City of Montgomery City Hall, 101 Old Plantersville
Road, Montgomery, Texas for the purpose of considering the following:

CALL TO ORDER

INVOCATION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to
speaking, each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor, Council may not discuss or take any action
on an item, but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the time
allowed per speaker may be limited.

CONSENT AGENDA.:

1. Matters related to the approval of minutes for the Public Hearing and Regular Meeting held on
January 9, 2018 and Public Hearing and Regular Meeting held on January 23, 2018.

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:
2. Consideration and possible action regarding an Interlocal Agreement with Montgomery
County Emergency Services District No. 2 to share sales tax proceeds for future commercial
retail properties that may be annexed by the City.

3. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED TERRITORY OF 3.22

ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, IN THE JOHN H. CORNER SURVEY, ABSTRACT
8, TO THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS, AND
EXTENDING THE BOUNDARY LIMITS OF SAID CITY SO AS TO INCLUDE SAID
HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED PROPERTY WITHIN SAID CITY LIMITS, AND
GRANTING TO ALL THE INHABITANTS OF SAID PROPERTY ALL THE RIGHTS
AND PRIVILEGES OF OTHER CITIZENS AND BINDING SAID INHABITANTS BY
ALL OF THE ACTS, ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, AND REGULATIONS OF SAID
CITY; ADOPTING AN ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN FOR SAID ANNEXATION;
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT
CLAUSE; AND PROVDING THE EFFECTIVE DATE UPON PASSAGE OJF THE
ORDINANCE. (Peter Hill Property) '




8.

Consideration and possible action regarding amendment of an October 9, 2012 Variance
Agreement regarding the paving of property, north, and adjacent to Rancher’s Daughter
business on College Street.

Consideration possible action regarding LDC gas rates and recovery charges billed to their
customers,

Consideration and possible action regarding QBS Homes request for a front building line
variance from 25 feet to 20 feet on Lots 1,2,3 and 4 on Sheppard Street, and from 15 feet to 10
feet on the north side of Lot 4 all within Section 1, Block 1 in the West Side at the Park
Subdivision. :

Consideration and possible action regarding approval of an application for an Alcohol
Beverage Permit for Uncle Bob’s BBQ Montgomery, to be located at 20873 Eva Street, Suite
G, Montgomery, as submitted by Robert L. Blalock. (Previously Pizza Shack)

Buffalo Springs Bridge Report by the City Engineer.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading or
for any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet the
qualifications in Sections 551.071(consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding real
property),551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberation
regarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations)
of Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas.

9.

Convene into Closed Exccutive Session as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act,
Chapter 551 of the Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in the
following;:

a) 551.071 (confidential consultation with the City Attorney); and

b) 551.072 (deliberation regarding real property}.

c¢) 551.074 (personnel matters — City Administrator’s Contract)

10. Convene into Open Session.

POSSIBLE ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION: -

11

Consideration and possible action, if necessary, on matters deliberated on during Closed
Executive Session with the City Attorney.

COUNCIL INQUIRY:

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect. 551.042 the Mayor and Council Members may inquire about
a subject not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to recitation of existing policy
ot a statement of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation or
decision shall be limited to a proposal to place on the agenda of a future meeting,




ADJOURNMENT

)

‘/)/‘L\ é/;//(_/

/SW, City Secretary

I certify that the attached notice of meeting was posted on the bulletin board at City of Montgom
City Hall, 101 Old Plantersville Road, Montgomery, Texas, on the 9" day of January 2018 at 3!
o’clock p.m. I further certify that the following news media was notified of this meeting as stated
above: The Courier

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Please contact the
City Secretary’s office at 936-397-6434 for further information or for special accommodations.




MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING and REGULAR MEETING
January 9, 2018
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Kirk Jones declared a quorum was present, and called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

Present: Kirk Jones Mayor
Jon Bickford City Council Place # 1
John Champagne, Jr. City Council Place # 2
T.J. Wilkerson City Council Place # 3
Rebecca Huss City Council Place # 4

Dave McCorquodale  City Council Place # 5

Absent:

Also Present:  Jack Yates City Administrator
Larry Foerster City Attorney
Susan Hensley City Secretary
Chris Roznovsky City Engineer

INVOCATION

John Champagne gave the invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

Mayor Jones announced that the order of the Public Hearings would be changed and Public Hearing
3 would be held first.

Convene into Public Hearings:




1.

Public Hearing - regarding Annexation of a 3.22-acre tract of land in the John Corner

Survey. Abstract 8, Montgomery County, Texas, being out of a 5.71 acre tract as recorded
under Clerk’s File No. 2016-086083, also being out of a called 111.857 acre tract of land as
recorded under Clerk’s File No. 9512940 Deed Records Montgomery County, Texas. (Second

of two Public Hearings).

Mayor Jones convened the Public Hearing at 6:12 p.m.

Mr. Yates advised that this is the property that is immediately across from and south of the new
Pizza Shack location and is 3.22 acres of land. Mr. Yates said that the annexation action will

occur at the January 23, 2018 City Council meeting.

There were no other comments made.

Adjourn Public Hearing

Mayor Jones adjourned the Public Hearing at 6:13 p.m.

Public Hearing - regarding Amendment of Impact Fees for the City of Montgomery.,

Mayor Jones convened the Public Hearing at 6:13 p.m.

Mr. Yates advised that this Public Hearing is for a consideration of Impact Fee Amendments.
Mr. Yates said that the Capital Improvement Advisory Committee met in October 2017 and
recommended a somewhat lesser Impact Fee, Mr. Yates said that the action on the Impact Fee

Ordinance will be on the January 23, 2018 City Council Meeting.

Mayor Jones said that the Tmpact Fee exists, but the City is evaluating changing the numbers.
Mr. Yates said that the Capital Improvement Advisory Committee was the group that came up
with the first number in October 2016, and then City Council adopted it in December 2016.
Mr. Yates said that this is the required annual review, according to State Law, and the
Committee made a recommendation to City Council, which they have heard before this

meeting,

Mayor Jones asked if these Impact Fees directly impact existing residents. Mr. Yates said that

the Impact Fees do not impact existing residents, it is just for new connections. Mr. Yates said

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 2




that the basic idea for an impact fee is so that the new connections pay for the required new
improvements to the water and sewer system. Mrs. Sara Countryman asked what new
connections. Mr. Yates said that it would be new water and sewer connections in the new

subdivisions.

Adjourn Public Hearing

Mayor Jones adjourned the Public Hearing at 6:16 p.m.

Public Hearing — City of Montgomery Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
2016 Disaster Recovery — regarding thc General Land Office (GLO) CDBG-DR 2016

Floods Program.

Mayor Jones convened the Public Hearing at 6:02 p.m.

Mr. Yates advised that this is related to the General Land Office (GLO) Grant that has been
discussed for the last several months, Mr. Yates advised that Mr. Jeff O’Connell, with

Grantworks, was present.

Mr. O’Connell advised that Grantworks is putting together the Grant application for the 2016
Flood Grant that the GLO is administering. Mr. O’Connell said that they are working with the
City and Jones and Carter to analyze the budgets for the different improvements that are going
to be taking place in the City. Mr. O’Connell advised that Montgomery County was one of the
most impacted counties, so all the funding that they have received for the City is not
competitive money, it is basically monies that was allocated for the City of Montgomery. Mr.
O’Connell said that the amount of money is $2,280,000, and there are five different projects
that they will be working on, with a due date of February 28, 2018 for submittal of the grant,

Mr. O’Connell stated that the projects that they are looking at right now, with the main project
being MLK Drive and Baja Road Project, which involves several things, with relocation of a
water line, upgrading of a sewer line, drainage on Baja Road and resurfacing of both of those
roads, which comes out to $1,170,000. Mr. O’Connell said that they were also looking at a
water plant, emergency generator for Water Plant #3 that is $550,000; rehabilitation of Lift
Station #3 for $250,000 and a generator for the Stewart Creck Wastewater Treatment Plant.

Mr. O’Connell advised that when he worked on grants in 2012 and 2015, most of the grants

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 3




were emergency generators and there was a backlog on the generators, and Texas was using so
many of the generators that they could not produce them fast enough. Mr. O’ Connell said that
it was really wonderful to have generators beeause if the power goes out in the City, it will

keep things running and it is very important to have them.

Mr, O’ Connell said that in order to get the funding, you have to have neighborhood target areas
that have low to moderate income. Mr. O’Connell said that 51% of the target area has to
comply with that in order for the funding to move forward. Mr. O’Connell said that they have
been out in the City surveying different areas and they have come up with target arcas for the
{ift station and for the roadway project on MLK and Baja. Mr. O’Connell advised that the City

basically complied with all the requirements necessary to fund these projects.

Mr. O’Connell said that they are very close to getting the applications done, and advised that
they would submit the applications to the City within a months’ time, around mid-February,
because the GLO requires a two week review by the City to make sure that everything that they

put in the application is appropriate.

Rebecca Huss asked about the rest of the timeline after the application is submitted to the City
for the two week review in February, Mr. O’Connell said that once the City has reviewed the
information, they will submit the application to the GLO prior to February 28, 2018, and the
GLO will take about 30-45 days to review the application, and then hopefully the projects will

start after that review.

Rebecca Huss asked about the projects that Mr. Roznovsky has engineered and whether they
would be ready to go. Mr, Roznovsky stated that éverything was only preliminary, so all of
those projects would still have to be designed once they get some response from the GLO on
which projects are going to be approved and they have knowledge of the funding that will be
available. Mr. Roznovsky stated that all those projects, with the exception of Buffalo Springs
Bridge, are preliminary and initial cost estimates, Rebecca Huss asked what would be the
estimated timing for the engineering. Mr. Roznovsky said that it would vary per the project,
and there are five different projects, which includes MLK and Baja and a tributary that runs
behind Baja, and will depend on how the funds come in. Mr. Roznovsky said that the MLK

and Baja improvements and the generator at Water Plant #3 will be the top two projects, and

01/08/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 4




the rest will fall in after those. Mr. O’Connell said that once they get the grant approved, each
project has to go through an environmental review that will take 30 to 45 days to get the review

completed.

John Champagne asked for a point of order, and stated to the Mayor that this was a Public
Hearing and Mr. O’Connell is giving a report, and the Baja and other discussions should be
taken up in an engineering report. Rebecca Huss said that they do not have that on this agenda.
John Champagne said that this was out of order. Rebecca Huss said that this was really a
timeline question about the grant, which seems to be relevant to the presentation on the GLO
grant, John Champagne stated that this was not a question and answer session, and is not on
the agenda, this is a report, Mayor Jones said that there was an action item on this matter on
the agenda. Mr. O’Connell said the idea was to have input from the public, which is why they
are having the public hearing. John Champagne said that City Council is not the public.
Rebecca Huss said that she thought they had addressed this matter the last time, and City

Council is the public. John Champagne said that they were addressing it again.

Mr. O’Connell asked if there were any questions from the public regarding the information

being presented.

Mrs. Snead, who lives on Martin Luther King Jr. Drive, asked if the arca behind her house
would be included in the project that was being described. Mr. Roznovsky said that was
correct, that was one of the projects that is listed. Mrs. Snead said that the National Guard came
by her home and gave her some assistance, but the City was supposed to be helping, but they
say it is going to be sometime in May or whenever it is approved, which is what she is hearing.
Mr. O’Connell said that it was his understanding that the bridge project is going to be funded
through FEMA and through a prior CDBG Grant, and it is his understanding that the 25%
match that the City has to provide has been taken care of. Mr, Roznovsky said that was correct;
the bridge is going forward, the contractor is on site and they have had the pre-construction

meeting.
T.J. Wilkerson asked about the 30-45 day review. Mr., O’Connell said that they would have to

do the environmental review, design work and then go out for bids on the projects, which would

be the process. Mrs. Snead asked if there would be another meeting before all that takes place.

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 5




Mr. O’ Connell said that if the City wants to have another meeting they can, Mrs. Snead said
that she wanted to make sure that she was included in any meeting that they have in the future.
Mr. O’Connell said that the application would be available to the public and they will try to
get the information online and have a copy available at City Hall so that it can be reviewed to

make sure that they are included in the project listing.

Mayor Jones thanked Mr. O’Connell for presenting his report,

Adjourn Public Hearing

Mayor Jones adjourned the meeting at 6:12 p.m.

Reconvene into Regular Session;

Mayor Jones reconvened into Regular Session at 6:16 p.m.

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Anvy citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to

speaking, each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. Council may not discuss ot take anv action

on an item, but may place the issue on a future agenda, The number of speakers along with the time

allowed per speaker may be limited.

Mrs. Sara Countryman said that she had an opportunity to speak with some of the Councilmembers
prior to the meeting, Mrs. Countryman said that she was a City resident and she lives in Buffalo
Springs. Mrs. Countryman said that she is not happy with LDC, or the rate increases of LDC, Mrs,
Countryman said that she has failed to come to a lot of the Council Meetings, where she would have
learned at that time that City Council actually did have the residents” back, from what she understands.
Mrs. Countryman said that as a resident, it is really hard to sec that less than a mile from where you
live, customers are paying a lot less because they have the opportunity to be with CenterPoint. Mrs.
Countryman said that she thought there was a new charge that showed up a couple of months ago for
a $21,000 mistake that happened and is shown as the Lone Star Surcharge. Mrs. Countryman said that
she did not feel that the residents should be on the hook for that, and asked if the contractor or developer
had a bond and wouldn’t that cover a mistake. Mrs. Countryman said that she understood that the

matter went to the Railroad Commission after coming before the City Council, but at the same time

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 6




there has got to be another avenue of coverage. Mrs. Countryman said that she does not get to use that
area, so why is she having to pay for it, and with rates going down in gas, why are their rates going up.
Mrs. Countryman said that her rate is over $100 more, and there are people in her neighborhood whose
bill has tripled. Mrs. Countryman said that the price of living in the City is getting out of control, with

the water going up, now the gas, and she would like to know, as a resident, what she can do.

Rebecca Huss asked Mr. Foerster and Mr. Yates about whether they looked into following up on the
rate increase that was denied, that LDC received anyway. Mr. Yates said that he has not been able to
contact the Railroad Commission. Mr. Yates said that basically what happened was that City Council
denied the rate increase, it went to the Railroad Commission and it got improved anyway. Mrs,
Countryman asked if they were talking about the $15 surcharge that jumped to $21, or are they talking

about the other surcharge that has now been added to their bill that is called the Lone Star surcharge.

Rebecca Huss said that surcharge was because LDC built out their lines in advance of the Lone Star
Bend Road going in, and the road ended up being in a different location, so they had to re-lay their
pipe. Rebecca Huss said that City Council denied LDC’s rate request specifically because they did the
line on spec because they thought they could get it done cheaper by doing it all at once. Rebecca Huss
said that it was not the City’s responsibility to cover LDC’s cost for building on spec, which City
Council said specifically was the reason they denied their request. Rebecca Huss said that LDC went
to the Railroad Commission and said that the City did not give a reason for denying the rate and the
Railroad Commission said that the City was required to give a reason for the denial, and therefore the

rate increase was approved by the Railroad Commission.

Mrs. Countryman said that she wanted to go on record that Larry Corley is a crook, and with that being
said, what legal recourse the City has and is there anything that the City Attorney can do. Mr. Foerster
said that they are probably too late right now, and said the City would have to retain an Austin attorney
to appeal the Railroad Commission’s ruling. Rebecca Huss said if there was any way to get the
Railroad Commission to discuss the matter with the City without it going that way, and they could use
the elected representatives for that as citizens. Mr. Yates said that he did speak to the Railroad
Commission one time, and they said that it was required by the Railroad Commission that the City
Council give a reason for their denial, and since City Council did not state a specific reason in the
motion, the Railroad Commission did not consider that a denial by the City. Mrs. Countryman asked

why the City did not give a reason for denial.

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 7




John Champagne said, to Rebecca Huss® point, a reason was given and one of the few times, he referred
to the paper, he belicved the newspaper said that they did not give a reason, but that is false and he
would think that the minutes would reflect the fact that we gave a reason. Mrs, Countryman said that
if the City gave a reason, maybe they need to go back and give a better reason and then maybe get legal
involved, because she did not think that the residents should be paying for it if they are not using it.
Mrs. Countryman said that she would like to know what the City can do, and said that she has people
behind her that are not happy as well. Mrs. Countryman said that if she has to walk the strects and get

people to sign something, she will because this is wrong.

Mr. Yates said that he would follow up with the Railroad Commission, because the answer to the initial
question as to whether City Council gave a reason for the denial, City Council included the reason in
their discussion, but they did not include it in their motion because they did not realize they were
required to do that by the Railroad Commission. Mr. Yates said that what he needs to do is get to the
Railroad Commission to find out what the City’s appeal is to them, because he made a copy of the
minutes about a month ago. Mrs, Countryman said that she would like to know if there is an appeal
process and who is keeping up with that $21,000 mistake; would that be the State, Mr. Corley or the
City of Montgomery. Mr. Yates said that the LDC books are audited every year, and the Railroad
Commission audits LDC’s books every two years. Mr. Yates said that he can let the residents of
Buffalo Springs know the resuits of the conversation with the Railroad Commission, Mrs. Countryman
said that anyone that is affected by that cost should want to know where they are. Mr. Yates said that
would be every LDC customer. Mayor Jones thanked Mrs. Countryman for expressing her thoughts

to City Council,

CONSENT AGENDA:

4. Matters related to the approval of minutes for the Public Hearing and Regular Meeting held on
December 12, 2017,

5. Consideration and possible action approving a leave of absence for Council Member Jon
Bickford.

6. Consideration and possible action regarding DeWitt Lawson application for rencwal of a

Special Use Permit for 14611 Liberty Street to sell firewood.

01/05/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 3




7. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the Election Services Agreement by

and between the City of Montgomery and Montgomery County, Texas for the May 5. 2018

Election.

8 Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the Joint Election Agreement with

Montgomery County and the paiticipating entities for the purpose of jointly conducting

elections to be held on May 5, 2018,

Mayor Jones stated that Consent Agenda Item 5 was not necessary for the meeting.

Jon Bickford asked about Item 6, and whether there were any issues or complaints regarding that
location. Mr. Yates said that the propetty is much cleaner than it was last year. Jon Bickford asked
if there were any complaints regarding traffic due to the business there. Mr. Yates said there were

no complaints.

Rebecoa Huss said that they were going to pull Consent Agenda Item 5 from the list. Rebecca
Huss moved to approve the Consent Agenda Items 4, 6, 7 and 8, as presented. T. J. Wilkerson

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

9. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL, OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS,
AMENDING CITY ORDINANCE NO. 1989-2, DATED FEBRUARY 14, 1989, BY
AMENDING ARTICLE II, “LICENSES.” SECTIONS 6-25. 6-33 AND 6-34 OF CHAPTER
6. “ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES,” OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING
TO THE APPLICATION AND RE-APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR A LICENSE
TO SELL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES IN THE CITY: REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES
AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH; PROVIDING A SAVINGS
CLAUSE: PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE AFTER PUBLICATION.

Mr. Yates presented the information to City Council, advising that this was an ordinance to
amend the Code of Ordinances to expedite the process for approval of Beverage Permit

Applications and to tract the two year renewal term as provided by TABC. Mr. Yates advised

01/09/18 Councll Meeting Minutes - Page 9




that the process will still require the vendor to come before City Council to get their Beverage
Permit reviewed and approved, but would not require the public hearing mail out and
publication of legal notice. Mr. Yates said that TABC publishes a legal notice for new
applications, so this would be a duplication. Mr. Yates stated this process would expedite the
process for the business owner, while still allowing the public process of the application. Mr.
Yates advised that the City’s Code has the beverage permit renewal annually, while TABC is

set up on a two year renewal, so this would also update that information.

Ton Bickford asked that, if TABC announces an application, how is the public going to know.
Mr. Yates said that they could see the application, and TABC requires a sign to be posted on
the property. Jon Bickford asked, if it would no longer be a part of the agenda, how would
people know. Mr. Yates said that the information would still be on the City Council Agenda
and City Council would still have to take action on the item, they just would not be required to
publish a separate notice. Rebecca Huss said that the residents would not be receiving a mail
out directly notifying them that they live within 200 fect of the business. Jon Bickford asked
if TABC would mail out a notice. Ms. Hensley, City Secretary, advised that TABC publishes
a legal notice of application for the business applying for the permit, they do not mail out the
letter of notice. Mr. Yates said that was his question also as to how a local person would be
aware of the permit application, and Mr. Yates said that there is a certain size sign that is

required on the property that is displayed.

John Champagne said that the short version is that they are taking out exactly what is in the
process form the ordinance. Mr. Yates said that they are removing the City Council required
public hearing in advance of the item being on the agenda. John Champagne asked what the
motivation for this action was. Mr. Yates said that it was to expedite the process for the permit
applicant and the City. Mayor Jones said that the process of calling the public hearings is
cumbersome and expensive. Rebecca Huss said that she did not think that it made sense to
have a process that is more onerous than what TABC requires. John Champagne said that he
typically did not take his leave from another governmental entity, but if it short changes the
public from having input on something that could be a negative, he was not sure it was the best
route to take, if in fact, the public is aware and has an opportunity to do so. Mr. Yates asked
the City Secretary about the current process. Ms. Hensley advised that under the current

process, a notice is mailed out to property owners within 200 feet of the property requesting

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 10




10,

the beverage permit. John Champagne asked if the City would still send out that notice. Ms.
Hensley advised that with the amendment they would not have to send out the notices, and
noted that the notice is published by TABC in the City’s official newspaper, the Courier. Ms.
Hensley stated that the information would also be posted on the City’s website, on the agenda

and the applicant would still be required to come before City Council for approval.

John Champagne said that to fast track something that was purposely impeded in the past,
sometimes things that were done in the past is not a bad thing, so just for the sake of airing out
what his thoughts are, he does not have a problem with slowing down more alcoholic
beverages, if in fact a certain segment of the City might be effected negatively or the City as a
whole would have a problem with it. Mr. Yates said that he was not saying that this is an answer
or a rebuttal to John Champagne’s statement, but the only difference and advantage to what
they are doing now is the separate mail out that goes out to people within 200 feet. Mayor
Jones said that the iten would show up on the agenda and residents can come and speak in the
public forum about the matter, so the public will still get a say. Rebecca Huss said that City
Council has been consistently aware of the impact of the aicohol beverage licenses, and if
people disagree with the permits, they still discuss them and they have not been rubber
stamped. Mr. Yates said that if there were to be a conflict about the permit, nothing states that
the permit has to be approved the first time it is on the agenda, and it could be postponed until
the next meeting to give the public more notice. John Champagne said that he comes from an
area where all you had to do was raise your hand and get an alcohol license, and one of the
reasons that he is here on City Council, and one of the reasons that he feels that Texas has a
higher quality of life than where he used to come from, was because of certain restrictions and
not a lax view.

Jon Bickford moved to adopt the ordinance as presented. Dave McCorquodale seconded the

motion, the motion carried with 4-Ayes and 1-Nay by T.J. Wilkerson. (4-1)

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS,
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK
GRANT DISASTER RECOVERY (CDBG-DR) APPLICATION TO THE TEXAS
GENERAL LAND OFFICE: AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO
ACT AS THE CITY’S EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 11




IN ALL MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE CDBG-DR
PROGRAM.

Mr. Yates advised that this was to formally authorize the application. Mr. Yates said that for
right now the plan was to include 70% percent of the projects that need to be in low to moderate
income areas, with the priority being the Town Creek Tributary. Mr. Yates said that the
following is a list of the project priorities:
e First - Town Creek Tributary is the first priority;
e  Second - Martin Luther King to Baja Road Sanitary Sewer Cleaning and Televising;
and
e Third - Martin Luther King Drive and Baja Road Water and Sewer Drainage and
Paving Improvements. Mt Yates said that the reason this is the third priority is because
the City already has a CDBG Grant for Baja Road that will be happening during early
Spring and Summer.
Mr. Yates said that depending on what the other projects cost, they will not need that much
money for Martin Luther King and Baja Road Water and Sewer Improvements. Mr. Yates said
that for the 30% of the projects, which are the non-low income, and for the first priority they
are allowing $46,000 for the GLO portion of the bridge repair, just in case there is not enough

funds in FEMA or the existing CDBG-DR Grant that they have for that.

Mr. Yates said that the second priority is the Stewart Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant and
Lift Station #1 with a generator. Mr. Yates said that Lift Station #1 is going to be moved over
by the Sewer Plant so one generator is necessary at $370,000.

Mr. Yates said that the third priority is the Water Plant #3 generator, located off of FM 1097,
and the estimated cost is $554,000. Mr. Yates said that those costs will eat up more than the
$647,000, which is 30% of the $2,280,000 expected grant. Mr. Yates stated that a resolution

is required for this process to make the application.

Dave McCorquodale moved to adopt the Resolution as presented. Rebecca Huss seconded the

motion.

Discussion: T.J. Wilkerson asked Mr, Yates if 70% of those funds would be spent on Baja

Drive. Mr. Yates said no, 70% would be spent in low to moderate income areas. Mr. Yates

01/09/18 Councll Meeting Minutes - Page 12




i1

said that the first priority is the Town Creek Tributary, which is between Martin Luther King,
Ji. Drive and FM 149, behind Ms. Snead’s home and is known as Anders Branch. Mr. Yates
said that the $59,000 is for Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive and Baja Road Sanitary Sewer
Cleaning and Televising, and the third priority is Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive Water and
Sewer Drainage and Paving Improvements. Jon Bickford said that would be more than 50% of
the total $2,280,000. Mr. Yates stated that it would be 70% of the total. Jon Bickford said that
the two projects that are related to Baja Drive are approximately 50% of the total. T.I.
Wilkerson asked whether they planned on building a subdivision in that area. Mr. Yates said
that they have not submitted a final plat, but said that they have submitted escrow funds, so he
felt that they were serious about the development. T.J. Wilkerson asked if the sewer would tie
into that development, Mr. Yates said that was correct, but they would pay for their own sewer
and none of this grant would be for that subdivision. Mr. Yates said that the grant work would
go to the end of Baja to cover the last home on the right. Mr. Yates said that the new
development would be able to tie into the fine, but the line was being put in for the existing

residents.

The motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding appointment or reappointment of MEDC Board

Members to fill the positions currently filled by Cheryl Fox and Bill Hanover.

Mr. Yates advised that both of the positions listed were up for renewal, and the applications
had been posted on the City’s web site and on the bulletin board, in addition to a newspaper
article that Mr, Yates had submitted. Mr. Yates said that two applications were received, from
Cheryl Fox and Bilt Hanover. Mr. Yates said that their attendance and participation on the
MEDC Board had been very satisfactory. John Champagne said that he would agree, and stated
that he serves with them on the MEDC Board, and they do a good job. John Champagne said
that this is why local, state and federal governments go down the tubes, because people do not
get involved. Rebecca Huss said that one of the members is not a resident of the City, so they
have nonresidents determining the use of City money, which she was not saying that the
member was not a good steward of their monies, but he might have his own priorities. Mayor
Jones said that the Bylaws for the MEDC does allow for the nonresident membership on the

Board.

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 13




12.

13.

Jon Bickford moved to reappoint MEDC Board members Cheryl Fox and Bill Hanover. Dave

McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimousty. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding a Beverage Permit Application for Cork This!

Winery located at 21123 Eva Street, Suite 100, Montgomery, Texas, and if necessary schedule

a Public Heating to be held on February 13, 2018 at 6 p.m. at City Hall,

Mr. Yates said that City Council will need to take action to approve the application. Jon
Bickford asked if this was the same type of license as the previous permit. Mr. Yates advised

that was correct, it was just a new owner,

Jon Bickford moved to approve the Beverage Permit Application for Cork This! Winery
located at 21123 Eva Street, Suite 100, Montgomery, Texas. John Champagne seconded the

motion.

Discussion: Mayor Jones stated that the previous owner, Karla Nash, who was present,
invented Cork This! Winery and has made it very successful and has been a big part of the City
of Montgomery for a long time, and now they have the new owners that are taking it over and
not changing much of anything, but carrying on as the previous business did and will be
bringing some other new ideas to the City. Mayor Jones extended a welcome to the new owners

and said that he felt it was great that they will carry on a great existing business.

The motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding Longview Greens Miniature Golfing variance

request to allow gravel to be used as a parking surface,

Mr. Yates advised that this was an extension to an existing parking surface variance given to
Mr. Jason Long for Longview Greens Mini Golf on March 14, 2017 City Council Meeting,
where he was granted a variance to pave the parking lot within six months of receiving his
certificate of occupancy for the business. Mr. Yates stated the certificate of occupancy was

issued June 7, 2017. Mr. Yates said that the business will lose its certificate of occupancy if it

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 14




is not paved. Mr, Yates said that he issued a letter to Mr. Long on December 29, 2017 stating
that he had exceeded his six month time limit, Mr. Long said that he realized that but was
asking for an extension. Mr. Yates said that he had advised Mr. Long that if he applied for the
extension, then he would not remove his certificate of occupancy for his business until City

Council had decided one way or another.

Mr. Long, who was present, advised that he was thankful that City Council has worked with
him in the past to get his small business up and running, and for the variance that was issued.
Mr. Long said that he does have the parking lot apron paved from Clepper to the parking lot,
but the actual parking lot itself is not paved. Mr. Long asked City Council to consider
extending the variance request so that he can have time to get that parking lot paved, because
the cost is about $25,000. Mayor Jones asked Mr. Long how much time he felt that he would
need. Mr. Long said that he would like a full calendar year. John Champagne said that based
on the past amount of business that Mr, Long has :;ealized, he believes that {2 months would
be a more appropriate request for this extension. John Champagne said that he passes by the
business every day and there has not been a dust problem. Jon Bickford said that his concern
was that it is not fair to do for one business and not the othets, so where do they draw the line
and say they are not going to give everybody 18 month extensions on paving, because then
they could have a real mess. Mayor Jones said that if they do not extend the variance, then the

business is shut down,

John Champagne said that this action was quite unusual for him, so he is directing this question
to the City Attorney, and asked if it would be inappropriate to request an Executive Session to
discuss this matter with Mr. Long at some point. Mr. Foerster said that it would be

inappropriate.

Rebecca Huss said that the other item, which they had discussed before, was the discussion
about possibly having MEDC partner with businesses to create a more petvious surface parking
type of experience, which in some ways would be great for Mr. Long’s setup, because it is a
much more natural looking business. Rebecca Huss said that maybe there is another solution
for the parking lot that would work really well for the City aesthetically as well as for water
retention and dust elimination. Rebecca Huss said that regarding the variance, they either have

to shut the business down or grant the variance, but this is a possible third variance. John

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 15




Champagne said that they have an ordinance in place that requircs them to pave. Rebecca Huss
said that the ordinances are in place to have minimum standards, but if someone comes in and
says that they want to come in and do something that is better, but does not fit in the ordinance,
that is the type of variance that she would love. John Champagne said that he was not against
that, and said that there was certain technologies out there that provide a grid that contains sod

and/or rock and other materials that would provide permeation for drainage.

Dave McCorquodale said that he would like a little more data and understanding about the
business, and said that he was interested in the daily patrons, because that will tell them what
the parking lot load is, and what he would propose is another six month extension, but that City
Council would understand, prior to approval, and also said that he was not opposed to the
calendar year extension, but he was thinking of it in two bites: whether there are issues with it
and is there a solution where if the daily attendance is 25, don’t pave 150 spaces, pave 40 or
30 spaces. Jon Bickford said that if that if followed up with a change or a variance of the
ordinance that would be fine. Dave McCorquodale said he did not want to pull the certificate
of occupancy, but he did want a little more information about what the exact set of perimeters
that they are trying to solve. John Champagne said they are opening Pandora’s Box, which is
one of Jon Bickford’s concerns, which is legitimate. John Champagne said that he would
consider a three month variance, and they look for Ways to solve the problem. Mr, Yates said
that regarding Dave McCorquodale’s suggestion, he felt that it might require two set ups, and
maybe they pave the front half of the parking lot in the first 3-6 months, and then the other half
of the parking lot in the next six months. Dave McCorquodale said that he understood the
timing of the 3-6 months, but his concern was the practicality of January, February and March,
with the revenue cycle. John Champagne said that he was in line with Dave McCorquodale’s
thoughts, but said that he just did not want the sense of urgency to go away by allowing six
months, and said that he would not have a problem going another three months. John
Champagne said that City Council wants to see Mr. Long succeed, so his desire, is that they do
everything that they can as a body, in the perimeters allowed, to help him succeed. Mayor
Jones suggested Mr. Long pave half the parking lot within the first six months, and the other

half in the six months following.

Rebecca Huss moved to extend the variance for six months, and if Mr. Long comes back with

a request for an extension, then he needs to come back with attendance and sales tax records

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 16




to the City, including other pertinent numbers that will heip them make a decision about where

they go from there.

Mir. Foerster asked for a clarification, he stated that the variance concluded in December, 2017,
and asked if they were talking about six months from today’s meeting. Rebecca Huss said that
it would be six months from the previous expiration of the variance. Mr. Yates said that the

variance expired on December 6, 2017.

John Champagne asked Rebecca Huss if she would be acceptable to an amendment the motion
that Mr. Long come back in 60 days to give City Council an update on how it is looking for
him to get into compliance, and an estimated amount of time, or advise the City Administrator.
Rebecca Huss said if he met with the City Administrator that would keep his private

information private.

Dave McCorquodale seconded the motion. John Champagne asked about his recommended
amendment to the motion. Rebecca Huss rejected the amendment to the motion. Mayor Jones

asked Rebecca Huss to restate her motion.

Rebecca Huss moved that they provide a six month variance dated from the time of the
expiration of the previous variance, and if Mr. Long intends to come back with a request for
an extension of the variance, he is to provide pertinent numerical information, such as sales tax
revenue to the City, attendance, etc., to help them make their decision. Mr. Foerster stated that
he would ask that the minutes reflect that would be six months from December 6, 2017, and
the variance deadline would be June 6, 2018. Rebecca Huss asked that the City Secretary note
for the record that the deadline for the variance would be June 6, 2018, The City Secretary
noted the addition of the date of the deadline. Dave McCorquodale stated that he had seconded

the motion.

Discussion: Jon Bickford said that he would support the extension of the variance through
April 6, 2018. Rebecca Huss said that if Mr. Long wants another extension, he will need to
come back with numbers. Jon Bickford said that he would like to state, priot to the vote, that
once again City Council should be prepared for other businesses to come in here to grant them

a year to put their paving in after their building is done. Rebecca Huss said that she thought

01/05/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 17




14.

that the time to deny the variance would have been at the very beginning as opposed to now,
because she agrees, you never have more money than at the beginning. Jon Bickford said that
he had tried back then, and they all said that they wanted to give him six months, and here we
are again. Jon Bickford said that when Mr. Cheatham walks in and says that he doesn’t want
to pave his medical facility, he is going to support giving him a years’ worth of mulch on it.
Jon Bickford said that rufes are rules, and said that builders come in to the City and say that
they don’t want their streets too wide, so they can’t get two cars on them, and they want to
keep amending things, cating away at the ordinances and the things that they are doing to try
and keep the City clean and nice, but they keep making all these exceptions, so if they are doing
it for one they have to do it for others, because it is not fair. Rebecca Huss said that Mr. Foerster
has very specifically stated that nothing that they do here has set a precedent for the future in
terms of what we are required to do. Jon Bickford said that might be the case legally, but
morally he felt that it does, and he felt that they have an obligation to treat everyone fairly.
Mayor Jones said that he would like to point out that the present situation is not causing a
hardship or public nuisance or anything like that. Jon Bickford thanked the Mayor for the
information, but said that was not his point. Mayor Jones said that Mr. Long also has to abide

by the PDD. Rebecca Huss said that the variance will also have to be approved by Mr. LeFevre.

The motion carried with the following vote:

Rebecca Huss — Aye John Champagne — Nay
Dave McCorquodale — Aye Jon Bickford — Nay
T.J. Wilkerson - Aye

Consideration and possible action regarding a Utility and Economic Feasibility Study for the

1.574 acre Walker Montgomery Community Development Corporation Baja Road Single

Family Development.

Mr. Roznovsky presented the Utility and Economic Feasibility Study to City Council. Mr.
Roznovsky advised that the development is currently comprised of four single family homes.
Mr. Roznovsky stated that the property was already in the City limits and zoned residential.
Mr. Roznovsky said that with four homes they are looking at 1,000 — 1,400 gallons of water

per day, so that does not put any additional demand on the City’s water system.

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 18




John Champagne asked about the additional runoff as a result of this construction, because he
can remember a few months back, where they had a discussion regarding a parking lot. Mr.

Roznovsky said that he would come back to that.

Mr. Roznovsky said that one thing to note is there will be a new waterline that will be going
in, as a part of a grant project, and they will be served by that line, but it is not going in because

of this development, it was in the works before.

M. Roznovsky said that the sewer service is the same way, very minimal impact on the system.
Mr. Roznovsky said that regarding the sanitary line that the sewer will flow to, the developer
will either fill the site to allow gravity flow or they are looking to install private grinder pumps
at each house, owned by the property owners, but there will be no public lift station involved.
Mr. Roznovsky said that most lkely they will try hard to have the gravity flow, but they will
come back with that information. Mr. Roznovsky said that it will all go through Lift Station

#2, and there are no upgrades needed.

Mr. Roznovsky stated that regarding drainage, there is an existing easement on one portion of
the property, and that casement does not go anywhere, so the options are they can get additional
easements (o the south to go away from Baja, as the land actually drains and down to one of
the tributaries of Town Creek and make its way back to the lake; or they can outflow to Baja,
but they have an issue with depth and making it all work, so it is up to them on which way.
Mr. Roznovsky said that regardiess of what they choose, a drainage has to be provided. Mr.
Roznovsky said that they are providing a detention pond as shown on the site plan. Mr.
Roznovsky said that part of their drainage study, they have to prove what size pond they need,
and if they can reduce the footprint, they might be able to get a couple more houses for the
development. Mr. Roznovsky said that the site plan currently is close to the minimum lot size.
Jon Bickford asked if they would need to ask for a variance. Mr. Roznovsky said that right

now he did not think that they needed a variance.

M. Roznovsky said that the total impact fees for the development are $16,000, and the assessed
value of the homes and their estimated sales price is $150,000 - $200,000, and they used
$150,000 valuation as an estimate, which is approximately $2,300 per year in taxes. M.

Roznovsky said that they have not advised the square footage of the homes.

01/09/18 Councit Meeting Minutes - Page 19




John Champagne asked about the drainage of Baja, which runs from the west to the cast. Mr.
Roznovsky said that was correct, there was an casement granted years ago that alowed some
of the drainage toward the middie of Baja and out, but that easement does not currently go
anywhere, so it goes into an easement and stops. Mr. Roznovsky said that the easement was
regraded a couple of years ago so it all goes back toward MLK and then down to the creek.
Mr. Roznovsky said that this development was at the very western and southern end of Baja.
Mr. Roznovsky said that they are proposing a cul-de-sac with the four homes. John

Champagne said that he was excited that they are going to do Baja and get the drainage.

Mr. Roznovsky said there is not much to the project, and they are still in the preliminary stages,
but the City has the ability to serve them water and sewer. Mr. Roznovsky said that they still
need to look at the drainage and get easements, if needed. Mr. Roznovsky said that the
developer is Walker Montgomery Community Development Corporation and said that they
have done a similar type development in Willis. Mr, Foerster said that he was not aware of
any complaints with the City of Willis. Jon Bickford asked Mr, Foerster if he was familiar
with the developers. Mr. Foerster said that he was familiar with the fact that they have done

construction in a small subdivision in Willis.

Mr. Roznovsky said that the study has nothing to do with approval of the plans or construction

drawings or plats.

Rebecca Huss moved to accept the Utility and Economic Feasibility Study for the 1.574 acre
Walker Montgomery Community Development Corporation Baja Road Single Family

Development. T.J. Wilkerson seconded the motion.

Discussion: T.J. Wilkerson asked if they were going to look at changing the name of the street
known as Baja, because they always wondered where it came from, you have MLK and then
Baja. T.J. Wilkerson said that “Baja” in Spanish means “low,” so they need to look at changing
it. John Champagne said that they named it right. T.J. Wilkerson said that they did not name
it right. John Champagne asked if it was not low. T.J. Wilkerson said that the strect name
where the people are does not represent them correctly. Mayor Jones asked what the process

was to change the street name. Mr. Roznovsky said that was a City street, so if the City wants

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 20




I5.

to change it they can. Rebecca Huss said that they changed Wade Street to L.A, Washington
Street with a motion from City Council. Jon Bickford said that he would ask the local residents
what they want to name the street. T.J. Wilkerson said they have already done that, so they

will get back with them.

The motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding a proposal from Jones and Carter for the

preparation of a City Geographic Information System (GIS).

M. Yates presented the information advising that this was for the City Engineer to put into
place a Geographic Information System (“GIS™) and to place approximately 25 layers to the
system, with multiple additional layers to be added in the future. Mr. Yates advised that the
layers could include as built plans, zoning district maps, fire hydrant locations and a multitude
of other layers. Mr. Yates said that a GIS system is a fundamental element of a growing City.
Mr. Yates said that he compares it to a water and sewer master plan or a capital improvement

plan for the City, and said he felt that it was just as important and vital to proper City planning.

John Champagne asked if this information would be available digitally or in hard copy. Mr.
Yates said that it would be either one, Dave McCorquodale said that the City Engineer’s, he
assumed, already used GIS data with the maps that they provide the City. Rebecca Huss said
that they already have some of the layers that they are discussing putting in. Mr. Roznovsky
said the layers that the City has is all the water and sewer overall and zoning in GIS. Mr.
Roznovsky said what is not in GIS and what the main bulk of this proposal is you will go to a
section of the street and you can pull up the construction plans, you can click on a line that will
show you the material, installation date and date of the plans; they can track things like the last
time the property was surveyed or smoke tested, Mr. Roznovsky said that this will also track
repair issues, so they can receive a copy of a work order and they will put in the repair on that

point so that they can see where all the water leaks were in 2017.
Jon Bickford asked whether the 4-square mile City of Montgomery really needs this program.

Mr. Roznovsky said that this is a time saving tool, and with all the development that comes

into the City, the plans will be included. Mr. Roznovsky said that all the plans for the lift

01/05/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 21




stations will be included as well as all the facility data. Jon Bickford said that if this is a time
saving tool, who will it save time for and how much time will it save in hours, Mr. Roznovsky
said that it would be hard to say in hours, but gave an example related to Gulf Utility, Mr.
Roznovsky said that if Gulf Utility goes out in the field and they have a waterline leak that they
can’t locate, currently the process is figure out where it is and then they go back to the office
and find the plans that apply and go back out to the site. Mr, Roznovsky said that with the GIS
system, which is a web based version that is either mobile or on computer, so they would pull
up the plans where they are. Jon Bickford said that he would like to see the cost benefit analysis
that says if they spend this amount of money then you will save this much, because if they are
not going to save enough, they are better off not having the system. Jon Bickford said that
while it would be nice to have, these programs can grow into monsters with storage and extra
servers and other related costs. Jon Bickford said that he wanted to make sure that if the City

is going to do this, they do a study with a real cost benefit analysis.

Rebecca Huss said that they would be paying $7,200 per year for the GIS service. Mr.
Roznovsky said that is what the proposal is for Jones and Carter to host the GIS service. Jon
Bickford asked about how much storage the fees were based on. Mr. Roznovsky said that was
the whole system. Jon Bickford asked if that was covering unlimited storage forever. Dave
McCorquodale said that this software is the standard, no better or worse, for geospatial data,
and for the City to work on anything less would be for example, “why do you need that
calculator or accounting machine,” it is that analogy. Jon Bickford asked if the cost was $7,200
per month or year, Mr. Roznovsky said that it would be $7,200 per year, which is what in the
proposal to build out the layers for the GIS system, and to attribute all the information,
construction plans, assets, facilities and everything the City has on file that is public, with the
exception of private plans. Mr. Roznovsky said that they would also include developer
agreements and developer areas. Jon Bickford asked if they had an estimate of how many
pages of information that would include. Mr. Roznovsky said that he did not know how many
pages of information that would be, but he could give examples of systems. Jon Bickford asked
if the $7,200 per year price was from Jones and Carter. Mr. Roznovsky said that the proposal
is a lump sum build out price of $20,000 to build the system, and then they would have the
monthly maintenance of $300 or $600 to host the program and have it online and make updates
on a monthly basis. Jon Bickford asked if they had the proposal. Mr. Roznovsky advised that

it was included in the agenda pack. Jon Bickford asked if there was a copy of the draft contract

01/0%/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 22




included in the pack. Mr. Roznovsky said that was the proposal, which is a standalone and
references their contract with the City. Jon Bickford said that he would really like to
understand the $7,200 per year, because they could get a new development and they get
drawings in, and asked when they are going to come back to the City and say that they never
planned on the City having so much in the GIS system and they need to raise the price. Jon
Bickford said that he wanted to know the threshold for the cost or that they were never going
to raise their price for the system. Jon Bickford said that he would like to see the contract. Mr.
Roznovsky said that they would be glad to table this matter and discuss the information
together to answer any questions that Council might have. Jon Bickford said that storage is
expensive, and asked how they are storing the information and do they have a data center. Mr.
Roznovsky said that they have included that information in the pack, and said that they have
an offsite in Houston and they also store the information in their own office and corporate

office.

John Champagne asked who at Jones and Carter would be tasked with this project. Mr.
Roznovsky said that they have a GIS team, which includes GIS operators who build the system

out and perform all the updates and maintenance.

Dave McCorquodale asked about the interface, and said that on some cities’” web sites he can
pull up their maps. Mr, Roznovsky said that there will be two interfaces, one for the public,
which will provide the basic information of the City, such as zoning, annexation, parks and
buildings, but no information regarding utilities or anything like that, as it is a safety concern.
Mr. Roznovsky said that the City’s private side would include a log on to the web site, and will
have all the public information, but will also include all the public facilities, water and sewer,
drainage, plans, plats, agreements, facility data, and repair history built into the system. M.
Roznovsky said that as they build out the city, they would commit a couple hours per month
to put single family permit information into the system. Mr. Roznovsky said that they had met
with Mr. Rick Hannah, City Building Inspector, because he currently is using a tracking system
that may have capability to upload some of that information automatically into the GIS system.
Mr. Roznovsky said that they would be able to include the information on the City’s web site.
Mr. Roznovsky said that they will get a temporary login, for one of the recent sites that they

set up for the City or Burnet, and they have the same set up with a public and private side; that

01/05/18 Councii Meeting Minutes - Page 23




way City Council can look at the information and then they can meet during the month with

Jon Bickford to go over the terms of the contract and answer any questions.

Mr. Yates asked what would happen if the City no longer used Jones and Carter. Mr.
Roznovsky said that the data would be turned over to the City, and said that they could also
provide hosting services separate from their contract. Rebecca Huss asked if the system was a
proprietary system or was it a standard industry-wide program. Mr. Roznovsky said that the
program was commercially available software, ARC GIS and is available. Rebecca Huss said
that they were not committing to Jones and Carter and the data will belong to the City of
Montgomery, Mr, Roznovsky said that he thought that the proposal stated what happens to the
data if the contract with Jones and Carter ended, stating that the data would be provided on
multiple discs and provided to the City. Rebecca Huss asked if there was a way to get a copy
of another contract with a competitor so they could see if the terms are roughly analogous. Mr.
Yates said that he could get a copy of another contract. Mr. Yates said that anyone that has
this system for three or four years would easily have 150 - 200 layers on the system. Jon
Bickford said that he did see where they are going to pay for each time they have to add to the
system. Mr. Roznovsky said that would be for the private items. Mr. Roznovsky said that
when a new subdivision comes into the City, those public plans and drawing those lines are
what is included in the base fee. Jon Bickford said that gets included for free. Mr. Roznovsky
said that was correct. Jon Bickford said that this is too good to be true. Jon Bickford said that
GIS is really a great tool, Jon Bickford said that he just needs an absolute statement that says
this is it and as things come in to the system they will not be charging any more, which is fine

with him, but he wants it in writing,

Mayor Jones said that the initial cost is $20,000 and then the maintenance fee, Mr. Roznovsky
said that there were two options for maintenance: a) $300 per month for just normal
maintenance and updates, not putting in new information just bare bones to keep the system
running; and b) $600 per month is the updates that come in. Jon Bickford said that it is $7,200
and for the extra $300 per month it would include new plans and development, Jon Bickford

said that they could not afford to not include the extra $300 per month.

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 24




16.

Rebecca Huss moved to table item #15, the GIS System, pending provision of additional
information. Jon Bickford asked that they table for four weeks, because he will not be available

in two weeks. T.J, Wilkerson seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Buffalo Spring Bridee Report by the City Engineer,

Mr. Roznovsky advised that the contract times started last week on Thursday, January 4, 2018
and the Notice to Proceed was issued to the contractor. Mr. Roznovsky advised that the
equipment was moved on site yesterday, they had a preconstruction meeting with the contractor
today and for the rest of this week the contractor will be moving additional equipment in and
getting the initial barriers put up, and according to the contractor the demolition will begin on
Monday. Rebecca Huss asked what the demolition would include. Mr. Roznovsky said that
there would not be any explosives, just slowly working their way through. Mr. Roznovsky
said that they contractor has until the end of the week to provide his first construction schedule,
so what they will do is go through that and present the milestones to City Council at the next

meeting.

Jon Bickford asked when they feel like the bridge is going to be done. Mr, Roznovsky advised
that the contract time is six months, but said that the contractor is stating that he will be in
advance of that time period, so once they receive the schedule of construction they will present
it to City Council and let them know where they stand, and then every meeting, as they have
been doing, will update them on the bridge schedule and progress. John Champagne asked if
the contractor falls behind there will be ramifications. Mr. Roznovsky said that was correct,
there are liquidated damages in the contract and if the contractor starts slipping off the schedule,

he will begin to receive letters.

Mayor Jones asked if he was assuming that the roads leading up to the bridge will have to be
cut completely out, Mr. Roznovsky said that when you look at the bridge, where the concrete
ends and asphalt begins, they are going approximately 80 feet back on the south side and 60
feet back on the north side, and all that asphalt and everything will be replaced because it all
has to be dug down, rebuilt, waterline, sewer line and drainage pipes will be going in, and a lot
of the asphalt has been undermined. Mayor Jones asked about the status of the waterline on
the bridge. Mr. Roznovsky said that the waterline and also the bridge construction meeting

was held today and the notices to proceed were issued and the contractors will be working

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 25




simultaneously to get the projects done, and they will have roughly the same time frame, if not
sooner, because once the bridge contactor has built everything up to where the waterline goes,
they will install the waterline and the bridge contactor will bury the tine and proceed on with
the project. Mr., Roznovsky said that they will have roughly the same time period for both

project. Mayor Jones said that they are excited that dirt is about to move on the projects.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Counci reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading

or for any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet

the qualifications in Sections 551.071(consultation with attornev), 551,072 (deliberation regarding

real property),551.073 (deliberation regarding gifis), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076

{deliberation regarding security devices), and 355]1.087 (deliberation regarding economic

development negotiations) of Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas.

17. Convene into Closed Executive Session as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Aet,

Chapter 551 of the Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in the

following:
a) 551.071 (confidential consultation with the City Attorney); and

b) 551.072 {deliberation regarding real property).

Mayor Jones convened into Closed Executive Session at 7:38 p.mn.

18. Convene into Open Session,

Mayor Jones reconvened the Open Session at 8:11 p.m.~

POSSIBLE ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION:

19, Consideration and possible action, if necessary, on matters deliberated on during Closed

Executive Session with the City Attorney.

There was no action taken by City Council.

COUNCIL INQUIRY:

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 26




Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect. 551.042 the Mayor and Council Members may inquire about

a subject not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to recitation of existing policy

or a statement of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation or

decision shall be limited to a proposal to place on the agenda of a future meeting.

Rebecca Huss stated that she was pretty shocked, appalled and disgusted by the electronic sign at
Brookshire Bros. that got approved, that apparently conforms to the City’s sign regulations, which she
discussed with Mr. Yates before Christmas. Rebecca Huss said that she has been feeling that some of
the signs along SH 105 are not necessarily in keeping with what the City is looking for, and would like
to propose that Mr. Yates speak to the Planning and Zoning Commission about updating the Sign
Ordinance to have a definition strengthening the regulations, because she does not want to see the
plywood signs, blinking and flashing signs. John Champagne said that Ransom’s is a nice prototype.
Rebecca Huss said that she had a problem with the Brookshire Bros. sign. Jon Bickford said that he
wanted to say he told them so, and asked who was the first one to put one of those signs up? Jon
Bickford said that it was the City of Montgomery. Rebecca Huss said that Ransom’s sign was up first,
but either way the Brookshire Bros. sign is worse and it is apparently legal. Rebecca Huss said that
since the Planning and Zoning Commission has done a good job in other things, she would like them
to extend their mandate to look at updating the sign ordinance. Mr. Yates said that he would advise

the Commission.

ADJOURNMENT

Rebecca Huss moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:14 p.m. Dave McCorquodale seconded the motion,

the motion carried uagnimously.

Date Approved:

Mayor Kirk Jones

01/09/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 27



MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING and REGULAR MEETING
January 23, 2018
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Kirk Jones declared a quorum was present, and called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

Present: Kirk Jones Mayor
John Champagne, Jr. City Council Place # 2
Rebecca Huss City Council Place # 4 -

Dave McCorquodale City Council Place # 5

Absent: Jon Bickford City Council Place # 1
'T.J. Wilkerson City Council Place # 3
Also Present:  Jack Yates City Administrator
Larry Foerster City Attorney
Susan Hensley City Secretary
Ed Shackleford City Engineer

Chris Roznovsky City Engineer

INVOCATION

John Champagne gave the invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

PUBLIC HEARING(S):

Convene into Public Hearing:

Mayor Jones convened into the Public Hearing at 6:02 p.m.

1. Receive Final Report from Planning and Zoning Commission their Public Hearing

held on January 22, 2018 for the purpose of giving all interested persons the right to




appear and be heard regarding the proposed expansion of the right-of-way of the City’s

Corridor Enhancement District from 300 feet to 750 feet. T'wo amendments to the District

puidelines have been proposed to be added. There are no changes recommended for the

District of FM 149. The two proposed amendments to the District cuidelines that have

been proposed to be added are:

a. A new area for the District is proposed on FM 1097 from the east boundary of the
City limits to FM 149. The District boundaries will be 300 feet on both sides of FM
1097; and

b. To extend the District boundary area from 300 feet to 750 feet on both sides of SH
105 within the City limits.

Mr. Yates advised that the Planning and Zoning Commission met last night, with
approximately 20 citizens in attendance. Mr. Yates stated that he would say that there was
not opposition to the proposal. Mr. Yates said that there was one person that had a building
that was about to be torn down and their concern was about the reconstruction of the
building and whether they would have to construct the building according to the new
standards. Mr. Yates said that he had advised that person that he thought that the building
would have to conform to the standards because the Code requires that when there is more
than 50 percent of a structure demolished, you are required to build it according to the
current guidelines. Mr. Yates said that following the Planning and Zoning Commission
Public Hearing all the members present voted unanimously to recommend the approval of

the Corridor Enhancement District Ordinance.

Dave McCorquodale moved to accept the Final Report from the Planning and Zoning

Commission. Rebecca Huss seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (3-0)

. Public Hearing - for the purpose of giving all interested persons the right to appear and be

heard regarding the proposed expansion of the right-of-way of the City’s Corridor

Enhancement District from 300 feet to 750 feet. Two amendments to the District

puidelines have been proposed to be added. There are no changes recommended for the

District of FM 149. The two proposed amendments to the District guidelines that have

been proposed to be added are:

4. A new area for the District is proposed on FM 1097 from the east boundary of the

01/23/18 Councii Meeting Minutes - Page 2




City limits to FM 149. The District boundaries will be 300 feet on both sides of FM

1097 and
b. To extend the District boundary area from 300 feet to 750 feet on both sides of SH

105 within the City limnits.

Mayor Jones convened the Public Hearing at 6:05 p.m.

Mr. Yates reviewed the provisions of the Corridor Enhancement District with maps
detailing the areas involved. Mr. Yates advised that the existing ordinance was passed in
2008, and called the O’Reilly or Beautification Ordinance, and the City Council had stated
that it was to enhance the appearance and perception and influence the ambiance of the
City. Mr, Yates stated that the Texas Local Government Code authorizes the City Council
to regulate the erection, construction and reconstruction of buildings inside the City. Mr,
Yates said that the City Council went through this same process in 2008, with the Planning
and Zoning Commission review of the ordinance, and the Commission recommended the

ordinance to the City at that time.

Mr. Yates said that the original ordinance is saying that SH 105 extending from the eastern
boundary of the City limits to the western boundary of the City limits, and FM 149
extending from the northern boundary of the City limits to the southern boundary of the
City limits, and the entirety of the Lone Star Parkway extending from SH 105 on the east
to SH 105 on the west is included in the Corridor Enhancement District. Mr. Yates said
that the existing ordinances stated that industrial area i1s partially exempt from this
requirement, provided that the main entrance of the building visible from the main entry
"~ ways and corridors shall be 100 percent covered with the improved materials and the
remaining exterior facades must be at least 50 percent covered by wainscoting or approved
materials. Mr. Yates said that the Corridor Enhancement area materials mnust be natural
stone, brick, wood, fiber or cement siding (Hardiplank), stucco or siinilar materials, precast
concrete and exposed aggregate concrete, and any other acceptable material that is not

metal, or as City Council approved about six months ago, they excluded cement blocks.

Mr. Yates s.aid that during August of 2017 City Council and the Planning and Zoning

Commission held a Joint Workshop Meeting that was a public meeting, because the

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 3




Planning and Zoning Commission had thought about exte'ndjng the distance of the Corridor
Enhancement District from 300 feet on SH 105 to 750 feet, because of the Kroger Store.
Mr. Yates said that in 2008 they thought that development along SH 105 would be close to
the highway, but as Kroger built they were way beyond the 300 feet. Mr. Yates said that
Kroger built a very nice brick building, but everyone tealized that they were setting the
standard of where the development would be along SH 105 so there was a discussion about
whether or not to go from 300 feet to 750 feet. Mr. Yates said that since that time the topic
has been on the Planning and Zoning Commission’s agenda three of the four months since
August, and the Commission settled on the 750 feet guideline. Mr. Yates said that the

Commission held a Public Hearing on the Corridor Enhancement District Amendments last

night.

Mr. Yates said that something ¢lse that has changed since 2008 is the development of FM
1097, which is going to be more commercial development than residential, so what is
proposed is to go to 750 feet from the center of the right of way along SH 105 and to add
the area of FM 1097 at 300 feet on either side of the highway.

John Champagne asked if the map was representing what Mr. Yates is discussing. M.
Yates advised that it was the area involved. Mr. Yates said that he had received several
calls over the last couple of weeks asking why they were receiving notices of the Public
Hearing. Mr. Yates said that State law requires this particular type of notice and the

boundary to let everyone know about the changes.

Mayor Jones said that he wanted to state that regarding the map, the FM 149 portion is not
shown, because there is no change being made to that area, but all of FM 149 inside the
City limits is included in the Corridor Enhancement District, at a distance of 300 feet.
Mayor Jones said that citizens on FM 149, have been operating under the ordinance since

2008.

An unnamed citizen asked if the City was talking about 300 feet on ecach side of the road.
Mr. Yates said that was correct and said that what it has been since 2008. A citizen asked
about FM 1097 and what the setback would be. Mr. Yates advised that it would be 300
feet on either side of the highway.

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 4




Mayor Jones asked if this ordinance applied to both commercial and residential. Mz, Yates
said that was correct, it would apply to both commercial and residential. Mayor Jones said
there were not too many metal paneled homes being built. Mr. Yates said that this

ordinance would not be retroactive, it would be for future development.

Mr. Mike Newman asked if this would be changing the area along Caroline Sireet to
commercial. Mr. Yates advised that it would not, and said that this does not have anything
to do with zoning it is just regarding the fagade structure materials. Mr. Newman asked if
his home would be grandfathered because it is existing. Mr. Yates said that was correct.
Mr. Newman asked if he was to sell his home, would that grandfather status transfer to the
new homeowner. Mr. Yates said that it would transfer and go with the land. Mayor Jones
said that Mr. Newman was governed by the Historic District, so that would override the

Corridor Enhancement District, since it has siricter controls.

!

Rebecca Huss said that some people received notices because they are within a certain
distance of the Corridor, so they are not actually within the Corridor, but in the notification
area. Mr. Yates said that Mr. Newman was in the Corridor Enhancement District because
it runs in the back of the lots, north of Caroline. Mr. Newman said that Caroline Street is
in the Corridor area. Mr. Yates said that the Corridor Enhancement District runs along the
lot line, which is just the way it happened to fall and not the way that it was designed. Mr.
Newman asked what was the hope and ultimate gain for the City and people with this
ordinance. Mr. Yates said that he feels that it is just what they said back in 2008, that it is
to enhance the appearance and perception and to influence the appearance of the City. Mr.
Yates said that it could be said another way, it is to beautify the highway for property
owners and future property owners, just as any building code or provision provides. Mr.
Yates said that building codes are for public safety, it is not because the City wants to
charge a permit fee, it is where the community joins together to say they want to require
the appearance of all the nicer buildings. Mr. Yates said that it is also where the appearance
of one metal building in the wrong place could really harm the value of the surrounding
properties as well as the appearance. Mayor Jones said that Mr. Yates alluded to the fact
that this ordinance was nick-named the O’Reilly Auto Parts ordinance, and after that
building was built with just metal panels, the same group that authored the Historic District

ordinance came up with this Corridor Enhancement District, which was an overlay over

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 5




the other zoning. Mayor Jones said that it is not very strict in controlling things, it just
states that you can’t have metal panels or cinder blocks, you have to cover it with something
else. Mayor Jones sajd that there are other people in town, developers, that would like it to
be more restrictive, but they have not gone there yet and he did not know if they_ would
want to. Mayor Jones said that they have nicknamed the amendment to the ordinance, the
MecCoy’s amendment, because McCoy’s main building was within the 300 feet, but their
Jumber yard building was outside the 300 feet, so it is metal panels, which is what got

everyone thinking about the amendment.

A citizen asked what part of the residents on FM 149 is included with this ordinance.
Mayor Jones said that all of FM 149 is affected by the ordinance, but it has been since
2008, so if you own a home there, it is probably not made of metal panels and, unless you
are going to build a home out of metal panels, it will not affect them. Mayor Jones said

that the commercial sections of FM 149 is where it would have the most effect.

Mr. Mike Ogorchock said that in March of 2015, they prepared and submitted a POA and
deed restrictions, which they did on March 10, 2015, and they filed it with the County Clerk
on March 18, 2015, then City Council approved the PID on March 28, 2015. M.
Ogorchock said that part of what he is reading in the Corridor Enhancement District in
Section 98.391 Exceptions and Exemptions, which states that the provisions of this Article
shall not be construed to apply to property located within any planned development district
in which deed restrictions have already been approved by the City. Mr. Ogorchoclk said
that if the deed restrictions have not been officially approved by the City, but the City
requested that they prepare them and file them with the County, to him that is the same
thing. Mr. Ogorchock said that they do not think that they have done anything but enhance
the property, and said that it was one of the best looking properties around. Mr. Ogorchock
said that they require any fascia facing the highway to be stone and/or stucco. Mayor Jones
said that they might have to spend some time outside this meeting to discuss the deed
restrictions and how it applies to this new ordinance. Mayor Jones -said that if Mr.
Ogorchock is doing what he is saying he is doing, by everything that is facing the highway,
then he is probably going to be in compliance. Mr. Ogorchock said that the only thing that
they are not in compliance with is the side facia, which is metal, and said that the only two

remaining buildings in Reserve F are more than 300 feet from the highway. Mayor Jones

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 6




said that they will need to discuss the deed restrictions at another time, and said that if this
is going to be in conflict with your plans, then they need to discuss how to deal with that.
Mayor Jones said that he felt that they could work the issues out. Mr. Ogorchock thanked
City Council. Mayor Jones asked if the City Attormey agreed with that information. Mr.
Foerster said that they might need to table the ordinance so that they can address this issue,
and said that he had several emails back and forth with Mr. Ogorchock and did copy the
City Administrator and the Mayor. Mr. Foerster said the question that he was looking at
was when the PID was finally approved, he was asking if there was anything in the
reimbursement agreement or service and assessment plan that spoke to the deed restrictions
or any other improvements to the buildings in the PID. Mr. Foerster said that the only
thing that does speak to the buildings, is the deed restrictions themselves. Mr. Foerster
said that when you look at the deed restrictions and the other documents from 2015, those
documents and the Agreement between the City and the developer, did not really speak to
improvements regarding the structures themselves, it spoke to the drainage, streets,
utilities, etc. Mr. Foerster said the deed restrictions did speak to the buildings, but it does
not appear that they were incorporated into the agreement that they have with the
developer. Mr. Foerster said the deed restrictions further provide “that any improvements
or design guidelines” (paragraph 3.4 of the deed restrictions), which he had not had a
chance to review, “must be acceptable to any government authority”, which would include
the City of Montgomery, so it contemplates, as he reads it, that any deed restrictions that
do not satisfy the City ordinances will not supersede the City ordinance, but will be subject
to the City ordinance. Mr. Foerster said that the facility that they have there appears to be
a very attractive facility and he did not think that this amendment to the Corridor
Enhancement District as he knows, was really focused on the P1D, he felt that it just came
up today when Mr, Ogorchock brought it to their attention. Mr. Foerster said that he is not
prepared to recommend that the Corridor Enhancement Ordinance be approved tonight if
they still need to address and clarify how the deed restrictions and previous agreements
might affect Mr. Ogorchock’s development of the property. John Champagne said that it
was his understanding that there is an apparent conflict between what was initially agreed
upon, in terms of deed restrictions, and the new Corridor Enhancement District ordinance,
regarding this development. Mr. Foerster said that he could not say for sure that there is a

conflict yet because he has not studied the information, but it would appear that the deed

01/23/18 Councii Meeting Minutes - Page 7




restrictions, which he did not think were ever approved by City Council, they did require
deed restrictions as they would from any development. Mr. Foerster said that he did not
have any record that this City Council ever approved or needed to approve those deed
restrictions, they merely directed Mr. Ogorchock to have the deed restrictions that would
provide a mechanism for design guidelines for any structure in that park. John Champagne
said that he is assuming that is the crux of the concern right now. Mr. Foerster said that
was correct. Mayor Jones asked if by approving the PID and requiring him to have deed
restrictions did they, by default, approve the deed restrictions. Mr. Foerster said that was
the question that he had. Mr. Ogorchock said that he had been told that the City was going
to require a set of deed restrictions and a POA, which was a precondition. Mr. Yates said
that the City never saw the deed restrictions. Mr. Ogorchock said that they submitted them
to the City, and obviously they did not put them in front of City Council for approval; it
was probably an aftachment to the PID.

Mr. Yates said that there are two ways of looking at it, one way, if they approved the
ordinance, and it turned out that they needed to change it to satisfy the legal requirement
of Mr. Ogorchock’s property, that could be done. Mr. Yates said if they do not approve
the ordinance tonight, and someone came in with a building permit, between tonight and
the next meeting, then on FM 1097 and outside the 300 feet the City would not have any
recourse. John Champagne asked if they could approve the ordinance with a caveat.
Rebecca Huss said if they approve the ordinance, either he is grandfathered or they can
give him a variance, which is the way that it could go. Mr. Foerster said that was exactly
what he was going to suggest, and he had mentioned that in an email to Mr. Ogorchock
that either he qualifies already, or ifhe does not, the City Council could consider a variance
to that ordinance with respect to that park. Rebecca Huss said that she felt Mr. Yates was
right, if they think it is important enough to preserve the quality of the building that is going
on, then they do not want to hold it up for something that is dealing with something that
has aheady been built and risking that something new will be built that does not meet our
standards. Rebecca Huss said that she would prefer to deal with this matter offline and as
needed. Mayor Jones said he agreed with that and said they can work it out through other

channels.

Mayor Jones asked that anyone wishing to speak at the Public Hearing to stand and state

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 8




their name for the record.

Mr. Art Jansen said that while he did not like losing 300 feet of unrestricted property, he
thinks that the effort that the City has made to upgrade the 300 feet, especially along FM
1097 and areas, will be an improvement in the value of the properties. Mr. Jansen said that
for every square foot that they lose as unrestricted property they will make up per square
foot in other areas. Mr. Jansen congratulated the City Council for doing something good

for the City. Mayor Jones thanked Mr. Jansen.

Adjourn Public Hearings

Mayor Jones adjourned the Public Hearing at 6:32 p.m.

Convene into Regular Meeting

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to

speaking. each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. Council may not discuss or take any

action on an item, but may place the issue on a future agenda., The number of speakers along with

the time allowed per speaker may be limited.

Mr. William Simpson, City resident who lives in Buffalo Springs, spoke regarding the last Public
Hearing regarding the surcharges and rates that L.DC is charging Buffalo Springs. Mr. Simpson
said that he was asking for help and is here to be on record, and wanted to know if anything has
been done since Sara Countryman spoke last week, but something needs to be done and they need
help. Mr. Simpson said that their rates are going up, they are being charged a connection fee of
$21,000. Mr. Yates advised that connection fee is reimbursement for the relocation of the LDC
gas line on Lone Star Bend. Mr. Simpson said that their neighborhood is paying for that cost.
John Champagne said that all the LDC customers are paying that fee. Mr. Simpson said that there
were not that many customers, it is the eastern part of the City, plus they are paying legal fees.
Mr. Simpson said that he needs to file a formal letter to the City, which is the process that is on
the Railroad Commission’s web site, not to call Will Metcalf or the Railroad Commission. Mr.
Simpson said that somehow a group needs to get together and find out what we need to do to file

the formal complaint so they can get something done. Mr. Yates said that he was in the process

01/23/18 Councif Meeting Minutes - Page 9




of trying to figure out a solution. Mr. Simpson said that the problem is that until something goes,
they are probably going to get tired of seeing him because he is going to come to every meeting or
once a month to find out what is happening. Mr. Simpson said that they have public meetings
about everything else, so why did they get blindsided when maybe everyone knew this was coming
on. Mr. Yates asked if Mr. Simpson realized that City Council voted against the reimbursement.
Mr. Simpson said that he understood that, but something was filed wrong and asked if that was
correct. Mr. Yates said that was according to LDC, but he is still trying to confirm that information.
Mr. Simpson said that a little eastern part of the City is becoming the most unaffordable place to
live in Montgomery. Mr. Simpson said that it gets frustrating because every day he is hearing a
little bit more, which is like a cigarette in a ditch that pretty soon will end up a full fledge grass
fire, because the City is getting more and more younger and smarter people that are coming into
this neighborhood and things need to change. Mayor Jones said that he would suggest when Mr.
Simpson is talking to those folks, to ask them to write a letter also. Mr. Simpson said that is why
he is asking for help, because he needs to know what to put in the letters so they do not get rejected.
Rebecca IHuss asked to confirm that the Railroad Commission has told Mr. Simpson that he has to
go through the City. Mr. Simpson said that was correct, as a resident 6f the City of Montgoinery,
he has to file his formal complaint through the City. John Champagne said that the City has the
Franchise. Mr. Simpson said that if he lived outside the City limits, then he would go directly to
the Railroad Commission, Mayor Jones said that letters might help, but said that he could say that
between City Council and City staff we will do our best to fix this matter. Mr. Simpson asked if
he could get updates or does he need to come to the meetings, while he should come twice a month.
Rebecca Huss said that they would like to see him at the meetings, but she would certainly hope
that they could get something done. Mr. Simpson said that he felt it was ridiculous that they should
have to pay a connection fee for somebody else. John Champagne stated for the record, in the
years since he has been on City Council that has been a big problem for him. Mr. Simpson said
that in the past, not this Administration or City employees, but there were a lot of deals made way
back with developments and other instances, and said that as a community of Buffalo Springs, they
are paying for some of those things that were let go in the past. Mr. Simpson said that he feels like
a lot of the old stuff is coming fo a head, such as the poor construction on the granite that was
allowed to go in at Buffalo Springs, now the subdivision has to pay for that, not the developer.
John Champagne said that was a whole other matter. Mr. Siinpson said he knew that, but some of

the stuff that was granted to some of these developments on the east side, need to be looked into

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 10




to see if there is any way that they can do something or change anything that was given. John
Champagne said that this is an opportunity for them to vent and express their issues, but this is not
anything new for this City Council. John Champagne said that he reviewed the agreement again
last night, and it is not an exclusive agreement that LDC has with the City, the issue comes in with
infrastructure and when a line is laid for service you are pretty much locked in so the developer or
builder is the point of contact at that point. John Champagne said that CenterPoint has every
opportunity to do that, as well. Mr. Simpson said that he wants to ask for help from the City.

CONSENT AGENDA:

3.  Matters related to the approval of minutes for the Public Hearings and Regular Meeting
" held on January 9, 2018,

John Champagne moved to table the approval of minutes from the last meeting. Rebecca

Huss seconded the motion, the motion cairied unammously. (3-0)

4.  Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the follbwing Resolution:
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY CQUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY,
TEXAS REGARDING STAR OF TEXAS SENIORS LTD. AT LONE STAR
PARKWAY FOR SUPPORT AND LOCAL POLITICAL SUBDIVISON FUNDING.

Rebecca Huss said that in the comments it states that there is no numbers that the City
would be supporting the Star of Texas Sentors Ltd., and asked if they should assume that
it is not going to be a mega complex and it will just be 20-30 apartments. Mr. Yates said
that they had advised him that it was going to be the same as was proposed last year. Mayor

Jones said that the City Council did approve this same action last year.
John Champagne asked for clarification as to a local political subdivision funding. Mr.
Yates said that both, Blazer and Lone Star have asked for $2,000 help on their water tap

fee. Mr. Yates said the local political subdivision funding would be the City’s funding.

5. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolutions:

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 11




a) A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY,
TEXAS REGARDING BLAZER BUILDING TEXAS, LILC FOR SUPPORT AND
LOCAL POLITICAL SUBDIVISION FUNDING:; and

b) A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY,
TEXAS REGARDING BLAZER BUILDING TEXAS, LLC FOR SUPPORT OF
TWO TIMES PER CAPITA

Consideration and possible action to declare two (2) stoves from the Community Center to

be declared surplus property.

Rebecca Huss asked if it was really a good idea to sell used gas stoves, from a liability
stand point. Mr. Yates said not unless they think that there is something wrong with the
stoves. Mr. Mike Muckleroy, Director of Public Works said that there was nothing wrong
with the stoves. Mr. Yates said that he will ask with Rick Hanna, City Building Inspector
that question before they sell the stoves.

. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of an Escrow Agreement by and
between the City of Montgomery, Texas and Madsen & Richards, LLC (Dev. No. 1803)
for development located at 610 TLiberly Street, Montgomery, Texas 77356.

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of an Hscrow Agreement by and

between the City of Montgomery, Texas and BW Montgomery Investment LLC for

development located at Resiricted Reserve “H1” of the Buffalo Springs Shopping Center,
Phase 2. for BlueWave Express Car Wash located at 20210 Eva Street, Montgomery. Texas
77356,

Rebecca Huss said that she was a little concerned with the way that the Escrow Agreement
is written, because they are talking about the BlueWave Express Car Wash tract, butitis a
commercial subdivision of 18.48 acres in which they will buy some or all of it, and she

would like to be specific that the amount of the Escrow Agreement does not even remotely

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 12




cover any development of the entirety of the tract, but merely the amount of land that the
car wash will be located on, regardless of how much they purchase. Mr. Roznovsky said
that one clarification is referenced in Restricted Reserve HI, which is only the .82 acres
portion of the tract, and also the Exhibit A that is included, is the metes and bounds
description for the .82 acres along with that Exhibit to clarify that H1 is part of the 18.48
acres. Mr. Roznovsky said that the intent is that it is only applicable for Restricted Reserve
H1, which is the .82 acres, which is platted.

9. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:
A RESOLUTION BY THE DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES FOR
CONTRACTUAL DOCUMENTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR REQUESTING FUNDS
PERTAINING TO THE TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
PROGRAM (TXCDBG) CONTRACT NUMBER 7217320.

John Champagne moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. (Items 3-9) Dave

McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (3-0)

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

10. Consideration and possible action regarding Montpomery Economic Development

Corporation Report - Randy Moravec, MEDC Treasurer.

Mr. Moravec, MEDC Treasurer presented the MEDC Report to City Council, which is the
inaugural report of the MEDC to the City Council. Mi. Moravec stated that this particular
report was for the entire calendar year of 2017 and in the future the MEDC plans on issuing
the report on a quarterly basis to try and get the report to City Council within a month, at

the end of the quarter.

Rebecca Huss said that she knew the MEDC had compiled, for the first time ever, and she
appreciates it, a total of the 380 agreements or similar agreements that have been entered
into and what the liabilities are, and asked that they include that information in the reports.
Mr. Moravec said that he would do that, and said that they are over a 25 year period.
Rebecca Huss said that might be something that City Council, who have not been here for

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 13




25 years, might not be aware of all the contingent liabilities. Mayor Jones asked if Rebecca
Huss was asking for MEDC’s participation or the City’s total, or what. Rebecca Huss said
that if it is something that Randy Moravec has been involved with. Mr. Moravec said that
he simply obtained the information when he first got on the MEDC Board, and said that a
lot of the information does not change from one year to the next, but he could work with
M. Yates. Rebecca Huss asked if Mr. Moravec had put the information into a spreadsheet.
Mr. Moravec said that he had not, but said that at one time he had made an attempt and it
was quite cumbersome, but he could revisit that information. Rebecca Huss said that what
made her think of that was the contingent liability related to that information is something
that they need to keep in mind when they are doing anything. Mayor Jones said that another
thing that kind of complicates things is some of these contributions are one time and others
are over a ten year period. Mr. Moravec said that he will revisit that information. Mr.
Moravec said that there was also a request or concern about making a distinction between
full time and part time jobs, so-called core jobs; those really do not relate to retail activity,
which is what all of these projects are. Mr. Moravec said that once the medical center is
finished and employs positions, they will be core positions and they will try to identify
them separately for City Council.

Mr. Moravec asked for feedback from City Council. Mayor Jones said that for the sake of
all the folks attending, he asked Mt. Moravec to talk about the total numbers. Mr. Moravec
said that the employers would include, the Kroger Center, which includes the Kroger Store
as well as the associated businesses that are along that development, McCoy’s Building
Supply, Pizza Shack that will be opening February 5, T-Mobile Strip Center, Long View
Mini Golf and Heritage Place II. Mr. Moravec said that they have 128 full time jobs, 167
part time jobs, Mrs. Shannan Reid and Mr. Yates were the individuals that had compiled
this information and so they tried to identify those positions that were either local or came
from another area. Mr. Moravec said that they had a good amount of people that are
actually working in the City of Montgomery zip codes and are being employed locally.
Mayor Jones said that if they have a 77356 or 77316 zip code they might not be in the City,
but they are in the general area. Mr. Moravec said that on the other page they have the
Director’s various activities that she participated in and was responsible for. Mr. Moravec

said they also showed how many building permits were issued, showing separately the

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 14




residential and commercial permits with their valuations. Mr. Moravec said that once they
get the 2018 appraisals from Montgomery County Appraisal District, they will be able to

confitm the values.

Dave McCorquodale thanked Mr. Moravec for the information and said that it was a good
snapshot for those that do not get a chance to come to the MEDC Meetings. Dave
McCorquodale asked if quarterly reports were manageable. Mr. Moravec said that he
thought so, and said that the information will be recent enough and they will be able to
compile a report. Mr. Moravec said that if they did it less frequently, such as semi-annual
or annual, some of the information becomes stale. Mr. Moravec said that now that they
have a template, he feels that Mr. Yates and Mrs. Reid will be able to plug in the figures
very easily. Mr. Moravec said that if City Council has questions or they see that there are
things that are not included, he asked them to please let them know so that they can

accommodate the request.

Rebecca [uss said that she definitely appreciated the chart, and said that there was an epic
amount of revisionist look at last year especially in terms of the activities on the FM 149
project. Rebecca Huss said that the last item on the second bullet point of the activities is
something that MEDC passed on and the Director was asked not to be involved with.
Rebecca Huss said that she did not know what the land use and zoning items on the report
were for, because the City has a Planning and Zoning Commission and they do a lot of
good work, and the City relies on them to update a lot of things. Rebecca Huss said that
as the gentleman that spoke during the public hearing, that quality that we are trying to
bring to Montgomery, and the nuts and bolts of that come from the Planning and Zoning
Commission, not anywhere else. Rebecca Huss said that she would like to have some
reality on some of the bullet points in the report. Rebecca Huss said that hotel development
is something that the First Hartford people and Jonathian White’s idea brought to us rather
than any MEDC, while MEDC might be a participant and they look forward to that, but it
is still a developer lead idea, not a staff idea. Mr. Moravec said that they did not mean to
imply that the Director was responsible for those items, it is just that she was a participant
and provided some input in those activities, but was never intended to imply that the

Director was solely responsible for those activities. Rebecca Huss said that looking at the

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 15




check register it seems ltke some of the things that MEDC has been accomplishing have
been on the to do docket for years and have been outsourced and we are paying a third
party to do those things. Mr. Moravec said that is correct. Mayor Jones said that was done
intestinally. Mr. Moravec said that when City Council is preparing the budget in the spring,
and if there are things that the City Council would like for them to consider, please let them
know in advance and they will ry to accommodate those requests during the budget
process. Rebecca Huss said that their particular contribution she felt this will be something
that they can use going forward and hopefully compare year to year what they have
accomplished, how much money they have and what is feasible. Mr. Moravec said that
hopefully they will have more resources with the sales tax, and said that they had a huge
amount of sales tax that came in during this past month, Rebecca Huss said that half the

time the State takes the funds back.

Mayor Jones thanked Mr. Moravec, Mrs, Reid and Mr. Yates, and said that it was a good

report.

Rebecca Huss moved to accept the MEDC Report as presented by Mr. Randy Moravec, Dave

McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (3-0)

11. Consideration and possible action on Department Reports.

A.  Administrator’s Report — Mr. Yates presented his report to City Council. Mr. Yates

advised that he met with the Planning and Zoning Commission and prepared
information regarding flashing electronic signs, which went really well. Mr. Yates
said that he feels like they will be ready to look at a draft ordinance at the next
meeting. Rebecca Huss asked if Mr. Yates had asked them about plywood signs
also. Mr. Yates said that he had not. Mr. Yates also reported on his meetings and
activities throughout the monti,  Mr. Yates stated that they had conducted a
Facilities Tour on Saturday, January 13" but they will need to reschedule the
weekday Facilities Tour because of the ice storm. Mr. Yates said that they are
working on getting the financial information for Waterstone regarding the waterline
because the owner is mterested in paying. Mr. Yates said that they were working

on the grand accounting for the costs related to the waterline and what the

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutas - Page 16




reimbursement would be and how much funds are in the escrow account fund, so
he considered that a positive step.

Mr. Yates advised that he had made an emergency purchase during the month. Mr.
Yates advised that Mr. Muckleroy had come to him and said that the booster pump
at Well #3 had gone down and needed to be replaced. Mr. Yates said that Well #3
is the Catahoula Well and principal well for the City. Mr. Yates asked Mr.
Muckleroy for an explanation as to why he felt that it was an emergency. Mr.
Muckleroy advised him that there is only one pump running four hours a day, and
if they lost one of the pumps they could be in a service flow situation and not be
able to provide the proper quantity of water. John Champagne asked to confirm
that they acquired a backup pump. Mr, Yates said that was correct at a cost of
$5,900. Rebecca Huss said that she thought it was interesting that before they even
paid off the debt for the Catahoula Well, the booster pump is obsolete. Mr.
Williams advised that this was a booster pump separate from the well pump, which

were there prior to the Catahoula Well.

John Champagne said that he and Mr. Yates had spoken briefly about the
development and building permits, and currently the average tiine for a builder to
get a permit should be two days. Mr. Yates said that was after the plans have been
approved, and getting the plans approved can take up to a week. John Champagne
asked about a residential home, and whether that would take a week. Mr. Yates
said that it could take a week to approve the plans for a residential home. Mr. Yates
said that he 1s in the process of changmg it to where Rick Hanna can approve the
plans rather than sending them off to Mr. Chapman. John Champagne said that he
would encourage Mr. Yates to see if they can shorten the time for approval. Dave
McCorquodale said that as a point of comparison, he works with a lot of cities in
the Houston area, and a lot of them are 7-10 business days to get plans approved
for a swimming pool, and said that the plans and packs that are submitted are not a
one-form application. Dave McCorquodale said that drawings are not small. John
Champagne said no they are not. Mayor Jones asked if changing over to Rick
Hanna shorten the turnaround time for plan reviews. Mr, Yates said that it would.

Mr. Yates said that he also has a draft memo that he sent around today about

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 17




building permits and who signs the permits, and for new permits he would sign
them, but mechanical and trades, afier the initial permit has been issued, can be
signed by Autumn Redman, Utility Billing and Permit Clerk. John Champagne
said that if Mr. Yates is out of town, he is sure that there will be a Plan B in place.
Mr, Yates said that there would be.

Public Works Report — Mr. Muckleroy presented his report to City Council. Mr.

Muckleroy advised that their heavy trash weekend had a low turnout due to rain.
Mr. Muckleroy advised that they had winterized all the facilities, repaired a
sinkhole on the sewer line on Eva Street across from Lift Station #5 and continued
the hydrant tagging project. Mr. Muckleroy advised that two of his staff received

their Wastewater Collection II licenses.

Mr. Muckleroy reported that they had located the source of the water accountability
issue. Mayor Jones asked about the Water.accountability issue and asked how they
solved the problem. Mr. Muckleroy advised that Mr. Williams had emailed himn
and advised that he thought that it looked like the source might be coming from
around Waterstone because that lift station had a high run time. Mr. Muckleroy
advised that they went up to the lift station and they could see a clear stream of
water coming in heading back toward the Plez Morgan area, so they backtracked it
and went all the way back to the well, because there is nothing on the sewer line
going that way. Mr. Muckleroy said that the cooling tower fill valve had stuck, and
is not something that is checked on a daily basis. Mr. Muckleroy said that the fill
valve had gotten stuck wide open and it is designed for the overflow to go into the
sanitary sewer system, so as fast as it was pumping in, it was going directly into the
sewer. Mayor Jones asked what size line was involved. Mr. Muckleroy advised
that it was a 1-inch line. Rebecca Huss said that it was 1.2 million gallons during
the prior month. Mr. Muckleroy said that to eliminate the problem in the future,
there was a meter on that feed line, so what they did was put a Beacon Meter on it
and they have it set up online so that if it starts running as soon as it hits 24 howrs

it will email him that there is an issue. Mayor Jones said good job.

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 18




John Champagne said that Mr. Muckleroy had indicated that Ryan Thoinas and
Francisco Salas had passed Wastewater Collections II test, and asked what that
means to the community. Mr. Muckleroy said that they are both legally able to
work on anything in the sewer collection system without having another operator
on site. John Champagne asked if that lowered the City’s cost or make us more
efficient. Mr. Muckleroy said that it males us more efficient because when they
are licensed, he can send one guy to work on a problem and not have to worry about
another person with a license. John Champagne said that when he lists that the
workers got a license, he wants to know how that makes them better, which Mr.
Muckleroy did so, to him that is important. Mr. Muckleroy said that, by law, they
are required to have certain licenses to work on the system. Mr. Muckleroy advised
that during the month they had 5 water taps, 3 sewer taps, 4 water leaks and 1 sewer
stoppage, they added more Christmas decorations to Cedar Brake Park, they had
the Christmas in Montgomery set up and clean up, turned off the pumps at Memory
Park during the hard freeze days to prevent damage. Mr. Muckleroy stated that the
docents at Fernland reported 467 visitors for the month and they provided 20 tours,
and for the calendar year totals they had 8,277 visitors and they provided 498 tours.
Mr. Yates said that last month Mr. Muckleroy reported that they had a tree fall
down on the electric line at the lift station and they received a $12,000 insurance

check a couple weeks ago.

John Champagne said that he has seen a number of bell valves fly off lately, so
there is going to be some water issues with residents and asked how that is going
to be handled. John Champagne said that he turned off one himself. Mr. Muckleroy
advised that most people did turn them off, however, they did find on Monday when
they came in they found a couple of meters that were running full tilt, one was the
sales trailer on Lone Star Bend, because they did not winterize anything and they
had a busted Ime that was running. John Champagne asked how that was going to
be handled from a billing standpoint. Mr. Yates advised that they can speak to him
and he will charge them for the water that goes through the meter. Mayor Jones
asked if they would give them a break on the sewer charges. Mr. Yates said that he

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 19




would. Mr. Muckleroy said that they would give them a break on the sewer, as
long as they know that it did not go into the sewer.

Rebecca Huss asked about the monthly door hangers, and whether they were really
necessary, because if they are talking about efficiency and best utilization of
people’s times, since notices are already sent in the mail. Mr. Muckleroy stated
that this will need to be a separate item on the agenda, and advised that he has
already spoken to Mr. Yates regarding the matter. Mr. Muckleroy said that Mr.
Yates has asked him to prepare something to bring to City Council, because he
would like to do away with the door hangers, because it is the same addresses each
month that use it for a notice of when they pay their bill. Mr. Muckleroy said that
when they receive the door hanger the customer has already received a bill and a
late notice in the mail, and in his opinion, because it is the same addresses month
after month, he would like to do away with them and go to a straight day of the
month, such as, the second Wednesday of the month would be cut off day if you
have not paid your water bill, no matter what day of the month it is. Rebecca Huss
said that by the time they get around to 40 addresses, getting in and out of the truck
takes a lot of time. Mr. Muckleroy advised that it takes three hours minimum to
put out the 40-50 door hangers. Mr. Yates said that a large majority of people that
get the door hangers come in right after they received the notice. Rebecca Huss
asked Mr, Yates if they need to have a resolution or will it just be guidance. Mr.
Yates advised that it would be an ordinance change. Rebecca Huss said that she
has been looking at the information month after month, and those hours add up.
Mr. Muckleroy said that Montgomery is one of the few cities that uses the door
hangers, they don’t take the time to hang a notice on the customer’s door afier they
have already been notified twice.

Police Department Report - Chief of Police James Napolitano presented his report

to City Council. Chief Napolitano said that he wanted to bring up two things, {1rst
he thanked Officer Bracht for assisting him regarding putting the data together to
get the trends of how more businesses and people in the City has changed for the
last several years, which they are getting completed. The Chief advised that this
year at the end of 2017 the City itself had 10,459 reports through the dispatch
system that they had to generate compared to last year that was 8,046. The Chief

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 20




advised that he had included a sampling of the types of calls that they are receiving
and what the officers are going through on a daily basis.

Chief Napolitano advised that he had also included the Racial Profiling Report, one
with warnings and one without warnings, and the reports are half and half, split
down the middle. The Chief stated that there has been a new law that was passed
by the State Legislature called the Sandra Bland Act, which means from now on
not only do that have to do this report, they have to give every individual a piece of
paper that states that if they need to make a complaint or if they would like to say
something nice about the officer, they can call a given number. The Chief advised
that they have to report every contact that they make with any citizen, and report
their racial status on the report. Mayor Jones asked if someone up in Austin looks
at these reports and say that they are out of line. The Chief advised that what they
can do is if they receive a complaint from a citizen, and if they see that the City of
Montgomery receives so many complaints, they will send an investigator down
here to investigate how they are conducting their traffic stops and whether they are
racial profiling. Dave McCorquodale asked about the telephone number that was
to be given out and asked if that would be a local number and who would be the
contact person. The Chief advised that it would be the phone number to City Hall,
so if they want to complain about an officer, they would call the station and either
speak to him or to the City Administrator and say that they want to make a
complaint, then they would make an ofﬁciél complaint. The Chief advised that
they would ask the person to come in, but they will also take the information over
the telephone. Dave McCorquodale asked if they had to do anything in house to
make sure that our internal process to review that complaint is being done properly.
The Chief said that he has to report those complaints to the State. John Champagne
said that the report shows that they are really focused on Caucasians. The Chief
advised that was correct; if they are violating the law that is who they pull over, but
did say that most of the time they can’t tell who is driving the vehicle. Chief
Napolitano said that this resulted from some bad police work conducted by some
people. The Chief advised that they are trying to do the best that they can do.
Mayor Jones said that they understand the City’s demographics, but if they were m

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 21




Houston the numbers would look a lot different. Chief Napolitano said that 80%
of the people that are arrested do not live inside the City of Montgomery, they come
through the City. The Chief said that they have a large influx of students and
shopperts, which they have seen a lot more traffic with the new Kroger Store. John
Champagne said that the Police Department is doing an excellent job.

Court Department Report — Interim Court Admimstrator Kimberly Duckett

presented her report to City Council. Mrs. Duckett said that with the new personnel
changes the Court numbers are still on the rise and very consistent. Mrs. Duckett
advised that her new Deputy Court Clerk, April Dupree, came to the Court with
experience, so she is very knowledgeable and able to catch on very fast. Mis.
Duckett said that they are trying to bring things up to speed with the previous resets
and trying to compile all of the Court dates to move forward to have more structure.
Mis. Duckeit said that she will be getting with Chief Napolitano regarding the up
and coming warrant roundup, which will occur in March 2018, so in April they
should see an increase m the warrant notifications. Mayor Jones asked if the Court
was staying caught up. Mrs. Duckett advised that they had two resets prior to her
being appointed Interim Court Administrator, so they are trying to compile all of
that, and February 1, 2018 is juvenile court, February 22, 2018 is a niassive attorney
docket, and March 22, 2018 is all the warrants that the warrant officer has called.
Mrs. Duckett said that the Municipal Court is getting caught up. John Champagne
asked about the reset cases. Mrs. Duckett said that a couple of months ago, prior
to the transition, several dockets were reset and that was approximately 40-50
people that had their court date reset. Mrs. Duckett said that there are some
defendants that have been drawn out for months, so they are trying to get caught
up.

Rebecca Huss asked about the $41,000 of collections, and asked why that figure is
not the same as the $37,000 total on the previous page of all the sums. Mrs. Duckett
said the $37,000 is actually court costs, fines and fees, and they have é bond amount
that comes in for the deferred disposition accounts. Mis. Duckett said that when
the deferred position is concluded they reverse the payment back into the systein,
which on her report shows the bond amount of $4,078.20 and then you add the
$37,256.86, which gets you to the $41,335.06. Mrs. Duckett said that every month

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 22




she has to apply the bond, once the accounts are dispositioned out of the system.
Rebecca Huss said that she has not seen the previous pages. Mrs. Duckett said that
she prefers the breakdown and said that it gives more knowledge. Rebecca Huss
said absolutely. Rebecca Huss then asked about the number of violations at 264,
but in the past they have had 400 violations and asked is Mrs. Duckett knew why.
Mirs. Duckett said that it was due to the turnover and they have had officers that
have been out, such as Officer Carswell, who is on leave, but they are actually
picking back up on citations. Rebecca Huss said that it fooked like there were fewer
citations, but more money. Mrs. Duckett said that was due to them working on the
warrants and collections, and they are making phone calls to advise people that they
have outstanding tickets and when their court date is because she would prefer not
to have a large docket. Mrs. Duckett said that as long as she can make phone calls
and send out notices to help people come in and take care of their citations, which
will help both the court and the defendants. Rebecca Huss said that presumably the
citations won’t go to collections, as well. Mrs. Duckett said that if it goes to
collections they have to split the fines with thein. Rebecca Huss asked if they could
get the year end charts that show all the different warrants and citations, because
she likes to see the year end information. Mrs. Duckett said that they are working
on that information, and said that prior to her taking over, a lot of documents were
wiped off of the computer so she did not have that form to generate. Mrs, Duckett
said that she is going to be working on ways to imnpert different charts. Rebecca
Huss thanked Mrs. Duckett. Mayor Jones asked if the warrant officer was
producing. Mrs. Duckett said yes, the warrant officer is producing and is making
a lot of phone calls, which is why they have so many on that particular docket,
which is prefty much a warrant only docket to help people come in and get them
back in front of the judge. John Champagne said an outstanding job. Mayor Jones
thanked Mrs, Duckett.

Utility/Development Report — Mr. Yates said that last month the utility department

brought in $104,540, permits were $8,624, and the Community Building brought
in $795. M. Yates advised that there were 15 new water accounts, 6 disconnected
accounts, and a total of 627 active accounts. Mr. Yates said that they had 4 new

residential building permits, 1 new commercial permit, and 2 photography penmits

01/23/18 Council Maeting Minutes - Page 23




for Fernland for a total of 20 photography permits. Mayor Jones asked if that was
an annual renewal. Mr. Yates said that it was an annual permit. John Chamnpagne
asked if the permit fee was $250. Mr. Yates said that was correct. Mr. Yates said
that there were 2 irrigation permits, 7 electrical permits, 4 mechanical permits, 8
plumbing permits and 4 sign permits for a total of 32 permits issued. Mr. Yates
advised that the software that Mr. Hanna has purchased has really been a help to
Ms. Redman in keeping track of the flow of the building permits and inspections.
Mr. Yates said that they really did not pay anything extra for the software; Mr.
Hanna purchased the program for $25,000 - $30,000, and we were able to tie into
the program because he did that for all of his clients, which is working out well.
M. Yates said the City account consumption as far as the water usage is doing well,
and Memory Park was down from 150,000 gallons in October to 116,000 gallons
in November and December at 50,000.

John Champagne said that he knew that no motor vehicles are allowed in Memory
Park, and said that there were some older people that were walking and some young
folks were riding their bikes on the trails, which is probably something that they
want in the Park. Mr. Yates asked if they wanted to ban bikes from Memory Park.
John Champagne said that kids want to have fun, he just wanted to mention it, and

he was not asking them to do anything.

Mr. Yates said that the Buffalo Springs Sewer Plant is staying at 1,000-2,000

gallons consumption.

Water Report — Mr. Mike Williams, with Gulf Utilities, presented his report to City
Council. John Champagne asked about the rental pump that had to be installed.
Mr. Williams stated that a rental pump was installed at Lift Station #5, because the
pump went out due to age. John Champagne asked if the initial pump was being
rented. Mr. Williams said that it was not a rented pump, but they had to get a rental
pump as a backup, as required by TCEQ, because they always have to have two
pumps in the wet well at all times. John Champagne said that they do not have a

backup pump in inventory to offset any rental costs that they would incur by doing

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 24




this. Mr, Williams said that they did not have a rental pump in inventory that would
fit that location. Mr. Muckleroy said that every lift station is different, and they
would have to have a backup for every lift station sitting on site. John Champagne
asked if there was a reason that every lift station has a different pump. Mr.
Muckleroy said that was cormrect, due to age and pumping capacity. John
Champagne said that standardization is not part of the plan. Mr. Roznovsky said
that there are two parts, you can have two different 5 HP pumps made that are
different makes and models so they would not be interchangeable, but there are
some lift stations that require 5 HP and some require 10 HP. John Champagne said
that they could standardize on a 10 HP or a 5 HP. Mr. Roznovsky said that is
something that they have been discussing, standardizing as they go forward with
new lift stations and when they redo lift stations. John Champagne said that they
do have a plan that is all written out, how attrition and replacement will take place.
Mr. Williams said that they do have a plan, and the written plan is in the process of
being done. Mr. Williams said that the average daily flow for December was
170,000 at 42% of the permitted value, which were elevated flows that were due to
the leak that they found in the cooling tower, so they should see those numbers
come back down. Mr, Williams advised that all effluent samplings were in
compliance for December. Mr. Williams advised that from November 18" to
December 17 they had a total flow of 7.951 million gallons of water, 109,000
gallons towards flushing and they sold 6,136,000 gallons resulting in a 79%

accountability, due to the previously discussed leak at the cooling tower.

Rebecca Huss asked if they ended the year without exceeding the permit limits.
Mr. Williams said that at the end of the year they did exceed the permit level.
Rebecca Huss said that it is really going to be embairassing to explain that we are
flushing money down the sewer. Mr. Williams said that the cooling tower just
draws water from that plant regardless of which well it is from, but they did.go over
591,000 gallons. Mr. Roznovsky advised that through to the end of the year they
went over 1.2 mnillion gallons, and said that he has had a conversation with Lone
Star Groundwater Conservation District (LSGCD) to let them know what had
happened. Mr. Roznovsky said they went back and looked, and there is a period of

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 25




time that the water meter was out, so when they did the calculation and value of the
run time back in, that is what pushed the amount over the limit of the permit, which
is why last month it showed that the City had a relatively good cushion. Mr.
Roznovsky said that when they talked to LSGCD, one of the interesting things was
the line break during Harvey and the Terra Vista Subdivision estimated amount was
right around 1.21 million gallons, so if that line break did not occur, they would
have been right at that number. Mr. Roznovsky said that regardless of the reason,
the water was used, but said that the City has early conversion credits by putting
the Catahoula Well on time, so they have around 127 million credits, so the cost to
use the 1.2 million gallons is around $95.00, a fee that the City pays to LSGCD so
that they do not charge a $4.00 per 1,000 gallon penalty. Mayor Jones asked if that
transaction is already in the works. Mr. Roznovsky said the transaction is already
in the works, so they had the discussion with LSGCD late last week to go over the
numbers, and they are reviewing the information and putting the paperwork
together. John Champagne said that instead of $4 per 1,000 over the limit, the City
is paying what. Mr. Roznovsky said they are paying 7 %2 to 10 cents per 1,000
gallons of water, and the $275 penalty fee plus the $4 per 1,000 over the 1.2 million
gallons. Mr. Roznovsky said that it was a substantial difference since the City had
the conversion credits built up. Rebecca Huss said that it was better, although they
saved the money, but the leak caused the City to use the conversion credits that they
might need later, so that is money that they did not spend this year; but they might
spend it 10 years from now. Mr. Roznovsky said that there were a lot of things that
were working against the City this year, in terms of water, with the electricity issues
and not being able to use the Catahoula Well got us here, but yes, once the credits
are gone, they are gone. Rebecca Huss said that she was talking about when you
have contractors drilling into the City’s water pipes, if you have people who have
things that waste 1.2 million gallons of water, etc., those are not things that are $95
worth of mistakes, that is really a $4 per 1,000 gallon mistake in terms of actual
cost, because the City will pay that later. Mr. Williams asked if that was something
that should be in place, if the contractor did drill into the line, that they pay that fee
for damages. Rebecca Huss said that you might get lucky and we might not bust

the limit for the year, but if they do and they are using their conversion credits it is

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 26




a cost. John Champagne said that it is a cost that needs to be recouped, because if
we were in business for ourselves this would be a bigger deal. Mr. Williams said
that as Mr. Muckleroy stated earlier, they put processes in place to help prevent that
from occurring if the cooling tower should do that again, they will catch it right
away. Rebecca Huss said that she thinks it is great that if they improve their
efficiency and we are basically charging ourselves and spending our maintenance
money on Idoing a better job, but again when other people are doing this, they are
not having to pay equally, we are trying to be better stewards of the taxpayers’

money.

John Champagne said that the electrical issue is going to come up again and he
knows that Mr. Foerster has written a letter to Entergy. Rebecca Huss said that it
is heartening that, especially over the last month, there have not been any problerms.
Mr. Roznovsky said that there was an issue the night of the December City Council
Meeting. Mr. Williams said that was when Well #4 failed to prime, which notifies
them that there is an issue. John Champagne asked if that occurred this past
December. Mr, Williams said that was correct. Mr. Roznovsky said that since that
time they have not had any more issues. Mayor Jones said that there has to be
something like a voltage regulator. Mr. Williams said that there are devices out
there that can clean up the electricity, and it is just a matter of what you want to
spend on the equipment. John Champagne said that there has got to be some type
of invoice that you can send to Entergy. Mayor Jones asked how much the solution
would cost. Mr. Williams said that a rough guess would be at least $50,000 for that
water plant. Mayor Jones said that Entergy is trying, but they are not getting off
the hook. John Champagne said that the issue with Entergy is chronic and it is
costing the City money. Mr. Williams said that there are other devices that could
monitor the electricity to pinpoint when they have a spike and the resulting
damages. Mayor Jones asked about putting in soft starts on the motors. Mr.
Williams said that they have not been having those issues lately., Mr. Roznovsky
said that after Entergy made their last round of improvements, everything seems
okay. Mr. Roznovsky said the problem was a power supply issue, which is from

Entergy, so they have made improvements and taken things off different legs to try

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 27




and improve the supply of power to solve that problem. Mr. Roznovsky said that
now they are in the period of is it going to work. Mr. Roznovsky said that they
have had one issue since August, 2017 at one of the plants. John Champagne said
that the problem is not fixed. Mr. Roznovsky said that they are continuing to
monitor the electricity, and letting Entergy know if there is a problem so that they

can make supply changes to help.

John Champagne said that he wanted to go on record as saying that “he knows
nothing about it, so for him to convey any type of advice would be stupid, but that
is why they have the City Engineer.” Mayor Jones asked if they could evaluate the
cost of fixing it ourselves. Rebecca Huss said no, she did not see where they should
be spending our money to fix a problem that is caused by somebody else. Mayor
Jones asked if they are supposed to just sit here. Rebecca Huss said that they need
to encourage Entergy, by forceful means, to do their job. John Champagne said
that there is a cost to the City, no matter what. Mr. Muckleroy said that what they
are saying is that they think the problem is fixed, because they have not had any
issues except for the one. John Champagne said that they have an issue. Rebecca
Huss said that they have an electrical expert in the audience, Mr. Mike Newman.
Rebecca Huss asked Mr. Newman whether he was aware of the issue with Entergy.
Mr. Newman asked if they were talking about voltage problems at the pump. Mr.
Williams said that was correct. Mr. Newman said that he thought the City had that
problem resolved, and Entergy had put the City on a different circuit. Rebecca
Huss asked Mr. Newman if he would be willing to maybe work with the City at
some point to provide advice on how they are doing and what they should do next.
Mr. Newman said that he would be glad to help the City with that information, but
first he would have to know all the problems that the City is having and what is
happening. Mr. Newman said that he had spoken to the people at Entergy five years
. ago, some of the engineers that he had worked with i the past to try and get some
information, and they did not think that it was their problem. Mr. Newman said
that he had advised Mr. Yates several years ago, that if the City is having a problem,
they have engineering people with Texas Public Utility Commission (PUC) that

can address the problem. Mr. Newman said that you can write a formal letter to

01/23/18 Councif Meeting Minutes - Page 28




them stating the problems, send them the City’s engineering data and Entergy
would reply, but they can put some focus on the problem, because the power
company’s rates go through them. Mr. Williams said that they had drafted a letter.
Mr. Roznovsky said that a letter was sent to Entergy, but he did not remember if
they sent it to the PUC or not. Mr. Foerster said that the letter did not go to the
PUC at that time. Mr. Roznovsky said that they got a response from the letter that
was sent to Entergy and they took action to make the improvements, and they went
to the monitoring phase to see what the improvements that they made did. Mr.
Roznovsky said that there were circuit changes made at Water Plant #2, and they
have not had issues at Water Plant #2; the issues at Water Plant #3 on FM 1097
have subsided and they are down to one incident in the last 4-5 months, so they are
continuing to monitor the information. Mayor Jones said that they need to
acknowledge that Mr, Newman’s expertise is out theré and Mr. Yates might want
to contact him, but they can’t solve it all here. Rebecca Huss said that it is good to
know that the PUC has engineers that can get involved as an option, so let’s use the
in-town expertise. Mr. Yates said that Mr. Newman had a conversation with Mr.

Glynn Fleming, so they know about Mr. Newman’s expertise.

Mr. Williams advised that the amount of the return to the wastewater treatment
plant was at 88%. Mr. Williams said that they should see this figure also reduce
next month.

Engineer’s Report — Mr. Roznovsky presented his report to City Council. Mr.

Roznovsky advised that Houston Street should be ready for asphalt by the end of
this week. Mr. Roznovsky said that it was ready last week, but during the cold snap
the cement and material supplier shut down, so they were not able to work on

Tuesday through Thursday of last week.

John Champagne stated that the curb is only going to be along the Cheatham
development. Mr. Roznovsky said that the two curbs stop halfway down. John
Champagne said that he saw them digging out the difeh and asked when the trees
will be removed. Mr. Roznovsky said the trees are already gone so the ones that

are remaining are there, but the others have been cut down.

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 29




Mr. Roznovsky said that they did approve plans for Dusty’s Car Wash on January
3, 2018, and returned comments to both CVS property and The Shoppes of
Montgomery property this month. Mr. Roznovsky advised that the transportation
improvement program 1s the project that they discussed a few weeks ago about
attempting to get Lone Star Parloway north on a program to receive funding to
improve that and be taken over by TxDOT, and they are schedule to talk to TxDOT
on the 1% of February.

Mayor Jones asked about the Plez Morgan resurfacing. Mr. Roznovsky said that
was initially submitted at the same time as the bridge, and they have been working
to get answers from FEMA on the project, and they have struggled to do so. Mr.
Roznovsky advised that the new FEMA coordinator for the Harvey Disaster has
been extremely helpful in helping the City out to follow up on this project, and he
had found that the project has fallen into a dark hole, so he is working to resurrect
the project and get it back up. Mayor Jones asked if it would pertain to the previous
storms, not Harvey. Mr. Roznovsky said that was correct, it is tied to the Bridge.
Mayor Jones said that they sure change personnel often. Mr. Roznovsky said that
was correct, but the current contact has been very helpful and consistent in helping
the City out with whatever they need with documents and the portal.

Financial Report and Quarterly Investment Report — Mr. Yates presented the report

to City Council. Mr. Yates advised that due to the ice storm last week, they only
have the summary page, but they should have a full report by next Tuesday and he
will send it out to City Council upon receipt. Mr. Yates said that the City is doing
all right with the balances of the funds for the year, and for instance, the General
Fund was $28,000 last month, the Utility Fund was $298,000, primarily due to some
large tap fees that came in, such as Blue Wave Car Wash had $56,000 in impact
fees, so last month they had $4,762,000 total funds and this month they had
$5,078,000. Rebecca Huss said that she and John Champagne agree that how they
are doing, relative to the budget, is an important point of government
accountability, and you can’t tell that from this report. Mr. Yates said that was

cotrect.

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 30




Rebecca Huss moved to approve the departmental reports as presented. Dave

McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (3-0)

12. Constderation and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance;

13.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCII OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY,
TEXAS, AMENDING AND MODIFYING ORDINANCE NO. 2008-02, AS AMENDED
BY ORDINANCE NO. 2014-03, AND AMENDING ARTICLE VII, “CORRIDOR
ENHANCEMENT,” OF CHAPTER 98 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE
CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS: BY AMENDING REGULATIONS
ESTABLISHING AN OVERLAY CORRIDOR ENHANCEMENT DISTRICT FOR THE
PURPOSE OF INFLUENCING CERTAIN EXTERIOR ARCHITECTURAIL ASPECTS
OF BUILDING CONSTRUCTION: EXPANDING THE 300-FOOT CORRIDOR
ENHANCEMENT TO 750 FEET FROM THE CENTER OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF
STATE HIGHWAY 105 IN THE CITY; DESIGNATING TEXAS STATE FARM ROAD
1097 EAST FROM THE CENTER OF THE RIGHT OF WAY IN THE CITY AS
WITHIN THE CORRIDOR ENHANCEMENT DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR THE
REPEAL OF ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITIH; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE; AND
EFFECTIVE DATE AFTER PUBLICATION AS PROVIDED BY LAW.

Rebecca Huss said that notwithstanding Mr. Ogorchock’s concerns, which she felt could

be dealt with separately, she felt that it was important to get this ordinance adopted now,
so she made a motion to adopt the Ordinance as previously read. Dave McCorquodale

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (3-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR
THE HOLDING OF A GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 5, 2018, FOR
THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING A MAYOR AND TWO_(2) CITY COUNCII,
MEMBERS, PLACES 2 AND 4; APPROVING ELECTION SERVICE AGREEMENTS
WITHMONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS: AND PROVIDING DETAILS RELATING

TO THE HOLDING OF SUCH ELECTION.

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 31




14.

15.

John Champagne moved to approve the Ordinance as presented. Dave McCorquodale

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (3-0)

Consideration and possible action to schedule a Public He.arin;z; to be held on February 27,

2018, for the purpose of reviewing the need to continue City of Montgomery Ordinance

2015-03, Juvenile Curfew Ordinance, Codified in Division 2 of Chapter 62 of the Code of

Ordinances of the City of Montgoinery, Texas in accordance with Section 370.002 of the

Texas Local Government Code, and to determine whether the City shall abolished,

continue or modify the ordinance.

John Champagne moved to approve the scheduling of the Public Hearing for February 27,
2018 at 6 p.m. Rebecca Huss seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (3-

0)

Consideration and possible action regarding the final Mobility Study, as prepared by Jones

and Carter on behalf of the City of Montpomery and Montgomery County Precincts 1 and
2.

Mr. Roznovsky introduced Colby Wﬁght, who is the Division Manager of the Traffic
Department of Jones and Carter, and he reviewed the Mobility Study in July 2017 at a Joint
Meeting with the Planning and Zoning Commission. Mr. Roznovsky said that since July
they have been meeting and discussing with Montgomery County Precincts 1 and 2, and
getting their comments along with some additional traffic studies pertaining to some of the
comments that they received. Mr. Roznovsky said that Mr, Wright will review the changes
that were made and answer any questions that City Council might have. Mayor Jones asked
whether Montgomery County Precincts 1 and 2 had approved the Mobility Plan. Mr.
Roznovsky said that they have blessed it in the fact that they have addressed any comments
that they had, which were very minimal, but after tonight they will receive their final copy
after the City adopts and approves the Mobility Plan, the County Precincts 1 and 2 will be
sent their final copy.

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 32




Rebecca Huss said that before the presentation starts she would like to point out in the
notes that the Mobility Study was paid for by Montgomery County Precincts 1 and 2, and
stated that the City also paid for the Study as well. Mr. Yates said that was correct, it was
athree way payment. Rebecca Huss said that the City should get credit for paying a portion
of the Mobility Plan.

Mr. Wright reviewed a brief overview of the Mobility Plan, where they looked at the
existmg conditions and collected traffic data, traffic projections based on a ten year time
frame to evaluate the intersections and roadway capacity analysis. Mr. Wright said that
they looked at the scheduled ilhprovements by other entities in the area, and recommended
improvements short and long term and developed thoroughfare standards and a map. Mr.
Wright stated that the draft plan was presented back in July and they received comments
to make changes and he is presenting the final repoﬁltoday.

Mr. Wright said that some of the changes made were a new traffic count on SH 105 and
FM 149, to look at the afternoon school traffic, and after evaluation of that count, it looks
like the traffic volume generally increased beginning at 1 p.m., with the peak hour
remaining fiom 5 p.m. to 6 p.m. Rebecca Huss said that the problem really is that it is a
peak 15 minutes rather than a peak hour. Mr. Wright said that was correct. Mr. Wright
said that the additional count that they took was when Lone Star Parkway was closed, so
there were additional volumes, so they left the peak hour from 5 p.m. to 6 p.m.

Mr. Wright said that they updated the schematics, development map, major thoroughfare
plan, and reminded City Council that the major thoroughfare plan is really used as a tool
for the City in planning to help identify future corridors for roadways. Mr. Wright said
that they updated the recommended improvements, including short and long term

recommendations.

Mr. Wright said that the short range improvements included a traffic signal timing study
on SH 105, evaluation and improvements of the traffic signals along SH 105 to improve
coordination between the signals, they recommended a traffic signal for SH 105 and
Buffalo Springs Drive along with some restriping. Mr, Wright said that at SH 105 and FM

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 33




2854 at Lone Star Parkway they recommended east and west bound right turn lanes. Mr.
Wright said that was basically all the short term improvements.

Mr. Wright advised that the long term improvements included coordination with TxDOT
on the SH 105 widening project to ensure that project occurs and they include a traffic
signal on SH 105 and Lone Star Parkway as part of that project, SH 105 and FM 149 they
recommended northbound and southbound left turn lanes on FM 149, SH 105 at FM 2854
and Lon.e Star Parkway the construction of northbound and southbound double left and
right turn lanes, and finally construction of a traffic signal at Lone Star Parkway and
Buffalo Springs.

Mr. Wright advised that was a brief overview report of the changes that had been made to
the Mobility Plan, and said that he would be happy to answer any questions.

Rebecca Huss said she was displeased with the elimination of the right hand turn lane at
SH 105 and FM 149 because obviously it would get rid of more lanes when they are talking
about improving mobility and decreasing wait times at the busiest intersection in towr.
Rebecca Huss briefly discussed that ideally, the best conditions for intersections is a right
and left turn lane, and if they have to choose, they start with the left turn lanes, but if
something happens and they have the ability to do both, they need to have all three, straight,
right and left and should be in the Plan,

Mr. Wright said that they developed the future analysis for 10 years from now and if they
do nothing, what the level of service would be like, so their first goal was to try and mitigate
back to an acceptable level of service. Mr. Wﬁght said that after they came back from the
Jast meeting, they looked at the schematics as to what would happen to the intersection;
they wanted to see what they could do and they looked to see if getting rid of the right turn
lanes and just having the left turn lanes would actually give them a basic level of service.
Mr. Wright said that based on that it did, so the most important thing there is the left turn
lanes, which is the priority improvement that gives the biggest bang for your buck. Mr.
Wright said that he agreed 100 percent that he would like to have double left and right turn

lanes at every intersection, because it provides better capacity. Mr. Wright said that the

01/23/18 Councit Meeting Minutes - Page 34




intent was not to tell them that they do not want right turn lanes, it was that the biggest
bang for your buck is to do the left turn lanes. Rebecca Huss asked that they write it into
the report with that wording, so that 10 years from now they don’t forget this conversation,
and said that she did not want to lose or have the idea that they did not say to put in a right
hand turn lane, should future conditions allow them more space. Rebecca Huss said that
she agreed that the caveat should remind them that it is the best bang for the buck is the
left hand turn lane, and not to do right hand turn only, use the left if you have to choose.

Mr. Wright said that they did not recominend right hand turn lanes on SH 105 mainly
because the level of service improvement from those was minimal compared to the cost,
so the preference would be to have right hand turn lanes as well on SH 105, and he thought
that they could include a general statement that right turn lanes should be evaluated or
recommended where feasible at all intersections. Mr. Wright said that they can amend
the Study to include consideration for right hand turn lanes where feasible. City Council

concurred.

Dave McCorquodale asked about the level of service and asked if they were working on
the I-10 and 610, would they use the same level of service unit that you would use at an
intersection of a Farm to Market Road and State Highway. Mr. Wright said that there are
different levels of service for freeway operations. Mr, Wright said that the level of service
acronym is different for a stop sign approach versus a traffic signal. Mr. Wright said that
there was a difference between intersection levels of service and roadway level of service,
they are different categories. Dave McCorquodale said that he wanted to see if the level

of service was scaled to what they were looking at in the City, and it sounds like it is.

Rebecca Huss said that the intersections should have a right and left tum lane, because it
would help clear traffic. Mr. Wright said that having a right or left turn lane would help
any intersection. Dave McCorquodale said that by FM 2854 and SH 105 where they were
talking about the additional turn lanes, when you look at a site like the shopping center,
even there you can tell that the west bound traffic turning right into the shopping center,
right next to the bridge, where the idea of getting over is difficult, does TxDOT ever look
back and what would trigger them to look at an area that has congestion. Mr. Wright said

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 35




16.

that TxDOT has done a good job, long term, with access management guidelines, and he
would say, specific to driveways along major thoroughfares with high traffic volumes,
every driveway along that thoroughfare is going to have a level of service, so that is why
you will see TxDOT going back and adding medians to improve the safety, and eventually
that will happen in the City as well. Mr. Wright said that TxDOT has a safety improvement
program that identifies funding for high accident locations, but he did not know how they
arrive at which locations are chosen. Dave McCorquodale asked if they felt, long term,
points like Lone Star Parkway, that is slightly off in alignment, and asked if that was
something that would hang on through the design and construction process or would they
anticipate a jog like that actually lining up in the design phase. Mr. Wright said that he
thought the intention of the Major Thoroughfare Plan is not to say a roadway goes here, it
is to say this large area they anticipated needing a major roadway, so as different size tracts
develop you can work with the developers to see where the roads fit within their
development, as compared to where they would like the road placed. Mr. Wright said that
their information was to provide a planning tool. Mayor Jones said that in the near future
they will probably need to have discussions with property owners in the south, either the

City or Precinet 2 or both, because the south half of the loop would be helpful.

Rebecca Huss moved to accept the final Mobility Study with the caveat that they adjust a
few of the right hand turn lanes recommendations, and highlighting the value of the left
hand turn lanes, as otherwise presented. Dave McCorquodale seconded the motion, the

motion carried unanimously. (3-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding approval of The Shoppes at Montgomery

Section 1 Final Plat,

Mr. Roznovsky presented the information to City Council and advised that they were
recommending approval of the final plat, which was approved by the Planning and Zoning

Commission last night at their regular meeting.

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 36




17.

John Champagne moved to approve The Shoppes at Montgomery, Section 1 Final Plat, as

presented. Dave McCorquodale seconded the motion, the inotion carried unanimously.

(3-0)

Mr. Yates said that this will clear the building permit for the new CVS and they will begin
construction in a couple weeks. Mayor Jones said that he has seen surveyors from Jones
and Carter out on the rest of that property. Mr. Roznovsky said that during the last couple
of days they were working on the lift station replacement project, and there are some
geotechnical bores being done, and there is also the surveyor starting Triday to stake out
the boundaries for the wastewater treatment plant and they will be getting quotes on a fence
and do some final elevations for the gravity sewer lines coming from SH 105 to the south.

Mr. Roznovsky daid that most of the survey was provided by the developer.

Buffalo Springs Bridge Report by City Engineer,

Mr. Roznovsky advised that the project is underway and demolition began a couple of weeks ago,

and they were held up by the ice storm. Mr. Roznovsky said that as of today, all the slope paving
is gone and most of the bulkhead has been removed and the road is starting to be removed. Mr.
Roznovsky said that this week and next week the contractors will begin rebuilding the bulkhead
and start to bring in the new materials for consiruction. Mr. Roznovsky said that in the next few
weeks the storm sewer pipes will start showing up on site. Mr, Roznovsky said that right now the
contract end date is July 2, 2018, but per the original schedule, the initial substantial completion
will be mid-June 2018, and the contractor is pushing to complete the project as quick as he can.
Mayor Jones said that at one time Mr. Roznovsky had stated that the roadway might be open prior
to completion of the bridge. Mr. Roznovsky said that the contractor is pushing to get the bridge
open as quick as he can, and will complete the project and open the road at the same time, with
clean up to begin around June 19, 2018. Mayor Jones said that they will plan on a ribbon cutting
ceremony on June 19%, Mr, Roznovsky said that he would say by the end of June 2018.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of'the items listed specifically under this heading
or for any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet
the qualifications in Sections 551.071(consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding
real property),551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076

(deliberation regarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 37




development negotiations) of Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas. (There

are no items at this time.)

COUNCIL INQUIRY:

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect. 551.042 the Mayor and Council Members may inquire about

a subject not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to recitation of existing policy

or a statement of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry. Anyv deliberation or

decision shall be limited to a proposal to place on the agenda of a future meeting.

ADJOURNMENT

Dave McCorquodale moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:25 p.m. Rebecca Huss seconded the motion,

Submittedhy: /A ’ J \» Date Approved:

Mayor Kirk Jones

01/23/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 38



Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: February 13, 2018 Budgeted Amount:

Department:

Exhibits: Interlocal Agreement for
the Allocation of Sales Tax
Revenue
Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator
Date Prepared: February 7,2018

This is a proposal/offer from ESD #2 to equally share two percent (one per cent
for each entity) of the sales tax in the future annexed areas to the city.

This has been discussed in the past. The ESD Board has approved the
Agreement. They did not have to make the offer to share. Their stated reason for
the offer is for the overall strength of the City and the ESD.

Without the Agreement, the City would not be able to collect any future sales
tax in any future annexations and the development of the City would, in my
opinion, become very sporadic and haphazard as the only reason for City
annexation would be water or sewer service.

This Agreement makes for a stronger and much more fiscally sound City.

Not to approve this Agreement would, in my opinion, be a horrendous,
irrecoverable mistake to the fundamental future/purpose of the City.

Approve the Agreement as presented

Approved By~
City Administrator

Jack Yates | Date: February 7, 2018 |




INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
THE ALLOCATION OF SALES TAX REVENUE

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY  §

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into effective as of the 1st day of
February, 2018 (“Effective Date”), by and between THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY,
TEXAS ("City"}), a body politic and corporate and municipal corporation of the State of
Texas, and MONTGOMERY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT NO. 2
("MCESD 2"), a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

PRELIMINARY MATTERS

1. The City has been created, established, organized and exists as a Type A
general law municipal corporation under the faws of the State of Texas;

2. MCESD 2 has been created, established, organized and exists under the
authority of Articie lll, Section 48-e of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 775, Texas
Health & Safety Code;

3. The City has, among its powers, the power of annexation and the power of
imposing a local salés and use tax within its jurisdiction, subject to all applicable
provisions of the Texas Tax Code and other applicable laws;

4. MCESD 2 has, among its powers, the power of imposing a local sales and use
tax within its jurisdiction, subject to all applicable provisions of the Texas Tax Code,
Chapter 775, Texas Health and Safety Code and other applicable laws;

5. The City has the power to undertake improvement projects separately or jointly
with other persons or entities, including development agreements under Chapter 380 of
the Texas Local Government Code, to pay all or part of the costs of improvement
projects, including improvement projects that improve, enhance, or support, among
other matters, road construction, public utilities construction, building development, and
the availability of public safety and security, fire protection, emergency medical services,

or law enforcement in the City;




6. The City and MCESD 2 have overlapping boundaries and jurisdictions, and the
City is located entirely within the boundary of MCESD 2;

7. The City and its Monigomery Economic Development Corporation currently
collectively impose a 2% local sale and use tax; '

8. MCESD 2 currently imposes a 2% local sales and use tax in the area of its
jurisdiction that does not include the City as the corporate boundary of the City exists at
this time;

9. Pursuant to Chapter 321 of the Texas Tax Code (Sec. 321.102), when a
municipality annexes for full purposes territory contained within an emergency services
district that had theretofore imposed a local sales and use tax and where the local sales
and use tax in the annexed area is thereby at the 2% maximum rate for local sales and
use tax, the local sales and use tax imposed by the emergency services district remains
allocated to the emergency services district and is not allocated by the State

Comptroller to the municipality.

FINDINGS

10. The Parties find that Texas Health and Safety Code Sec. 775.0754 allows
MCESD 2 to agree to allocate sales and use tax revenue collected in areas annexed by
the City subsequent to the implementation of the MCESD 2 sales and use tax;

11.  The Parties find that the City requires additional sales tax revenue to provide
services and foster development to such areas as the City may annex subsequent to
the Effective Date, and to provide funding and tax incentives to promote future
development projects in both the City and MCESD 2;

12.  The Parties find that the future development within the City’s current and future
full purposes annexed areas contained within MCESD 2 will be of benefit to MCESD 2,
in terms of (a) providing additicnal revenue and (b) enhancing the capability of
delivering emergency services by MCESD 2 to the annexed area by virtue of the
municipal services to be provided by the City, including but not limited to additional
revenue, additional sales tax revenue, road and access development, police protection

and the like;




13.  The Parties find that due to the provisions of the Texas Tax Code (Sec. 321.102),
the City does not have authority to impose its sales tax or to receive any sales tax
revenue from any areas contained within MCESD 2 which were annexed for full
purposes by the City after May 7, 2016;

14. The Parties find that it is in the best interests and for the common benefit of the
City and MCESD 2 that the City and MCESD 2 enter into this Agreement to aliocate, as
provided herein, the sales tax revenue generated under the MCESD 2 sales and use
tax in the areas contained within MCESD 2 that may be annexed for full purposes by
the City after the Effective Date;

15. The Parties find that the Interlocal Cooperation Act, codified as V.T.C.A,,
Government Code, Chapter 791 (the "Interlocal Act"), provides authorization for any
local government to contract with one or more other local governments to perform
governmental functions and services under the terms of the Interlocal Act and funding
thereunder; and

16.  The City and MCESD 2 jointly find that each are local governments as provided
under the Interlocal Act and the agreements and provisions herein relate to the

respective government functions of each,

- NOW THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants
and conditions hereinafter set forth, the City and MCESD 2 agree as follows:

I
17. MCESD 2 agrees to allocate to the City certain sales and use tax revenue under
the terms of Texas Health and Safety Code Sec. 775.0754 as follows:

(a)  Fifty per cent (50%) of the local sales and use tax revenue collected by
the State Comptroller and derived from sales tax payers which make initial reports of
taxable sales to the State Comptroller on or after the Effective Date, and which are
located within the territorial jurisdiction of MCESD 2 and being not contained within the
corporate boundary of the City prior to the Effective Date, and which subsequent to the
Effective Date of this Agreement is annexed by the City. MC ESD 2 and the City will
only share sales tax revenue from tax payers in areas which are located in areas which,
prior to the Effective Date, would be subject to only the MC ESD 2 sales and use tax




and who have not made any reports of sales and use tax to the Comptroller prior to the
Effective Date.

(b)  The payment under 17(a), above, of such allocated local sales and use
tax revenue collected by the State Comptroller shall be paid by the State Comptrolier
under policies and procedures that the Comptroller considers reasonable to MCESD 2
and the City as provided by Section 775.0754(c), with the City and MCESD 2 each
receiving 50% of the sales and use faxes collected from the sales tax payers in the
areas annexed for full purposes by the City after the Effective Date.

18.  The term of this Agreement shall be for thirty (30) years from the Effective Date
hereof, and, except as specifically provided herein, neither of the Parties shall have any
further obligation or liability to the other Party herein. The City and MCESD 2 may, by
addendum hereto, agree to extend the term of this Agreement.

19.  This Agreement is infended for the benefit of the named Parties only, and is in no
way intended to benefit any other person, either directly or indirectly, including members
of the public. Nothing in the Agreement shall or shall be construed to create a
partnership or other type of joint enterprise, the sole intent being to create a contractual
relationship between the Parties.

20.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to expand any liability that any Party to this
Agreement may have to any other person other than a named Party to this Agreement.
21.  The validity, interpretation, and performance of this Agreement shall be governed
by the laws of the State of Texas.

22.  Any suit brought to enforce, interpret, or receive damages under any provision of
this Agreement shall be brought in Montgomery County, Texas, where venue for all
matters hereunder is stipulated.

23. Neither this Agreement nor any term or provision of it, may be changed, waived,
discharged, amended, or modified orally, or in any other manner than by an instrument
in writing signed by all the Parties.

24.  This Agreement is not assignable by any Party without the written consent of the
other Party.

25. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Texas Government Code or the Texas
Local Government Code, and unless prohibited by Texas law, each Party shall defend,
indemnify, and hold harmless the other Party and its officers, agents, employees and
representatives from any and all losses, liability, damages, claims, suits, actions and

—4-




administrative proceedings, and demands and all expenditures and cost relating to acts
or omissions of the indemnitor, its officers, agents or employees arising out of or
incidental to the performance of any of the provisions of this Agreement. No Party
assumes liability for the acts or omissions of persons other than each Party's respective
officers, agents or employees. This indemnification clause shali survive this Agreement.
26. By entering into this Agreement, neither Party waives any of the immunities
provided by the Texas Government Code or the Texas Local Government Code or other
applicable provisions of law. This Agreement is not intended to confer any legal rights
or benefits on any person or entity other than the Parties of this Agreement.

27. Al notices hereunder shall be sent certified mail, return receipt requested io the
addresses set forth below the signatures of the Parties to the Agreement. Notices are
deemed given and completed upon deposit in the United States Mail. Either Party may
change its address by providing ten (10) days written notice of such change fo the other
Party in the manner provided for above.

APPROVED and EXECUTED in duplicate originals for and on behalf of the
Parties on the dates indicated below the signatures below.

MONTGOMERY COUNTY EMERGENCY

THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS SERVI DISTRICEANO. 2
By:. B ' '

X y:
Name: KIRK JONES Narfie: MIK ON
Title: Mayor Title: Distriét President
Address: 101 Old Plantersville Rd Address: 20580 Eva St.,
Montgomery, Texas 77316 Montgomery, Texas 77356
COUNTERSIGNED: COUNITERSIGNED:;

T —
By: _ By: M
Name: Larry L. Foerster Nargé: John Peeler
Title: City Attorney Title: District Counsel




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeﬁng Date: February 13, 2018 Budgeted Amount:

Department:

Exhibits: Ordinance,
Annexation Service Plan
Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator
Date Prepared: February 7,2018

This is to annex the 3.22 acres of land lying on the extreme east extraterritorial
jurisdiction of the city on the south side of SH105. The ETJ of the property
proposed to be annexed is approximately one half in the city of Montgomery and
one half in the city of Conroe. The property owners name is Peter Hill.

This has had to public hearings with no public comment. The staff is not
received any calls at City Hall regarding this annexation.

The intention is to have that Mr. Hill run a water and sewer line underneath SH
105, with the upsizing of the water line from an 8 inch to a 12 inch (probably
with the upsizing to be funded by MEDC). The 12 inch water line will serve as a
looping of a planned line that will be placed from FM 2854 to Mr. Hill’s
connection when the HEB tract is developed.

Recommendation

Approve the Annexation ordinance as presented.

[}
£ . [

City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: February 7, 2018




Motion made by and seconded by approving
the following Ordinance:

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED
TERRITORY OF 3.22 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, IN THE JOHN H.
CORNER SURVEY, ABSTRACT 8, TO THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY,
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS, AND EXTENDING THE BOUNDARY
LIMITS OF SAID CITY SO AS TO INCLUDE SAID HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED
PROPERTY WITHIN SAID CITY LIMITS, AND GRANTING TO ALL THE
INHABITANTS OF SAID PROPERTY ALL THE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF
OTHER CITIZENS AND BINDING SAID INHABITANTS BY ALL OF THE ACTS,
ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, AND REGULATIONS OF SAID CITY;
ADOPTING AN ANNEXATION SERVICE RLAN FOR SAID ANNEXATION;
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT
CLAUSE; AND PROVDING THE EFFECTIVE DATE UPON PASSAGE OF THE
ORDINANCE

WHEREAS, Section 43,028 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes the
annexation by the City of Montgomery of a sparsely occupied area which has been petitioned
by the owners of the annexation, subject to the laws of this State; and

WHEREAS, the Montgomery City Council has granted a petition for annexation of
a tract of land of approximately 3.22 acres on the south side of State Highway 105,
contiguous to the Montgomery city limits, by Resolution No. 2017- __, dated .
2017; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has conducted two public hearings on December 12,
2017 and January 9, 2018 to receive the comments of its citizens on the proposed annexation,
and there have been no objections to the proposed annexation; and

WHEREAS, the annexation procedures prescribed by the Texas Local Government
Code and the laws of this State have been duly followed with respect to the following
described territory, to wit:

Being a 3.22-acre tract of land in the JOHN. H. CORNER SURVEY, Abstract 8, of
Montgomery County, Texas, further described in the legal description attached
hereto in Exhibit “A.”

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS:

1. PROPERTY ANNEXED: That the heretofore described property in Exhibit
"A” is hereby annexed to the City of Montgomery, Montgomery County, Texas,
and that the boundary limits of the City of Montgomery, be and the same be
hereby extended to include the above described territory within the city limits of




the City of Montgomery and the same shall hereafter be included within the
territorial limits of said city, and the inhabitants thereof shall hereafter be entitled
to all the rights and privileges of other citizens of the City of Montgomery and
they shall be bound by the acts, ordinances, resolutions, and regulations of said
city.

ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN: An Annexation Service Plan for the area
is hereby adopted and attached as Exhibit “B”.

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.
If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person ot circumstance
is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect other provisions or applications of
this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid provision or
application,

TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT: It is hereby officially found and determined
that the meeting at which this Ordinance was considered was open to the public
as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting
was given as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, of the
Texas Government Code.,

FILING ORDINANCE: The City Secretary is hereby directed to file a certified
copy of this Ordinance with the County Clerk of Montgomery County, Texas,
the Montgomery County Central Appraisal District, the Texas Secretary of State,
and the Office of Texas State Comptroller.

EFFECTIVE DATE: This Ordinance shall be effective upon its passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED by an affirmative vote of the members of the City
Council, on this the day of 2018.

ATTEST:

Kirk Jones, Mayor

Susan Hensley, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Larry L. Foerster, City Altorney




E.{‘\:L:‘" 4A h

Ermn

L.}
SURVEYORS

“A LAND SURVEYING COMPANY”

November 6, 2017
ABAC3.22

Being a 3.22 acre tract of land in the John Corner Survey, Abstract 8, Montgomery County,
Texas, being out of a 5.71 acre tract as recorded under Clerk’s File No. 2016-086083, also being
out of a called 111.857 acre tract of land as recorded under Clerk’s File No. 9512940 Deed
Records Montgomery County, Texas, being more particularly described as follows:

COMMENCING at a PK nail found for the northwesterly corner of a called 48.540 acre tract as
recorded under Clerk’s File No. 2007-000741 Deed Records Montgomery County, Texas, being
along the of the southerly right of way line of State Highway 105 (R.C.W. Varies), and being the

northeasterly corner of said 5.71 acre tract; .

THENCE S 03 deg. 48’ 31" E along the westerly line of said 48.540 acre tract, also along the
easterly line of said 5.71 acre tract, a distance of 308.15 feet to a found PK nail, being the most
easterly south corner of said 5.71 acre tract;

THENCE N 87 deg. 26' 35" W, along the northerly line of said 48.540 acre tract, also along the
southerly line of said 5.71 acre tract, a distance of 95.82' to a found PK nail;

THENCE 8 01 deg. 47' 27" W, along the northerly line of said 48.540 acre tract, also along the
southerly line of said 5.71 acre, a distance of 17.85'to a found PK nail;

THENCE N 87 deg. 16' 39" W, along the northerly line of said 48.540 acre tract, also along the
southerly line of said 5.71 acre a distance of 231.56' a point for corner along the northerly line of
said 48.540 acre tract, also being along the southerly line of said 5.71 acre tract, and being the
easterly corner of herein described tract, and being the POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE N 87 deg. 16' 39" W, along the northerly line of said 48.540 acre tract, also along the
southerly line of said 5.71 acre, a distance of 5.68' to a found PK nail;

THENCE S 86 deg. 42' 40" W, along the northerly line of said 48.540 acre tract a distance of
145.64' to a 5/8” iron rod found, being the most westerly north corner of said 48.540 acre tract, .
being an interior corner of herein described tract;

THENCE S 12 deg. 11' 42" W, along the westerly line of said 48.540 acre tract a distance of
102.69' to a 5/8” iron rod found,;

THENCE § 78 deg. 19' 16" E, along the southerly line of said 48.540 acre tract a distance of
62.50' to a 5/8” iron rod found;

Page 1 of 3



THENCE N 10 deg. 25' 11" E, along the easterly line of said 48.540 acre tract a distance of 39.11
to a4 5/8” iron rod found;

THENCE S 79 deg. 31' 27" E, along the southerly line of said 48.540 acre tract a distance of
100.21' to a 5/8” iron rod set, being an inferior corner of said 48.450 acre tract, being an exterior

corner of herein described tract,

THENCE $ 46 deg. 51' 53" W, along the westerly line of said 48.540 acre tract a disiance of
70.05' to a 5/8” iron rod set;

THENCE S 35 deg. 57 21" W, along the westerly line of said 48.540 acre tract a distance of
101,39 to a 5/8” iron rod sef;

THENCE S 24 deg. 44' 23" W, along the westerly line of said 48.540 acre tract a distance of
146.12' to a 5/8" iron rod set;

THENCE S 22 deg. 09' 41" I, along the westetly line of said 48.540 acre tract a distance of
52.72'to a 5/8” iron rod set;

THENCE § 25 deg. 44' 51" W, along the westerly line of said 48.540 acre tract a distance of
32.14' to a point in the centerline of a creek, being a point on the easterly line of said 111,857 acre
tract, being the most southerly corner of herein described tract;

THENCE N 50 deg. 25' 39" W, across said 111.857 acre tract a distance of 68.02' to a 5/8” iron
rod set;

THENCE N 34 deg. 45' 39" W, across said 111.857 acre tract a distance of 103,76' to a 5/8” iron
rod set;

THENCE N 17 deg. 33' 45" W, across said 111.857 acre tract a distance of 111.07' to a point at a
creek intersection, being the southeasterly corner of a called 1.289 acre tract as recorded under -
Clerk’s File No. 2014-103529 Deed Records Montgomery County, Texas;

THENCE along the following courses and distances along said creek:

"HENCE N 02 deg. 11' 01" W, along the casterly fine of said 1.289 acre tract a distance of 20,00
to a point for corner;

THENCE N 23 deg. 02" 40" E, along the casterly line of said 1.289 acre tract a distance of 59.23'
to a point for corner;

THENCE N 15 deg. 12' 33" E, along the easterly line of said 1.289 acre tract 3 distance of 51.14'
to a point for corner;

THENCE N 29 deg, 51' 25" E, along the casterly line of said 1.289 acre tract a distance of 17.50'
to a point for corner, being the northeasterly corner of said 1.289 acre tract, being the
southeasterly corner of a called 12.74 acre tract as recorded under Clerk’s File No. 2014-103574

Deed Records Montgomery County, Texas;

THENCE N 16 deg. 10’ 51" E, along the easterly line of said 12,74 acre tract a distance of 35.68'
to a point for corner;

Page 2 of 3




THENCE N 26 deg. 12' 24" E, along the easterly line of said 12.74 acre tract a distance of 22.44'
to a point for corner;

THENCE N 26 deg. 12' 24" E, along the casterly line of said 12.74 acre tract a distance of 95.80'
to a point for corner;

THENCE N 57 deg. 22' 01" W, along the easterly line of said 12.74 acre tract a distance of 22.66'
to a point for corner;

THENCE N 23 deg. 09' 59" E, along the casterly line of said 12.74 acre tract a distance of 83.90'
to a point for corner;

THENCE N 11 deg. 45' 39" W, along the easterly line of said 12.74 acre tract a distance of 78.90'
to a point for corner;

THENCE N 05 deg. 42' 22" E, along the easterly line of said 12,74 acre tract a distance of 71.60'
to a point for corner;,

THENCE N 43 deg. 37' 22" E, along the easterly line of said 12,74 acre tract a distance of 67.78' *
to a point for corner;

THENCE leaving said creek N 87 deg. 19' 04" E, a distance of 158.67' to a point for corner along
the northerly line of said 5.71 acre tract, being the most northerly west corner of herein described

tract;

THENCE S 00 deg. 00' 01" W, across said 5.71 acre tract, a distance of 366.85' to the POINT
OF BEGINNING, and containing 3.22 acres of land, more or less.

THIS LEGAL & EXHIBIT WAS PREPARED UNDER TITLE 22 OF THE TEXAS ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, CHAPTER 663,
RULE 663,21, AND DOES NOT REFLECT THE RESULTS OF AN ON THE GROUND SURVEY, AND IS NOT TO BE USED
TO CONVEY OR ESTABLISH INTERESTS IN REAL PROPERTY EXCEPT THOSE RIGHTS AND INTERESTS IMPLIED OR
ESTABLISHED BY THE CREATION OR RECONFIGURATION OF THE BOUNDARY OF Tl I POLITICAL SUBDIVISION
FOR WHICH IT WAS PREPARED

o
Y AA

Page 3 of 3



ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN
CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

TERRITORY

This Service Plan is applicable to the territory which is described in Exhibits A attached to this
document, which is being annexed by the City of Montgomery, Texas.

INTENT

It is the intent of the City of Montgomery that this Service Plan shall provide for the delivery of
full available municipal services to the annexed areas in accordance with State law. The failure of
this plan to describe any particular service shall not be deemed to be an attempt to omit the
provision of such services from the annexed areas, The delivery of municipal services may be
accomplished through any means permitted by law.

EFFECTIVE TERM

This Service Plan shall be in effect for a ten-year period commencing on the effective date of this
annexation,

AMENDMENT OR RENEWAL

This Service Plan may be amended from time to time as provided by Texas Local Government
Code, Section 43.056 (), (j), and (k). Renewal of the Service Plan shall be at the sole option of
the City Council.

FIRE

Existing Services:  Fire suppression and protection service is currently provided in the annexed
areas by the Montgomery County Emergency Services District No. 2.

Services to be provided: The City of Montgomery, Texas does not provide fire suppression
services, Fire suppression will continue to be available to the area upon annexation from the
Montgomery County Emergency Services District No. 2.

POLICE

Existing Services:  Currently, the area to be annexed is under the jurisdiction of the
Montgomery County Sheriff's Department.

Services to be provided: Upon annexation, the City of Montgomery Police Department will
extend regular and routine patrols to the area. It is anticipated that the implementation of police




patrol activities can be effectively accommodated within the current budget and staff
appropriation.

BUILDING INSPECTION

FExisting Services:  None

Services to be provided: The City will provide code enforcement services upon annexation. This
includes issuing building, electrical and plumbing permits for any new construction and
remodeling, and enforcing all other applicable codes which regulates building construction within
the City of Montgomery.

PLANNING AND ZONING

Existing Services: ~ None

Services to be provided: The Planning and Zoning Commission's responsibility for regulating
development and land use through the administration of the City of Montgomery Zoning
Ordinance will extend to this area on the effective date of the annexation. The property will also
continue to be regulated under the requirements of the City of Montgomery's Subdivision
Ordinance. These services can be provided within the City’s current budget.

LIBRARY

Existing Services: Currently the area to be annexed is served by the Montgomery County
Memorial Library System and its Charles B. Stewart West Branch Library.

Services to be provided: The City of Montgomery does not provide Library services, but the
Montgomery County Memorial Library System will continue to be available to the annexed area.

STREET MAINTENANCE

Existing Services: Montgomery County and State of Texas road maintenance

Services to be provided: Maintenance of public streets and ditches in the annexed area will
be provided by the City to the extent pubic right-of-ways are not maintained by the State of Texas
and Montgomery County, Street maintenance is subject to all applicable City ordinances, including
the City's Subdivision Ordinance. This service can be provided within the current budget
appropriation.

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

Existing Services: None

Services to be provided: Tn accordance with applicable City ordinances, developers will provide
storm water drainage at their own expense and will be inspected by the City engineer at time of




completion. The City, upon acceptance, will then maintain the drainage upon approval, subject to
compliance with all City ordinances.

STREET LIGHTING

Existing Services: None

Services to be provided. The City of Montgomery will coordinate any request for improved
street lighting with the local electric provider in accordance with standard policy.

WATER SERVICE

Existing Services: None

Services to be provided. Water service to the area will be provided in accordance with the
applicable City of Montgomery codes and departmental policies, and any applicable Development
Agreement. Privately owned and operated water wells are not authorized in the City. By City
ordinance, all buildings in the City must be connected to City water and sewer, When property
develops in the area, water service shall be provided in accordance with extension ordinances at
the in-city rates, Extension of service shall comply with all City codes and ordinances.

SANTIARY SEWER SERVICE

Existing Services: None

Services to be provided: Sanitary sewer service to the area of proposed annexation will be
provided in accordance with applicable codes and departmental policies, and any applicable
Development Agreement. When property develops in the areas, sanitary sewer service shall be
provided in accordance with present extension ordinances at the in-city rates. Extension of service
shall comply with City codes and ordinances.

SOLID WASTE SERVICE

Existing Services: None

Services to be provided: Waste Management, Inc., a solid waste collection company,
currently provides residential solid waste collection services under an exclusive contract with the
City. The City invoices the City customer for the monthly garbage collection charge with its water
and sewer charges. Residential service shall be available to the area to be annexed in compliance
with existing City policies. Businesses may use the Waste Management residential trash carts if
they wish. Commercial dumpster service will be provided under a separate contract between each
business and the contractor selected by each business.

NATURAL GAS UTTLITY SERVICE

Existing Services: None




Services to be provided: The City of Montgomery does not provide natural gas utility service.
LDC Natural Gas Company, a public natural gas utility company, provides natural gas service,
which is presently not available to all parts of the City.

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICE

Existing: Currently the area to.be annexed is served by the Montgomery County Hospital District’s
Emergency Medical Service’s emergency and non-emergency ambulance transport service.

Services to be provided: The City of Montgomery, Texas does not provide first responder or
emergency services, Emergency medical services will continue to be available to the area upon
annexation from the Montgomery County Hospital District’s Emergency Medical Service (EMS)
ambulances.

HEALTH CODE ENFORCEMENT SERVICE

Existing: Currently the area to be annexed is served by Montgomery County Environmental
Health Service, a department of Montgomery County.

Services to be provided: The City of Montgomery does not provide health code enforcement
services. These services will continue to be provided by Montgomery County Environmental
Health Service.

PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS AND SWIMMING POOLS
Existing: None

Services to be provided. The City of Montgomery maintains the Cedar Brake Park, Homecoming
Park, Memory Park and Fernland Historical Park. The City does not own or operate a public
swimming pool or other playgrounds. Public school playgrounds will remain the responsibility of
the Montgomery Independent School District. Private recreational facilities, open spaces and
swimming pools are not affected by annexation.

MISCELLANEOUS

All other applicable municipal services will be provided to the area in accordance with the City of
Montgomery's ordinances and policies governing extension of municipal services to newly
annexed areas.




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: February 13,2018 Budgeted Amount:
Department:

Exhibits: Minutes of 2012 variance
discussion of Council,
Parking variance in file — and signed by
Ms. or Mr. Kerr
Prepared By: Jack Yates

City Administrator
Date Prepared: February 7, 2018

This is to listen to a report from the city attorney regarding a 5 Y-year-old
unsigned variance agreement with Ms. Rendy Kerr, to consider options available
and if willing, to make a decision.

This concerns a variance agreement given on October 9, 2012 by the Council to

Ms. Rendy Kerr that allowed her and her husband at the time permission to
build on the north edge of the property at the southeast corner of FM 149 and
College Street in return for paving of the street next to your location on College
Street. They built the addition to the building but never paved the parking area
on the south side of the street as required in the agreement. In the City file is a
variance agreement, signed by Mayor John Fox but not signed by Mr. or Mrs.
Kerr.

I have shown on this to the City Attorney who, so far, has said that the variance
agreement is not valid because of the 5 ¥ years time passage since its passage
by the Council.

While still considering the issue, the City Attorney advised me to put the item
on the Council agenda so that he could report on the item and give the Council
options for any possible actions.

At the January MEDC Ms. Kerr asked the MEDC to pay for the parking cost of
approximately $3,700. The MEDC voted not to approve the funds because they
felt like the parking was not necessary at this time and voted to recommend to
the City Council not to require Ms. Kerr to pave the area.




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

| |

Recommendation

Listen to the City Attorney’s advice on the matter- then decide as you will.

Approved By

City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: February 7, 2018




6(,&“\?@ . ? }*1 oL Min "‘+(5

8. Consideration and possible action on parking agreement hetween the City of Montgomery
and Megan Stultz

Bryan Fowler, City Attorney told the Council this is a exIsting business in the city which is building a new
building and does not have enough land for parking and the Zoning Board of Adjustment granted a
varlance to permit her {9) parking spaces on her property and construct and maintain additional parking
spaces to be located on City owned property, which is the discontinued City water plant site. The
agreement sets out the terms of the agreement where the City will [ease the site to her for herto
construct and Instalt a paved or asphalt parking lot to be used by patrons of the bullding on her
property, as well as for use by members of the public. The lease is for three (3) years and improvements
would pass on to the City upon termination of the lease. Discussion was taken on amount to cost to
construct the parking lot, years for the lease, and use of other parking spaces for the public. John
Champagne made the motion to approve the parking agreement and lease with the 10 year lease and
subject to approval of the City Attorney. Kirk Jones seconded the motion. Kirk Jones, Thomas Knight and

John Chamypagne all voted for the motion,
9. Consideration and possible action on parking agreement between the City of Montgomery

and Rendy Kerr, _
Bryan Fowler, City Attorney explained to the Council that when this business, Rancher’s Daughter
installed a covered patlo and was required to provide additional parking spaces did not have the
property to do this. The Zoning Board of Adjustments granted a vatiance to permit them temporary use
of parking spaces in front of the Montgomery Community Bullding, if they would construct and maintain
additional required parking spaces in the College Street right of way, to satisfy the Ordinance, The
agreement requires the Kerrs to install the parking area on college Street right of way within a three
year term and indicates all improvements will bacome property of the City upon completion. Kirk Jones
made the motion to approve the agreement as presented. Thomas Knight seconded the motion, Kirk
Jones, Thomas Knight and John Champagne all voted for the motion,

PUBLIC HEARING AND POSSIBLE ACTION;
10. Public hearing and possible action on a rezone request for 300 Prairie Street from residentfal

to a planned development district
Mayor Fox opened the public hearing at 7:50 p.m.. Bill Kotlan, City Administrator read a letter from a

property owner that stated he was ok with the use of the property he wanted the City and Property
owner to be aware that the driveway was on his property not the property in discussion, Bryan Fowler,
City Attorney explained that the property would be zoned a Planned Developmant District #3 with
restrictions. The Planning and Zoning Commission made a preliminary report and held the public hearing
on the propesed amendment and presented the final report to the Councll. Mayor Fox closed the public
hearing at 8:04. Kirk Jones commented that this was a good use for the property. John Champagne
made the motion to receive the final report from the Planning and Zoning Commission and approve the
ordinance for the rezone to Planned Development District No. 3 subject to the closing and Fannle Mae
approval. Thomas Knight seconded the motion. Thomas Knight, John Champagne and Kirk Jones ail
voted for the motlon.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

<o~




AGREEMENT C@NCERNING PARK .

This Agreement Concerning Parking Vaviance (the * A
into as of the __9th day of October, 2012, (the “Effective Da x
Montgomery, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of T _=' ;
Rendy Kerr ("Kerr™), 55';:

1’3 S
WHEREAS, Kewr is the owner of the real property E,é% 4]
Montgomery, Texas, aud legally deseribed ou the attached Ex o
and

et : Ede
WHEREAS, the City s the owner of an adjacent tract o AT
the City of Montgmmery, Texas, known as the Montgomery Cmmnunity Bm]dm (the “Clty
Property™); and

WHEREAS, Kerr applied for a building permit to add a covered patio to the building
located on the Kerv Propecty o be ulilized in connection with the Kerr's operation of a business
on the Kerr Property, known as the Rancher's Daughter (the “Business”™); and

WHEREAS, the Kerr Propetty, after the addition of the patlo to the bui!dmg thereon, is
insufficient to permit Keir to comply with the City’s parking 1equ;rements as set out in the Code
of Ordinauces for the City of Montgomery; and

WHEREAS, Kerr applied for, and teceived, a variance from the City’s Zoning Board of
Adjustments, to permit Keyr to temporatlly use City parking on College Street in front of the
Montgomery Community Building on a temporary basis, in consideration for Kenr's contractual
agreement to constrict and maintain additional parking spaces on the City street cight of way of
College Street, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; and '

WHEREAS, the City is willing to permit Kerr to wilize City parking spaces on a
temporary basis, ou the termg and conditions set out in this Agreement, to peymit Kerr to comply
with the City’s Ordinances and the requirements of the City’s Zoning Board of Adjustments,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mwuiual covenants, assurances and
consideration herein set forth, it is agreed ay follows:

ARTICLE I
AGRIELMENTS

Al The City, for and in consideration of the covenants and promises herein, does
hereby permit Kerr to uiilize, on a first-come, firsl-served basis, the public paiking spaces
located in front of the Montgomery Community Building, as identified on the highiighted portion
of the attached Exhibit “B”, as required parking for the Business. This parking area may be
utilized by Kerr for three (3) years flom the date of this Agreement,

B, Kerr shall construct, or caused to be constiucted, g new asphalt or concrete

AgreemenL Conceming Parking Vanance Pdge 1




AGREEMENT CONCERNING PARKING VARIANCE

This Agreement Concerning Parking Vaviance (the “Agreement™) is made and entered
Into as of the _ 9th day of October, 2012, (the “Tffective Date"), by and between the City of
Monigomery, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (the “City™) and Hamry and

Rendy Kerr (*Ker™),

WHERTAS, Kerr is the owner of the veal properly located at 14387 Liberty Steeet,
Montgomery, Texas, and legally described on the attached Exhibit “A" (the “Ker Property™;

and

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of an adjacent tract of land abutting College Street in
the City of Montgomery, Texas, known ag the Montgomery Community Bullding (the “City

Propecty™); and

WHEREAS, Kerr applied for a building permit to add a covered patio to the building
focated on the Kerr Praperty o be wilized in connection with the Kert's operation of a business
on the Kerr Property, known as the Rancher's Daughter (the “Business™); and

WHEREAS, the Kerr Property, after the addition of the patio to the building thereon, is
insufficient to penmit Keir to comply with the City's parking requirements as set out in the Code
of Ordinauces for the City of Montgomery; and :

WHEREAS, Kot applied for, and received, a variance from the City's Zoning Board of
Adjustments, to permit Kerr to temporarily use Cly parking on College Street in front of the
Montgowmery Community Building on a temporary basis, in considersiion for Keir's contractual
agreement lo construct and malntain additional parking spaces on the City sireet right of way of
Callege Street, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement: and

WHEREAS, the City is willing to permit Kerr to ulilize City parking spaces on a
temporary basis, on the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement, to permit Kerr to comply
with the City's Ordinances and the requirements of the City’s Zoning Board of Adjustments,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of (he mufual covenants, assurances end
congideration herein set forth, it is agreed as follows:

ARTICLE
AGREEMENTS

A, The City, for and in consideration of the covenants and promises herein, does
hereby permit Kerr to utilize, on a first-come, first-served basis, the public paeking spaces
focated in front of the Monlgomery Coramunity Building, as identified on the highlighted portion
of the attached Exhibit “B”, as required parking for the Business. This parking area may be
utilized by Kerr for three (3) years from the date of this Agreement,

B. Kerr shall construet, or caused to be constucted, a new asphalt or concrele
Agreement Concerning Parking Varlance Page 1




parking area i the right of way of College Street, in the focation identified on the highlighted
portion of the attzched Bxhibit “C" (the “Parking Area”). Said parking shall include as many
parking spaces as may be reasonably installed In the Parking Areu, and shall be constructed or
instatled in accordance with City approved plans and specifications, The Parking Area shall be
located in the area bound by the Kerr's side property line on the south, the Coltege Street
payment lo the north, the Keur's front properly Hne to the east, and the Kerr's rear property line
to the west, Said eatlre area shall be constructed us the Parking Area, which s required under
this Agreement,

C., This purking area may be used by Kerr to fulfiil the parking requirements for the
Kesr Property, as required by City Ordinances, and as required by the variance granted by the
Zoning Board of Adjustments. All improvements shall become the property of City, and litle to
all such improvements shall be vested in City. It is exprossly agroed that the Kerr's shall
construet the parking lot within three (3) years from the date of this Agreement.

ARTICLE II .
CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS

A, The Parties hereby agree that Kerr shall submit a Development Site Plan (for the
parking lot improvements) for the parking area, and the Clty shall review and approve said
Development Site Plan if it meets all requirements of the City, Kerr shall comply with any
reasonable requests from the City regarding designs and specifications of improvements to the
parking erea, and any deviations from the Development Site Plan must be pre-approved in
writing by the City Council. All Improvements constructed on the parking area shall comply with
all applicable federal, stats, county or cily ordinances, rules and regulations. All costs of
development under this Agreement shall be borne solely by Kerr,

ARTICLE 111
INDEMNITY

A, KERR SHALL INDEMNIFY CITY AND HOLD CITY WARMLESS
AGAINST ANY INJURY, CLATM OR PROPERTY DAMAGE OR LOSS SUFFERED BY
ANY PARTY OR PERSON AND ANY CLAIM, LAWSULT, LEGAL ACTION, AWARD
OR COST, INCLUDING ATTORNEYS' FEES ARISING FROM ANY DEFECT OR
CONDITION OF THE PARKING LOT OR THE KERR PROPERTY, EXCEPT A
DEFECT ARISING OR RESULTING YROM A WILLFUL OR INTENTIONAL ACT OR
OMISSION OF CITY, (TS OFFICERS OR EMPLOYERES,

ARTICLE TV
GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Notices, All notices or other communications required under this Agreement may
be made elther by personal delivery in writing or by certified mafl, return receipt requested,
Notice shall be deemed to have been given when delivered in person or deposited in U.S, mail,
postage prepaid, certified mail, retwn receipt requested, addressed as follows:

Agreement Concerning Parking Varlance o pag




To City - To Xerr -

City of Montgomery Harry and Rendy Kerr
P.0O. Box 708 13923 Hunter’s Court
Montgomery, Texas 77356 Montgomery, Texas 77356

B, Law Governigg Agreement, This Agreement and all of its tevims, covenants and
conditions, as well as the rights and duties of the Pmties hereunder, shall be govered

exclusively by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Stale of Texas.

C. Licenses, Fees, Permits, and Taxes. Kerr shall secure and maintain, at its own
expense, all federal, state and local licenses and pernmits requirved to pesforin its obligations under

this Agreement, Kerr shall be responsible for all sales, use, excise, business and income laxes
incurred by Kerr in the performance of its obligations vnder this Agreement,

D, Severability and Validity, The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision or
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision
of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect.

E. Headings. The article beadings have been inserted for purposes of convenience
only, and they form no pait of this Agreement and shall not be used forv interpretive purpases.

F, Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts, each of
wltich shall be deemed an original and all of which, when taken together, shall constitute bne

Agreement.

G.  Entirety of Apreement. This Agreement, including fhe attached Exhibits, and any
other writing sigaed by the Parties that specifically references this Agresment, constilute the
entire agreement among the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all
prior agreements, understandings and nogotiations, both written and oral, botween the Parties
with respect lo the subject matter hereof This Agreement is not intended to confer upon any
person oiher than the Parlies to this Agreement any rights or remedies, Each Party to this
Agresmeni acknowledges that no inducements or promises, otal or otherwise, have been made
by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of uny party, that are not contained in this Agreement,

M. Torce Majeure, For puwrposes of this Sectlon “force majewre” means an event
beyond the control of either Party, which by its nature could not have been foreseen by such
Party, or, if it could have been foreseen, was unavoidable, and includes without limitation, acts
of God, storms, floods, viots, fires, terrorism, sabotage, civil commotion or civil unrest,
interference by civil or military authorities, acts of war (declared or undeclared),
telecommunications failure and failure of energy sources. Neither Party shall be under any
linbility for faifure to Rulfiil any obligation under this Agreament, so long as and o the extent to
which the fulfilliment of such obligation is prevented, frustiated, hindsred, or delayed us o
consequence of circumsiances of force majewre, provided that such Party shall have exercised all
due diligence to minimize lo the greatest extent possible the effect of foree majeure on ils
obligations herennder. This Section dees not relieve Kerr of any duties or obligations contained

Agreement Concerning Parking Varfance Page 3




Cin Article VI hereln,

L Compliance witl Laws, Each Pacty shall comply with all federal, staie, and jocal
statutes, ordinances, regulations and requirements applicable 1o the performance of this
Agreement, Keur shall comply with all safety and other vegulations and diveclives promulgaied
by Montgomery County ov any other governmental entity and shall use the leased premises
strictly for the purposes outlined herein, -

J. Amendment,  This Agreoment may be amended only by a wiilten agreement
exectied by both Parties,

K. Waiver. The failure of either Party to exercise any right ot remedy due to breach
or default by other Parly under this Agreement shall not be deemed as walver of such rights or
remedies or as walver of any subsequent breach or default by the other Party,

L. Right of Enwy and inspection, Kerr shall permit City or City’s agents,
representalives or employees to enter the leased premises at any time of Kerr's use during the
lease term, whether for the purpose of inspection to defermine whether Kerr is in compliance
with the terms of this Agreement or for any other purpose.

M. Assipnment. Kerw ray not assign or sell any of its rights or obligations under
this Agreement.

N, Parties Bound and Release of City. This Agreement shall be binding upou and
inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, successors and

assigns where permitted by this Agreement, In the event City shall sell or transfer its interest in
the leased premises or any part thereof, and as a part of such transaction shall assign lts luterest
as City jn and fo this Agreement, (hen, from and alter the effective dute of such sale, assignment
or transfer, City shall have no further Hability under this Agreement to Kerr except as to the
matter of liability which shall have accrued and is unsatisfied ag of such effective date, it béing
understood and intended thet the covenants and obligations contained in this Agreement on the
part of City shall be binding on City’s successors and assigns, only during and in respect to their
respective successive perfod of ownarship of the leasehald interest,

- remalnder of this page is internatlonally blanf -

Agreement Concerning

Prling Varjance B Pgeti




SIGNED and ENTERED inte the pth_ dayof Qctober, 2012,

! ,,_.'rl,“\z_s‘!\‘\‘iﬁq’

NS TOF 2,
QNG ARRN
I Y

¥ LR

#{g’).' Sl L
%LJE oo
m 'ﬂ %‘L\\X iy .‘.’
U{f(f‘).y'.' ‘ " :Uj
QH ‘?'l... n"':'\
N e v
L\“\a‘“&;\l\?ﬂn‘-"u

ATTEST:

C L [\@ ?\\&‘_\N\’\(\; 93
City Secretary &

P

HARRY KERR

RENDY KERR

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

o

( ’/,ygc

JOHN FC)"}yMayer /
!

Ag: eemant Concemlng Par kmg Vat Ianr:e




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: February 13, 2018 Budgeted Amount:

Department:

Exhibits: Sec.114.112 of Texas Utility
Code,
e-mail from Mr. Corley
Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator
Date Prepared: February 7, 2018

This is a report regarding LDC gas rates and reimbursement charges billed to
residents of the city. While some information is known right now more will be
determined before the February 13 meeting and will be reported at the meeting.

As I write this at 4 o’clock on February 7 I’ve spoken with Mark Everts, Dir, Of
Gas Services at the Railroad Commission in Austin. Mr. Everts told me that the
city has original, and sole, jurisdiction over reimbursement fees inside the city.
Outside the city limits the Railroad Commission has original jurisdiction. He
said that the Railroad Commission denied LDCs request for reimbursement
recovery inside the City. He directed me to the Texas Utility Code Section.
104.112 (attached) which appears to clearly state the original and sole
jurisdiction issue.

I ask®Mr. Everts if there was a penalty for LDC improperly charging for the
reimbursement and he said that there was and that the penalty could be
determined and assessed by the City Council. He said he would email me the
section regarding the penalty, but as of now he is not done so.

1 also asked Mr. Everts about notice to the city of the hearing and notification of
the decision. He said he would send me a copy of the city’s notification but as of
now he has not done so.

It preliminarily appears that LDC has improperly billed city residents for the
reimbursement charges for the Lone Star Bend gas line and the administrative
costs billed to the reimbursement also for the filing with the Railroad
Commission for their application. It also appears as though LDC has been less
than correct and forthcoming with accurate statements regarding these
reimbursement charges. I have an e-mail from LDC President Larry D. Corley




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

stating the reason that the Railroad Commission and L.LDC decided to implement
the reimbursement surcharge was because the city’s failure to meet the
requirements of the code by not stating a reason why the Council denied the
request (attached). Personally I could understand an initial mistake in making
the original filing but after Commission denial specifically of the inside city
reimbursement charges I do not understand a second error in answering a direct
question about the reimbursement after the Railroad Commission had made its
ruling.

As to the regular consumption billings the city has jurisdiction, however those
rates can be appealed to the Commission. I have a copy of their filing for their
last rate increase that includes the cost of operation, salaries paid and all other
costs recovered through rates. I, and others are reviewing that submittal now.

The City Attorney and I will be continuing the review — with the possibility
being a formal hearing regarding a reimbursement and penalty decision by the
City Council for LDC improperly charging for the Lone Star Bend
reimbursement to city residents.

Recommendation

Listen to the report and the City Attorney’s advice on the matter- then decide as
you will.

Approved By
City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: February 7, 2018




Sec. 104.112. SURCHARGE TO RECOVER RELOCATION COSTS. (a)
This section applies to a gas utility's costs of relocating a
facility to accommodate construction or improvement of a
highway, road, street, public way, or other public work by or on
behalf of the United States, this state, a political subdivision
of this state, or another entity having the power of eminent
domain that are not reimbursed by a source other than as
provided by this section.

(b) A gas utility may recover its relocation costs to
which this section applies through a surcharge on gas volumes
sold and transported to customers in the service area where the
relocation occurred by applying to each.appropriate regulatory
authority for a new rate schedule or tariff. The gas utility is
not required to file a statement of intent to increase rates to
institute the surcharge, and the other provisions of this
subchapter, other than appeal rights, do not apply to
institution of the surcharge.

(c) An application under Subsection (b) must include
sufficient documentation to demonstrate:

(1) the requirement for each relocation;

(2) the entity requiring the relocation;

(3) costs incurred for relocation of comparable
facilities;

(4) surcharge computations; and

(5) that reasonable efforts have been made to receive
reimbursement from the entity requiring the relocation, if
applicable.

(d) Not later than the 35th day after the date an
application under Subsection (b) is received, the regulatory
authority shall administratively grant or deny the application.
Denial of the application must be based on a finding that:

(1) the relocation was not necessary or required;

(2) the costs of the relocation were excessive or not

supported;

(3) the utility did not pursue reimbursement from the
entity requiring the relocation, if applicable;

190



(4) the surcharge i1s unduly discriminatory among
customers or classes of customers located in the service area;
or

(5) the period over which the relocation costs are
designed to be recovered is less than one or more than three
years.

(e) If the regulating authority does not make a decision
before the deadline prescribed by Subsection (d), the

application is approved.

Added by Acts 1999, 76th Leg., ch. 219, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1,
1999, BAmended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 662, Sec. 1, eff.
Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec, 104.151. UNREASONABLE OR VIOLATIVE EXISTING RATES.
(a) If the regulatory authority, on its own motion or on
complaint by an affected person, after reasonable notice and
hearing, finds that the existing rates of a gas utility for a
service are unreasonable or in violation of law, the regulatory
authority shall:

(1) enter an order establishing the just and
reasonable rates to be observed thereafter, including maximum or
minimum rates; and

(2) serve a copy of the order on the gas utility.

(b) The rates set under Subsection (a) constitute the
legal rates of the gas utility until changed as provided by this
subtitle.

Acts 1997, 15th Leg., c¢h. 166, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 1997,

Sec. 104.152, INVESTIGATING COSTS OF OBTAINING SERVICE
FROM ANOTHER SOURCE. If a gas utility does not produce the
service that it distributes, transmits, or furnishes to the
public for compensation but obtains the service from another

source, the regulatory authority may investigate the cost of

191




that production in an investigation of the reasonableness of the

gas utility's rates,

Acts 1997, 75th Leg., c¢h. 166, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 1937,

192



~~~~~~~~~~ Forwarded message -rrm----

From: Larry Corley <icorley@ldcgas.com>

Date: Fri, Nov 17, 2017 at 11:00 AM

Subject: LDC's Relocation Surcharge Issue

To: "Yates, Jack" <jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.us>

Cc: bbrown <bbrown@Idcgas.com>, Mike Swaim <mike.t.swaim@gmail.com>

Jack,

As a follow up to our meeting yesterday, the following information and attached data
should clarify the reason why the RRC and LDC’s decided to implement the Surcharge
to include all City Customers. In January and June Council meetings, the Council
Denied both requests and did not specifically state a reason why. As per the
requirements of the Texas Utility Code, Section 104.112 (see attached copy), a

Denial MUST be based on one of the four stated reasons in the Code. Montgomery
City Council simply did not meet the requirements of the Code by denying the requests
for no reason stated.

Please do not hesitate to call if you need further discussion.

Larry D. Corley
President

(936) 539-3500

(713) 826-7881 Celi




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: February 13, 2018 Budgeted Amount:
Department:

Exhibits: Letter of request,
Engineer’s memo
Plat showing variance in
Yellow,
Pictures from QBS,
Pictures from J. Yates of
alleyways behind Caroline
Street
Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator
Date Prepared: February 7,2018

This is a request from Damon Scott of QBS Homes for a 5 foot front building
line variance on lights one through four and a 5 foot building line variance on the
north side of lot for all of these variances are in Block 1 of West of the Park

| Subdivision,

The reason given in the letter of request is to continue to some of the same style
of homes as started on Caroline Street. The lots on Sheppard are not as deep as
the lots on Caroline therefore there is a greater potential that they will have an
issue with the use of their garages which are all approached from an alleyway
behind the houses. The thought is that since these houses not in a mid-block
with other houses with different frontages that the distance back from the road
will not be apparent/noticeable. By building 5 feet closer to the front of the lot
that will leave 5 feet more distance between the garage and the alleyway--- thus
making the driveway approaches to the garage is have more room for a vehicle
to park and not possibly stick out into the narrow alleyway.

The reason I took some pictures of the Caroline houses alley is to show the
narrowness of those alleys.

The reason given for the variance on the north side of Lot 4 is so that a chimney
Brickwork can jut into the side yard building lot line.




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Opinion: given that the properties are distinct and one Street, the standard front
yard of 20 feet, to me, is acceptable — — especially compared to the narrowness
of the driveway alleys in the rear access to the garages.

The Planning Commission recommended approval of both variances.

Recommendation

Motion to approve the variances as requested.

A opved B

City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: February 7, 2018




CUSTOMHOMES, INC.
“Building Solid Relationships One House At A Time"”

To: The City of Montgomery Board and Adjustments

QBS Custom Homes Inc. Is preparing to complete our final building phase in Westside At The
park. QBS Custom Homes Inc. would like to request a five foot variance of the front build line
on lots 1-4 as well as a five foot variance on the north build line of Lot 4. | have attached a
survey showing the build lInes for your review. The reason for this request is to continue the
same style homes that we have started on Caroline St. in the historical district, The lots on
Sheppard are not as deep as the lots on Caraline therefore there is great potential we will have -
an issue with the alley ways for our future homeowners. A five foot variance will give the same
driveway length as the homes on Caroline 5t. The side build lines are all ten foot except for lot
4, We are requesting a five foot variance on the north side build line for lot four so that we can
bulld a home that stays In harmony with the other beautiful homes we have built thus far. The
new homes on Caroline have Increased the property values in the city of Montgomery and we
are proud to say all of our homes have set records for price per foot and we would like to
continue this trend. By allowing these varlances we can continue to build the same beautiful
product that we have started. Thank you in advance for your consideration of our request.

Sincerely
QBS Custom Homes Inc
Damon Scott

20821-D Eva Streel #114 @ Montgomery, Texas 77356 o Office: 936.447.2328 o Fax: 832.615.2672
www.qbscustomhomes.com




1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400
The Woodlands, Texas 77380

JONES|CARTER Tel: 281.363.4039
Fax: 281.363,3459

wwawv.jonescarter.com
February 1, 2018

The Planning and Zoning Commission
City of Montgomery

101 Old Plantersville Road
Montgomery, Texas 77316

Re: Variance Request — Building Setback Requirement
West Side at the Park
City of Montgomery

Commission Members:

Section 78-90(a) of the City of Montgomery Code of Ordinances specifies front building lines not facing
major streets must have a building setback of no less than 25 feet from the front property line. Section
78-90(b) specifies the building line on the street side of corner lots must be no less than 15 feet from the

side street property line.

o The Developer is requesting a variance from a 25-foot building line to a 20-foot huilding
line along the frontage of Shepperd Street.

e The Developer is requesting a variance from a 15-foot building line to a 10-foot building
line along the frontage of Caroline Street.

Enclosed you will find a request for variance as submitted by the home bullder. We offer no objection to
the requested variance on the grounds that the City’s existing water, sanitary sewer, and drainage
utilities would not be impacted by the variance.

If you have any questions or comments, please contact me.

Sincerely,

7

Chris Roznovsky, PE
Engineer for the City

CVR/ah
K:A\WS5841\W5841-0900-00 General Cansultation\Meeting Files\Status Reports\2018\P&.Z Reports\West Side at the Park, Variance Request-P&Z

Opinion.doc
Enclosures: West Side at the Park — Variance Request
cc/enc:The Honorable Mayor and City Council, City of Montgomery
Mr. Jack Yates — City of Montgomery, City Administrator
Ms. Susan Hensley— City of Montgomery, City Secretary
Mr. Larry Foerster — Darden, Fowler & Creighton, City Attorney

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registralion No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Regislration No, 10046108




Flot Y side Plan. Asking dor 10" side Build Lime. A1l othee
Zide Build Lines Are 10" €pcepr Jor Lot #1/.

craeR 1 P
ALLEY
T B
_ _F_%“'*E_MD_UE L
£ 20 AR AD B,
. —- — __I_ — i :
l"wa o
L r
| z
| | .
<y
gl <4 Sl =
al o
gl ¥ ]
| —
| »
i m
| »
|
|
2508, )
T wewey
(ed.14)
5-1.‘11'?.'
[
Shepperd Sirest
site plan
seAler Wi Vo
7 4

ldesT SICE AT THE PARK
- MONTGOMERT , TEXAS

QBS Custom Homes, Inc.

09.04+14  10-24:14




-
53 ...\. o _ r ~ Th |
AR i L30T A
AR R saun¢ L850 a1
& YIDUIRRGD Y IAMISH 7l 1
J ...\..
7, B
a [/ :
-~ = HWOR
m m s 661 155HS ‘A A0
SH R B — " A, anzsad
’ =
m L .u.ﬁh«....w B ._.m.’ . GNY VR OV
.H R s SELRSLE = X : SETST AT 10888 - -t
.24 -
ol % v 155 BT
o | m | 5 099’ o F : / S4TeRRLS = L
%lmm = L on S Bk PR /
&z & e )
G 20, — 2 H
ﬁrﬂa&%zm_n = 2 o Ww | 2 _m.. ¥ DovdsHTo | X \ ¥
o S0 T3P : B e IR ONLLYSHIIHOD \ R
o W s ; = 8 NS : &
5l 1L &
Y xS A 2
mﬂ < > & \. v \
27 E Bk 5% \m _ ;
ux\.\ T 101 \ AA-‘
s =& 153 SSROH 02
s..\\.\. 8. L
e 1 | mf\._w YR
a”. \\ M \ep _
L ...\ | & a
e m & m
o ¢ i m 1
.\\.\ = m o
e | 3.0 el | =
ey ) 5 2 ”
A = TRl AL i ot B
\.\ = 1 B Rl
3AU 7, i o . v i 3 gu/gr/or AN
an 4 1S 6828 & 9 . o
¢ ﬂmﬁﬂﬂf A8 e e S B | ee | BI®L=F g . e A e
’ L | ]’ B:iR % ol -5 €90
\ L pav | I
- s2oy LSETE
0S8 ! 58 ..m
— ™ T e Ste
<A Pk LG, ASRLSH \ A -
" L _ _ o 5 _ _ .
04y  Caon 0 ﬂ\.\ll — B_II.‘EKE llll;_m_ﬁ.u. ) s 59 U, a4
F@M.&Tbmm whm.w.wﬂuﬂ_uhwow qm x g ¥l 1 R1es ghn}i‘hl\\rlmmx‘- — l.ll-.lu.llllllln.ll||||l||.|.|||1|
T i ped Fm ey I 7777 - Tget 9 97 a188N ReRLs = %
L kwuﬂw.\ o \.ﬁ.nm =% L /e .\.\u%\.sﬁ s \v .w. ; .n%@
- & A SOSL W ooy S +




..l‘i'[ . X . =t ; .,l .‘-!w ;p:-' e
——ten g | !

Faey
ks

Rl e
W e R

(it g

|
()




- |
 drenT  of  Lets

ENETEN =




Pics of lhmes

| i it
g i L
| mteber Ll
il LU | i P 1 I

i g
LAY

il !
i il Ukl i,

10 mr
T
| |




:Bﬁ_ A Homes h‘_

Built By 4BS Homes_

Oh Cﬁftb line- .
Wunt_ To Contirue
T hiS Lok on ’)lh-péw/

Pleasa see full p:sﬁiﬂg infarmotion a-n:fosed.

]

i it IH I
0 I!IIl!;;giyg;gggi”mm‘imlﬂumllm :||iniin‘rm||un I..ull HHH”

ettt DEOHAHGREH

i ”””m'lj';{:q'JL‘!'l'HH;Jumn AL lrnm!unmmn




Pickure  of 12°
// AH . Need '
/ *V'HI'IB cl. So i)sllﬂw
WAy Wil Accomedate
J—L&adﬁm/ CAre - o

oul” Mt Al

5" Parjance Wil Allow
20" DRIV Wpy . o

Pleate ses full prescribing informalion enclosed.

Nz
I_W ﬂﬂf ﬂmm

TR T _

wloaT, Car will Hang -




Tt

T N

<5
o ety
¢ e b
L R e g B
Ty o e
. :

'F [udﬂ- J.?lﬁﬂ :

ProxecTec]

To

Be Bul}

o

et Y

Please see lull presceibing informolion enclosed.




__ﬂggLﬁBQL_ S
— ProTecte’ 70
k_.Be_¥BuL/_.7l;_Q_ﬂ__ o
oty

Please see foll prescribing information enclosed,




o Gy
: t'{"ﬂ""f
v . l' I

10l

&

4 ¥)

P, A
[} .-\\[J' i
Ay AN EN
i L

Pr1es PHOT®

0f ACLE) T

REAR ACEKY Wi
BLH (0 D Carline




oA A




Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date: February 13,2018 Budgeted Amount:
Department: Administration
Susan Hensley Merchant TABC and City
Application for Beverage
Prepared By: Exhibits: Permit
Date Prepared: | February 8, 2018

Application for an Alcohol Beverage Permit for Uncle Bob’s BBQ Montgomery to be located at 20873
Eva Street, Suite G, Montgomery, as submitted by Robert L. Blalock, Jr. This is the location previously
occupied by Pizza Shack.

Review and approval of the Alcohol Beverage Permit Application for the sale of Mixed Beverages for
Uncle Bob’s BBQ Montgomery.

This is the second beverage permit application that will be processed under the new City ordinance.
While this process does still require the vendor to come before City Council to request that their Beverage
Permit be reviewed and approved during an open meeting, the City is no longer required to call a public
hearing, mail out notices, or publish a legal notice.

Uncle Bob’s BBQ has another location in Willis by Stow-away Marina on Lake Conroe. TABC
processes applicants that already have a license a lot faster. Additionally, this business will be going into
a location that was previously approved for the sale of wine and beer. This beverage permit will be for
the sale of mixed beverages.

prrre— ) 0 o

7 / f )
City Secretary W A Date: 02/08/18

City Administrator W K | Date: Z-Q ° ‘ ’ld‘




City of Montgomery, Texas

City of Montgomery B0, B 706
Alcohol Beverage Montgomery, Texas 77356
License Application 936-597-3288

www.montgomerytexas.gov

2/07/1§

L. Type of Alcoholic Beverage License: (attach completed TABC Application Form)

APPLICATION FOR THE SALE OF ALCO]-?LIC BEVERAGE LICENSE

Date Received by the City:

(1) Category A — Off Premises Consumption Sale of All Alcoholic Beverages — Package Store
(2) Category B — Off Premises Consumption Sale of Wine, Beer or Ale.
(3) Category C — Off Premises Consumption Sale of Beer.

v (4) Category D — On Premises Consumption Sale of Beer, Wine and Mixed beverages — Restaurant or Café,
' where the sale of beer, wine and mixed beverage on the premises would be incidental to the restaurant or café.
(5) Category E — On Premises Consumption Sale of Beer, Wine and Mixed beverages — Tavern, Lounge, or Bar.
The sale of Beer, Wine and Mixed beverages for On-Premises Consumption being the principal business line.
(6) Category F — Warehouse storage of Beer, Wine or Liquor for Distributors — No sale of Beer for on or Off-
Premises Consumption permitted on the Premises.

Legal Description of the property for which License is sought. (Either by Lot and Block number or by a Meles and

2
s Bounds Description: /4t HED

3.'/Exact Nature of the Business to be operated. (Must be fitlly described in cover letter on company letterhead).

4.+ Attach a Plat of the property to the Application showing the improvements, parking areas, location of signage and other
structures on the property and within three hundred (300) feet to scale.

5 /Description of signs and the hours they will be operated to be attached as a separate document.

6.+ Attach floor plan of the building in which the business is to be conducted (showing fixtures, furniture, restrooms, kitchen
and other equipment).

7. Attach a verified statement stating that the building is not within three hundred (300) feet of a church, school or hospital
and that the building is in compliance with the requirements of this chapter for separate and adequate toilet facilities for
men and women if used for on-premises consumption of beer, liquor or wine. This can be included in cover letter.

8. Business Owner: Repert L. BeAtock, Tr Phone:: ﬂftéo 2-65 9%

Address: m&mmm_m;mmhﬁ TX 72?356

Home Address: SA4me Phone:
Check if you are leasing property: [&3—

9. Land Owner: 0. Mo NTGomearey TRHee L P Phone: §22/4 23- Y000
Address: ENe 7 o M, x sPvo Swirsfo PLan/o, TX, 7502

10. Business Partners: TEEESH M. BLAL pcu Phone: 735/53?* oS 7#

Address: 38 CApMDEN Hwes pr. /MonToomem, TN 2735¢
Home Address: S Ame ! Phone:

This is to certify that T, %BEIZT L. 'B'L,gy.ock, Te have complied with all State, County, Codes
WQWM Montgomery, Texas.

(Pl A — or i\}l)\ﬂ O AAY {)MVLYJL
Business Owner and/ﬂcssec Partner if Applicable

r‘bfalockl@ 1cloud . com




11.7A cover letter on your company’s letterhead shall include a description of the nature of the business to be
conducted, the names and address and interests of all persons having a direct or indirect financial interest
in the property. The cover letter can include any other requested information that needs further
description.

Upon receipt of this application form and confirmation that all items have been received, you will be notified
of the date and time of the City Council Public Hearing by the City Secretary.

The public hearing will require legal notice to be published in the City’s official newspaper, the Conroe
Courier 15-days prior to the meeting. There is also a required notice to be sent by mail ten {10) days in
advance of the Public Hearing to all property owners within 200 feet of the property in question.

If the application is not approved by City Council, ho new application may be filed for a period of one year
from the date of the public hearing and original application, unless City Council shall determine that
conditions have so changed that an earlier hearing would be justified.

The provisions of City Code shall be considered concurrent with or in addition to the Texas Alcoholic
Beverage Code, and, where a conflict may be found to exist, the provisions of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage
Code shall apply. Applicants for a City alcoholic beverage license must comply with all applicable state and
county codes and regulations as well as the requirements of the City Code.

It shall be unlawful for any person to manufacture, brew, distill, sell or distribute any wine, beer, liquor or
other alcoholic beverage within the City, or engage in any other activity for which a license or permit is
required by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code, without first obtaining a license so to do from the City. The
annual fee for each such license shall be an amount equal to one-half the fee charged by the state for a
license or permit to engage in a similar activity.

Note: The Alcoholic Beverage Code, provides that a mixed beverage permit is exempt from City permit
fees during the three year period following the issuance of the permit.

If you require any additional information, please contact the City Secretary, Susan Hensley at (936) 597-
3288.

Form— REV 06/2017




Uncle Bob’s BBQ Montgomery
20873 Eva St.

Suite G

Montgomery, TX. 77356
936/203-6596 Phone
936/597-7627 Fax
Bob@unclebobssauces.com
Terri@unclebobssauces.com

www.unclebobssauces.com

FEBRUARY 4, 2018

City of Montgomery, Texas
P. 0. Box 708
Montgomery, Texas 77356

Dear City of Montgomery, Texas,

Uncle Bob’s BBQ Montgomery, located at 20873 Eva St., Suite G, Montgomery, TX. 77356, will be a full service
restaurant primarily serving food such as BBQ and burgers along with a full service bar operating no later than 12
midnight. Uncle Bob’s BBQ & Catering will serve the catering needs of the surrounding area and Uncle Bob'’s Sauces
will operate and manufacture sauces, rubs, and seasonings out of this facility as well.

The building is not within three hundred (300) feet of a church, school or hospital. The building is compliant with
the requirements of this chapter for separate and adequate toilet facilities for men and women.

Uncle Bob’s BBQ Montgomery is wholly owned and operated by Robert L. Blalock, Jr. and Teresa M. Blalock with both

helding 50% ownership. Their address is 38 Camden Hills Dr., Montgomery, TX. 77356.

Renditions of signage are attached. Uncle Bob’s BBQ will be placed on the front across the top of the building. Uncle
Bob’s BBQ will replace Pizza Shack on the third line from the top on the Montgomery Trace Center marquis sign. The
round Pizza Shack sign on the front of the building will be reworked with the attached Uncle Bob's logo. The signs
will be operated during business hours from 11am to 11pm.

Uncle Bob’s BBQ Montgomery is very excited to serve the City of Montgomery and surrounding areas.

Warm regards,

7#,/%/%»

Robert L. Blalock, Jr.
PRESIDENT



4
h .v 151§ TN oy g
LY o LI 1R Iy R 201817 10 meq
g LA A Rog i), ey verLIo RT P LT 90 1 C1'A N 9L
“T ] iy S P RN DS VITY £q padope pon pRqmes Lucial ks aphg

LT IE WY U L1 G2 'y Lowtumge 4 23 pagatdres

pry

_.-—!lllv!ul

£ it ¥y

e i) 24 ] e
ASLIE Y VO T T SOLLE D0 M Y, Ay A S
2 S e e b et e oy e ] e

FUCHONGL X TIHARL.

o

o =

WeACIN 20K

P L At om0 ] g T PSR ¥ ST N
T (00 Ko R ] O LT A T 1 EF i
k] TLEIP KN

m
X000 ] S DN O S M AT 8 4O ] ey m ey

ST PHIR B bl ELCHL | ) TN AT ¥ S AT B
R 25 P98 L T Y {LOBAE L T, g 4410
P B} AU 5 M 30 i 134 o] ] 49 L, i [pparm)

I LTI s W e Lttt ey

T Mok 1 b b pacpng
w11 4 sy

G LT M YN0 K

oo LT L TE O S R 743 S 41, 6 o
LPLICYE A0 o (L0 g R T M4 5l o s i
Y ALY 39 A S o K240 B

e o

‘ToelEms

TR A5 PG00 991 Lo YR M 5 A 1A 1 i
ey L, s
iy o P s o D st~ s o

e SROraN
P it B s -s.!.“._--_-.::‘l_...-. gy
Sty g O S
Y iy
pemrcotadlityuh iyl et et Lot Sl e

1007 A 7 o oo O Mo R ) g
=y 0t i o

A0 P e . a5 T A T Y 5 e

S R 3, S

»-!si!:aev,!l-e!lalin.lrllnlsnzi
O AL, Tt kst

i
ot L L4 2 w5
A B 3 S g o Cho
i L g Ll qmpee-L o . bt Ll

.!.:l..l 10, yort

e e o A Y G e e ereen s

Shmgmaca v 71 T O A A b e} 5 i

R G - R, HE i e,k famtfiomey 53 ey

PR 1 0k = o s g g o L
i

az o []

A R .
LTI ELL LAY Y f fean By

STIMAO QY oL

" 3 Y9
e S R
ATV oy W

(6¥) ) 8015 A rteT

FLAOSHIP BOULEVARD
LA SN
T

5 TFIY W Rbetd

J22.0568 5 m_l “

ez g
gy

!.n_

—
L0091 3 L0.0088 5

I HFR
!
i

TR T
gy

e
= P o
[ 7L e Fr
= T
. T
PRI L.

[zl
A0S 362,600

;
2R

HTH

501 AVAEDIH ZIVIS

LS T, g s T g 4 5 Y
e e e 8 M G ) 1o

PO PR oL D o s e TR ZT TROT

v Aiand
DT P T OO Sy LT W 9. w1
ey 7 T e s g Wy e S

iy, g mp T T 2 vapa o 1 £ 201

o Srmla! ;g emcs TATE ST 4 9T 507
St ke e e 0506 T e

T, Sy s Sy e e g 1 01

T o o B s o T o
g, ome. ey
20 ocny Qe ek s 7 (170698 PO W1 D

D R ) DR ey e L e D> it

o "Lty NI,
T T AR (] ) ST L 1D
rncy W] b Y 4o ey w3 TR, MRE T 90T
e 4y 1

AN M [008 1 3=k} MR v e Sy A 201
o) LixsaoRae0yy 40 EArewey Eymane) (T €310
I

W,
Wy Lamrhyra AN iy v 1 'y T e

1wy Loy, S g e i )| o | Lompeme

Qo eyrs g Suo s 12 Ty vy Reiprrmg 301
gy Lt e e e o, lakiry LBy
59 by a7 Loy T iy 9
oo e 2 ot o} s pa P FPALT
T 2 A8 4 £ e 5. o ey 101

(LSRR
N Al 4 0 iy pamam e i)
HRION NOLIVANON  STHMIT







P oo

MONTGOMERY TRACE CENTER

3P d & M WOO FOREST
Ot .

THE MAIL STOP
@ aFILE E

— COFFEE SHOF

Shanon Salsbury o StateFarm

FAMILYJMEDICINE
936-597-5555

Kimberly Zobal, M.D.






L

574

1
1

Stoct]

SRy

Fa

s —

CQOOUOCH

N)) L5 _7._.311/}\\\ S PO ,.m.&n@

H&{
YAt

T H

SRR

e

)

S
) e
~

R SR N ELS

""a?ngz')w[,p!
|

-

e e
WU g

b0 gl

| AR oA




TEXAS ALCOHOLIC

Us/ moimmreneae 0 ON-PREMISE PREQUALIFICATION PACKET L-ON
{12/2017)

_Submlt thls packet to the proper governmental entltses to obtam certlflcatlon for the type of hcenselpermit for_[
whlch you are applylng as reqmred by Sectlons 11 37 11 39 11 46(b), 61 37 61 38 61 42 and Rule §33 13

1. Application for: [s] Original (1 Add Late Hours Only  License/Permit Number
O Reinstatement License/Permit Number
1 Change of Licensed Location License/Permit Number_

2. Type of On-Premise License/Permit

[0 BG Wine and Beer Retailer's Permit L] LB Mixed Beverage Late Hours Permit
[J BE Beer Retail Dealers On-Premise License 1 M Minibar Permit
[} BL Retail Dealer's On-Premise Late Hours License [ CB Caterer's Permit
] BP Brewpub License [0 FB Food and Beverage Certificate
L] V. Wine & Beer Retailer's Permit for Excursion Boats [J PE Beverage Cartage Permit
] ¥ Wine &Beer Retailer's Permit for Rallway Dining Car [] RM Mixed Beverage Restaurant Permit with FB
[s] MB Mixed Beverage Permit
{7} 0 Private Carrier's Permit — For Brewpubs {BP) with a BG only
3. lndacate Prlmary Business at this Location
(W] Restaurant [1 Sporting Arena, Civic Center, Hotel [_]Bar
] Grocery/Market ] Sexually Oriented [ I Miscellaneous

4. Trade Name of Location

Uncle Bob's BBQ Montgomery
5. Location Address

20873 Eva St. Suite G

City “County State | Zip Code
Montgomery Montgomery TX 77356
6. Mailing Address City State | Zip Code
20873 Eva St. Suite G Montgomery X 77356
7. Business Phone No. Alternate Phone No. E-mail Address )
936/203-6596 936/537 0577 rbfa!ockT@tcloud com

8. Type of Owner

Il Individual ["] Corporation L1 City/County/University
] Partnership {=] Limited Liability Company [] Other
7] Limited Partnership 71 Joint Venture

D Limited Liability Partnershlplj Trust
9 Busmess Owner/Applicant S
Robert L. Blalock, Jr.

10. Are you, the applicant a veteran-owned business? O Yes @ No
11. Are you, the applicant a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)? OYes @No

Page 1 of 5 Form L-ON (12/2017)




2. '_As md:cated on the chart enter the mdlwduals that pertam to your busmess type
R R (For ao‘drtrona! space use Form L-0OIC)

EED Indlwdualllndlwdual Owner S e HLimited Liability Companyr'AIl Offlcers or Managers”-“" SRR
~Partership/All Partners .~ M JomtVenturelVenturers
< Limited Partnershtp/!-\ll General Partners SR TrustT rustee(s) ' .
" CorporationfAll Officers -~ = 0 0 Gity, County, University/Official - - SR
Last Name First Name Mi Tltle
Blalock, Jr. Robert L President
Last Name First Name Mi | Title
Blalock Teresa M Vice President
Last Name First Name Mi | Title

13. Will your business be located within 300 feet of a church or public hospital?{_)Yes (®)No

NOTE “For churches or pubirc hosprtals measure from front door to front o‘oor along the property fmes of the street fronts
and in a drrect Ime across. rntersectrons o St e . . R s

Wil your busmess be located W|th|n 300 feet of any private!publlc school, day care center or chlld care
14. facility? Yes No

if “YES,” are the facilities located on different floors or stories of the building’?OYes O No

NOTE For prrvate/publrc schoois day care centers and chr!d care facrlrtres measure rn a drrect Irne from the nearest

S _.property Irne of the. school ‘day care. center or chrld care facmty to the nearest properiy Irne of the piace of
o busrness and in a drrect r'rne across rntersectrons : : TS i

NOTE For multrstory bu:ldmg busrnesses rnay be wrthrn 300 feet of a day care center or chn’d care facrlrty as Iong as .
HERES .the facilities are located on drfferent floors of the. burrdmg :

: NOTE rf Iocated on or. above the frfth story of a muitrstory burldrng measure rn a drrect Ime frorn the property Irne of the .
o '_iprrvate/pubirc school fo propeﬂy Irne of your piace of business ina drrect Ime 8cross rntersectrons vemoaﬂy up N
o the burldrng at the property Irne to the base of the ﬂoor on which your busmess is Iocated :

15. Will your business be located within 1,000 feet of a private school’?.Yes .No

16. Will your business be located within 1,000 feet of a public school? .Yes . No

47. As required under Section 11.391 and 61.381, enter the exact date the 60- | =<2¢t Dale (MMDDIYYY)
" Day sign was posted at your location. NA

18. IF YOUR LOCATION IS NOT WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS, CHECK HERE | |
|, the applicant, have confirmed | am not located in the city limits of any city and therefore all city
certificates are not required.

Page 2 of 5 Form L-ON (12/2017)




Son. who makes a faise 8l atement or false

_requwed to be sworn commlts an offense punlshable by lmpnsonment |n Ihe Texas Depaﬂment of Cnmlnal Justlce for not less than 2 |
‘nor more than 10 years i : SR : ;

I,"UNDER PENALTY" ‘OF: LAW HEREBY SWEAR THAT HAVE ‘READ ALL THE INFORMATION PRO\HDED IN THE APPLICATION AND ANY ATTACHMENTS AND -
“THE INFORMATION 1S TRUE AND CORRECT. ' |-ALSO UNDERSTAND ANY-FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION IN:THIS APPLIGATION CAN RESULT IN
MY APPLICATION BEING DENIED AND/OR GRIMINAL ‘CHARGES FILED AGAINST ME. I ALSO AUTHORiZE THE TEXAS ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE COMMISSION
TO USE ALL LEGAL MEANS TO VERIFY THE iNFORMATION PROVIDED. SRR

L e T ey ey
SIGN /
NAME ?’OEE—@T L.’{SLMLOUL.‘_TR_ HERE WW

PRINT
/ ¥

TITLE PTZE S IDEAST

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this | day of Feb , 20 If) the person whose name is signed to
the foregoing application personally appeared and, duly sworn by me, states under oath that he or she has read the said

application and that all the facts therein set forth are true and correct. s e e B A S S N
SIGN >
HERE e 5 TAMARA D NEIGHBORS

] @Rv PUBLIC My Commission Expires
SEAL August &, 2018

| hereby certify on this day of , 20 , that the location for which the
license/permit is sought is inside the boundaries of this city or town, in a “wet” area for such license/permit, and not
prohibited by charter or ordinance in reference to the sale of such zlcoholic beverages.

SIGN
HERE , TEXAS
City Secretary/Clerk City

SEAL

| hereby certify on this day of , 20 , that the location for which the |
license/permit is sought is inside the boundaries of this city or town, in a “wet” area for such license/permit, and not
prohibited by charter or ordinance in reference to the sale of such alcoholic beverages.
Election for given location was held for:
[ iegal sale of all alcoholic beverages
[] legal sale of all alcoholic beverages except mixed beverages
L1 legal sale of all alcoholic beverages including mixed beverages
[1 legal sale of beer/wine (17%) on-premise AFTER Sept. 1, 1999
[1 legal sale of beerfwine {(14%) on-premise BEFORE Sept. 1, 1999
OR IF ABOVE DOES NOT APPLY:
Be adviged the location must have had two election passages per Section 25.14 or Section 69.17 of the TABC Code. One for beer
and wine off-premise and one for mixed beverage.
[ 1 legal sale of beer and wine for off-premise consumption only
AND EITHER; ,
L[] legal sale of mixed beverages |
OR
[] legal sale of mixed beverages in restaurants by food and beverage certificate holders
{applicant must apply for FB with BG or BE)

SIGN
HERE , TEXAS
City Secretary/Clerk City ]

SEAL

Page 3 of 5 Form L-ON (12/2017)




: | hereby certify on this day of , '20 , that one of the below is correct;
: [ 1 The governing body of this city has by ordinance authorized the sale of mixed beverages between midnight and 2:00 ;
i AM. or
- [I The governing body of this city has by ordinance authorized the sale of beer between midnight and
‘ AM. or

{1 The population of the city or county where premises are located was 500,000 or more according to the 220 Decennial

Census of the United States as released by the Bureau of the Census on March 12, 2001; or :

{1 The population of the city or county where premises are located was 800,000 or more according to the last Federal
Census (2010).

! SIGN
. HERE , TEXAS
: City Secretary/Clerk City

SEAL

| hereby certify on this day of ., 20 , that the location for which the

license/permit is sought is in a “wet” area for such license/permit, and is not prohibited by any valid order of the
Commissioner’s Court.

SIGN

HERE COUNTY
County Clerk

SEAL

i

| hereby certify on this day of , 20 , that the location for which the
license/permit is sought is in a “wet” area and is not prohibited by any valid order of the Commissioner's
Court.
| Election for given location was held for:
‘[ legal sale of all alcoholic beverages
legal sale of all alcoholic beverages except mixed beverages
iegal sale of all alcoholic beverages including mixed beverages
legal sale of beer/wine (17%) on-premise AFTER Sept. 1, 1999
legal sale of beer/wine {14%) on-premise BEFORE Sept. 1, 1999
OR IF ABOVE DOES NOT APPLY:
Be advised the location must have had two election passages per 25.14 or 69.17 of the TAB Code. One for beer and wine off-premise
and one for mixed beverage.
[7] legal sale of beer and wine for off-premise consumption only
AND EITHER:
[1 legal sale of mixed beverages
OR
[] legal sale of mixed beverages in restaurants by food and beverage certificate holders
(applicant must apply for FB with BG or BE)

OO0

SiGN
HERE COUNTY

County Clerk
SEAL

Page 4 of 5 Form L-ON (12/2017)




| hereby certify on this day of , 20 , that one of the below are correct;

[7] The Commissioner's Court of the county has by order authorized the sale of mixed beverages between midnight and
2:00 AM,; or

] The Commissioner's Court of the county has by order authorized the sale of beer between midnight and

AM.; or

[1 The population of the city or county where premises are located was 500,000 or more according to the 22 Decennial
Census of the United States as released by the Bureau of the Census on March 12, 2001; or

(] The population of the city or county where premises are located was 800,000 or more according to the last Federal
Census (2010).

SIGN

HERE COUNTY
County Clerk

SEAL

This is to certify on this day of , 20 , the apptlicant holds or has applied for
and satisfies all legal requirements for the issuance of a Sales Tax Permit under the Limited Sales, Excise and Use Tax Act
aor the applicant as of this date is not required to hoid a Sales Tax Permit.

Sales Tax Permit Number Outlet Number

Print Name of Comptroller Employee

Print Title of Comptroller Employee

SIGN
HERE FIELD OFFICE

SEAL

Name of newspaper

____ __City, County
Dates notice published in daily/weekly
e oo ,,,.,,,,,ﬁ,,,,.,ﬁfnhe_wg’.pﬁa,per (MM’DDIYYW) R A'E'TACH PRlNTED

Publisher or designee cerlifies affached notice was published in newspaper stated on dates shown.

COPY OF THE

Signature of publisherordesignee |
Sworn to and subscribed NOTICE HERE
before me on this date (MM/IDD/YYYY)

Signature of Notary Public

SEAL

Page 5 of § Form L-ON (12/2017)




TEXAS ALCOHOLIC
BEVERAGE COMMISSION

OWNERSHIP INFORMATION
Continued for Prequalification Packet

SR s O s s e

L-oiC
(01/2018)

[T T VRN Y Sy —

1. Trade Name of Location
Uncle Bob's BBQ Montgomery
2. Location Address
20873 Eva St. Suite G
City ) County State | Zip Code
Montgomery Montgomery TX 77356
3. Typeof Owner )
[ ] Individual [ ] Corporation , [ | City/County/University i
{.] Partnership ___[ml Limited Liability Company [ 1 Other
[ | Limited Partnership ~~ [] Joint Venture _
[ 1 Limited Liability Partnership [ ] Trust
Last Name First Name Mi | Title
Blalock, Jr. Robert L  President
Last Name First Name Ml | Title
Blalock Teresa M Vice President
Last Name First Name Ml | Title
Last Name First Name MI | Title
Last Name First Name MI | Title
Last Name First Name M | Title
Last Name First Name Ml | Title
Last Name First Name Ml | Title
Last Name First Name ME | Title
Last Name First Name Ml | Title
Last Name First Name Ml | Title
Last Name First Name Ml | Title
Last Name First Name Ml | Title

Page 1 of 1

Form L-OIC (01/2018)




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: Fobyuw, 5 2018 Budgeted Amount:
Department:

Exhibits:
Prepared By: Jack Yates

City Administrator
Date Prepared: Fe‘ows-m{ 71,2018

Subject 0

This is a Report from the City Engineer regarding the bridge repair construction.

Description

The Contractor is in construction now. There were two or three days for cold
weather allowance from last weeks weather,

No request for payment has been made yet, so no reason to act regarding the
loan possibility.

Recommendation

Listen to the Report, comment as you feel appropriate

Approved By
City Administrator

Jack Yates Datet Fybrnery 7,2018




	AGENDA - COUNCIL 021318
	ITEM #1 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	ITEM #1A - 010918 MINUTES
	ITEM #1B - 012318 MINUTES

	ITEM #2 - ESD #2 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
	ITEM #3 - ANNEXATION ORDINANCE FOR PETER HILL PROPERTY
	ITEM #4 - RENDY KERR AGREEMENT AMENDMENT
	ITEM #5 - LDC GAS RATE AND RECOVERY CHARGES
	ITEM #6 - QBS HOMES VARIANCE REQUEST
	ITEM #6 - QBS HOMES VARIANCE REQUEST
	ITEM #6A - PHOTOS
	ITEM #6B - PHOTOS
	ITEM #6C - PHOTOS

	ITEM #7 - UNCLE BOB'S BBQ MONTGOMERY ALCOHOL BEVERAGE PERMIT APPLICATION
	ITEM #8 - BUFFALO SPRINGS BRIDGE REPORT

